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GLOSSARY

i

"AGM"
[BRBEAE ]

“Articles” or “Articles of
Association”
[4BAN sk BAL =240 A

"associate(s)”
[BEEEA

“Audit Committee”

[BEZEEE

“Audit and Risk Management
Committee”

(B LEREREEZEE ]

“Board”

[EEg]

“Board Diversity Policy”

EES-Eovide

“Bohai New District Factory”

[ 3= T

"Business Day(s)”

E=E3=N

“"BVI"

[RBER RS

“Cayman Islands Companies Law”
or "Companies Law”

[FAEBRSRRDEINI RFDE]

"CG Code”

[EE AR

15

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 23
May 2023
RARKR2023F5 A23B R THEEIRRBFAE

the amended and restated articles of association of our Company, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
RRARIEFT RSB ABERMAY - KTRHER] - AIAEM T HE
Bl

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmARIRE TR E

the audit committee of the Board

BExgnEREES
the audit and risk management committee of the Board
ExgnERMEAREEZES

the board of Directors

=g

a board diversity policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board
—EHIERERTR SN T ENEEFE S TEBE

our factory located in Bohai New District, Cangzhou, Hebei Province, the
PRC
BAILHA A B JE & R N B T R A TR

a day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday) in Hong Kong on
which banks in Hong Kong are open generally for normal banking business
BRRTEDTE—RAMNERERITEBNHRF(2HN - EHARIAR
REARR M)

the British Virgin Islands
REEARES

the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands
FEHEAPIE2ENEE(1961FF3I550EM » K456 MIEET)

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

N ETARAM R AR EER TR



“close associate(s)”

[ETHEA

“CNPC”
[ A

“Company” or “our Company”

EVNCIN

“Company Secretary”

[REME ]

“connected person(s)”

[EAEAL]

“Connected Persons’
Share Award Plan”

[BRE A LR fn 22Eat &1 ]

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ 12 AR AR ER

“core connected person(s)”

[T BEANT

"Corporate Governance
Committee”

[EERZESE]

"Covenantors”

ESN

“Dalipal Bohai Branch”
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A

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HA LmRAIPTETRRE

China National Petroleum Corporation (FFB/AH XA RA R A 7))
PG RRARER AR

Dalipal Holdings Limited (GZ£/]EZ=RRAER A R]), an exempted company
limited by shares incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28 August 2018
under the Companies Law

ENEERABRAR - R2018F8 A28 M E B EIRIE R RAFFMA L
EVER R AR QA

a company secretary of the Company

ARABNABIWME

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LmRAIPTE TrEE

the share award plan for directors and chief executives of the Group,
adopted by the Company on 31 May 2022, as amended on 19 December
2022 as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December
2022

ARRANR2022F5 A3 BRANHAEBEE NRFTRA B2 EH KRN
HBREIETE] - 702022512 B19REATI 2022612 19 R AR A S #
=

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules, and, in the case of
our Company, means Mr. Meng, Mr. YX Meng and Rosy Astral individually
and as a group of persons

AR ETABMETHRE M AREME @ @R RARELZEE &
FASEREE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LR BRI TR
the corporate governance committee of the Board
EXgnNtXER%ES

Mr. Meng, Mr. YX Meng and Rosy Astral
wEE - AFAEEREE

Dalipal Pipe Company Bohai New District Branch Company* (31 & f
HABAMRARREFED QT established on 11 November 2011 in the
PRC, being a deregistered branch office of Dalipal Pipe located in our Bohai
New District Factory
ENERHMEAEBRATDEMESRF - R2011F 11 A1 BEFEK
N RENEZREUVNHEMEIREEUETMN —HRES R
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Elc

"Dalipal Equipment
Manufacturing”

[E ) E R EEGE ¥
“Dalipal Group”

EHEEE ] ¥
“Dalipal Pipe”

ENEBERE] ¥

“Deed of Non-competition”

[ 52245 5
"“Director(s)”

[E=] 5
“EGM”

[REREFRIRE ] 5

"Eligible Shareholder(s)”

[&BRARE ] 5
“ESG"
[ESG Bist

"ESG Committee”
[ESGEEZ | 5

"Group” or “our Group” or
“we” or “our” or “us”

S EAEEAGN B

Dalipal Special Type Equipment Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (/) E4EAI 4
BIEHFBRAF]), which was established on 21 July 2008 under the laws of
the PRC and principally engaged in the production of pipe billets prior to its
dissolution in May 2012

TSR EEREER AR - 200847 A21 BAREF BARK S LR
20125 AMMAT E BN ST EREE

Dalipal Group Co., Ltd.* GEHEEEHBR R, a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC on 8 June 2007 and a connected
person of our Company by virtue of it being an associate of Mr. Meng, our
executive Director

ENEEEFRAR - R2007F6 ASARBERBZENIMNABRAE + A
RERPTEZTLEENBEA - TARRRNMEAL

Dalipal Pipe Company* () EAMEREE R A R]) (formerly known as
Cangzhou Huabei Petroleum OCTG Co., Ltd* BN AMEREM AR A
7] and Huabei China Petroleum Cangzhou OCTG Co., Ltd.* FEbA BN
EREMAMRAR]), alimited liability company established under the laws of
the PRC on 18 September 1998 and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
our Company
ENEAHRERERRARGIHMANEL T REREM AR AR KEILA
HAMNBEREMBRAR) - BR1998FIA18BIREFBEERKIMERA
Al BARAREEE2EWE AR

the non-compete undertaking dated 19 June 2019 and executed by our
Controlling Shareholders in favour of our Company
ERBRRAAR A REw AR BH/A201946 A 190 B M5 F %GR

the director(s) of our Company

AABES

an extraordinary general meeting of our Company

ARBBERERIAE

any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
—HBFINENERBREARBEAERERNARARRAGRENARRE
BRADDR+D 2 =K —HRA EIRER

environmental, social and governance
RIE HERER

the ESG committee of the Board
FEECHESGLRES

collectively, our Company and its subsidiaries

AREREME R RO



“Hong Kong” or “HK"
[ &%)

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK$"
[T

“IPO"
[ERAREE]

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Date”
[E R
“Listing Rules”
[ AR AN

“"Macau”
[EFT ]

“Main Board”

[ =4k

“Memorandum” or

“Memorandum of Association”

[ R4 |3k A= 2R

“Model Code”

[52Esr A ]

“Mr. Bai”

B=Fite

“Mr. Cheng”
[ASE4 |

“Mr. Guo”
ESH

Annual Report 2022 F &3k
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A

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBRRITHRER

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BREEE®

the initial public offering of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on Listing
Date
P LT B HIR R P R AR SR

the listing of our Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

BB R P AR TR

8 November 2019, the date on which the Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange by way of IPO
2019F 11 A8H » BB BB X AREERBRER ET 2 H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BRPrES MR EARHERT - MRS AR M B

the Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI RIT TR R

the stock market (excluding the options market) operated by the Stock
Exchange and which is independent from and operated in parallel with
GEM. For the avoidance of doubt, the Main Board excludes GEM

B PTEENIRE T IS (T B EETS) - B RGEMIT B E I 1 TE(E -
RREERE - ERTBEIEGEM

the amended and restated memorandum of association of our Company, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
RATEMEET RS EIABEIRRME - LTRHER] - R SIARM TS
Bl

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
LR AIM ST FTE M E BT AZE S ETE SR HIIFESTA

Mr. Bai Gongli (BZh#), chief executive officer of our Group prior to 4 April
2022
BINFISE A - 202254 4B AT AARSEBITE A

Mr. Cheng Haitao (5/8)8), an independent non-executive Director

RBERLE - REMIFMITES

Mr. Guo Kaiqgi (3#5E), an independent non-executive Director
SPFMEL A - BB IEMITES

11
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GLOSSARY
AR
“Mr. Meng” Mr. Meng Fanyong (& LE), one of our founders, chairman of our Board,
an executive Director and a Controlling Shareholder. He is the father of Mr.
YX Meng
[ R ] ¥ BNBRE  REAZ—  BEFEEF  RITEEFRIERRER - BARH
FHAEENRER
“Mr. Wong” Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing (E75£8), an independent non-executive Director
[ F %4 ¥ FTERESE  RBVIENITES
“Mr. Yin" Mr. Yin Zhixiang (B&E#E), who was re-designated as a non-executive
Director from executive Director with effect from 4 April 2022
B4 ¥ BRAEFSRE - B2022F 4 A4RRBENTESTRAERIENITES
“Mr. YX Meng” Mr. Meng Yuxiang (&2 F#Y), deputy chief executive officer of our Group, an
executive Director and a Controlling Shareholder. He is the son of Mr. Meng
AFARE] | BFAGRE  RASERITHEAH TESRIFREKRE - BARKLED
2F
“Mr. Zhang” Mr. Zhang Hongyao (sR4L#2), vice-chairman of our Board and an executive
Director,who has been appointed as the chief executive officer of the Group
with effect from 4 April 2022
[R5 4 ¥ SRALBSEAE - RESEREFRITES - B2022F 448 BFRETHE
£
“Ms. Gan” Ms. Gan Shuya (Fiftgs), chief operating officer of our Group and an
executive Director
[ T2+ £ Tt AAKELSERENRNITES
“Ms. Xu” Ms. Xu Wenhong (&3 4T), chief legal officer of our Group and an executive
Director
[fR2+ ] ¥ MYALTL  REAEEEREERNITES
“Nomination Committee” the nomination committee of the Board
[REZEE] 5 ERgNRREEER
“Non-Connected Persons’ Share the share award plan for full-time employees of the Group, adopted by the
Award Plan” Company on 31 May 2022, as amended on 19 December 2022 as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2022
[ EREE A T IR ST &1 ¥ RAEN202265 431 BERARER KR E 2B E B 28 e i) RT3 -
F2022F 12 A19B{EET R 2022F 12 A 19BN AR AEH #E
“North China Second Drilling” North China Petroleum Administration Bureau Second Drilling Engineering
Company* GEILAHERBE = %#IF’\ )
[ZEJL 23 — | | EABEERE_BHIER

“Phase Two Expansion” the phase two production capacity expansion at the Group’s factory located

at Bohai New District

[ — e | ¥ R BRI R TR Ay — A BEIEOR



“Polaris Swift”

(24

“PRC" or “China”

[

“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”

[BXRAREBEERBRET S

“Proposal”

[

"Prospectus”

[ ERE ]

“Reallocation”

=gy

“Requisition”

[&5kE]

“Remuneration Committee”

[(HMEE S

“Risk Management Committee”

[AREBEES

“RMB"
[ARE]

“Rosy Astral”

E22-4
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A

POLARIS SWIFT LIMITED (2 &R A7), a company incorporated in the BVI
with limited liability on 25 April 2018, wholly owned by certain employees of
the Group and a connected person of our Company by virtue of it being a
substantial Shareholder

ERARRA  R2018F4 25 EABHEB RS TMRINER R
A HAKEETEEZEHSE  BARERTFERRE  RRARBEA
T

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purposes of this annual report
excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARANE - RAFHTE - TRERE  RFINGE

the pre-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by our Company on
19 June 2019
ANRTEFR2019F6 A 19 B HE R IR E) B IR N5 3 & R A AT &)

a written notice of the proposal by a shareholder to put forward proposal at
a general meeting of the Company

BRERMREARFRRAE L2 EZFMENEZEHBA

the prospectus of the Company dated 28 October 2019
ANARHEA2019F 10 A28 BB ETR

the reallocation of part of the unutilised net proceeds from the IPO originally
allocated for the Phase Two Expansion to the repayment of certain existing
interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as resolved by the Board on 10
June 2020
MEFEN20206F6 A10A PR @ SRADEAR —HiEEnEs a8 R
ARABERDAMBIEFRENSRARNEEREBETRAALEE
a written requisition by the Eligible shareholder(s) who wish to convene an
EGM

BB ARBERERIKR

8

B BEBRRAENEmEX

the remuneration committee of the Board

E=gnFMERS

the risk management committee of the Board

ExenREREEZES

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARET  HEIEEEY

ROSY ASTRAL LIMITED (8% 2 HBR 72 7]), a company incorporated in the BVI
with limited liability on 26 April 2018, and owned as to 80.63% by Mr.
Meng, 19.37% by Mr. YX Meng, being one of our Controlling Shareholders
BREBRAR  N2018F4R26 B EEBHBRBSTEMAZNBRL
Al BREERATALEDBIBEAB0.63%K#)19.37% + REFIER
Rz—
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Elc

“SFO”
78 5 N HAE 5 p) ]

“Share(s)”
[ A% |

“Share Award Plans”

[ A& {7 22 b=t 21

"Share Option Scheme”
[ B2

“Shareholder(s)"”
[ B3R

“Share Incentive Committee”
(R BEZEE ]

“Sinopec”

[Aaft]

“sq.m.”

[SFT5K]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22

“subsidiary(ies)”

Kiii=NGl

“substantial shareholder(s)”
[ FZRREE

“Year"”

[AFE ]

"o
[% ]

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FREDIESNERSZ MAEIEG) - ETRHERT - FRIAEMIT B

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of our Company

AR AR FIEEO. N0 T &R

the Connected Persons' Share Award Plan and Non-Connected Persons'
Share Award Plan

B A AR 2R Eh AT &) M IR RAE A AR ) 2R At 8l

the share option scheme was adopted by a resolution in writing by the then
shareholders of the Company on 19 June 2019
RATIERRRN2019F6 A 19R B BEMRBRFANEIRETE

holder(s) of the Shares
A A

the share incentive committee of the Board, which comprises Directors and/
or senior management of the Group

EXgnROHBBDEES  AEER ASREREBEK

China Petroleum and Chemical Corporation (/B4 f{t T B A7)
PEAMETEEAT

square metres

Fok

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEMERXHMBR AR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LmRAIPTE Tr%E

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB ERRIRTEE T AR R

the financial year ended 31 December 2022
BE2022612 A31 A IEBEBFE

per cent

Bt









CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERW|E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present you the
annual report of our Company for the Year.

The past year of 2022 was the third anti-pandemic year in China
and even the world. The COVID-19 pandemic has brought great
challenges to the Group’s operating environment and employees’
life. However, with the support of all employees of Dalipal, all
investors, friends, customers, supply chain partners who care about
and support the Group’s development, and the family members of
the Group'’s employees, our operation and management has been
greatly improved. The Group's internal management and external
operations have accomplished remarkable performance. The overall
results has achieved a significant improvement as compared with last
year. For the Year, the Group achieved revenue of RMB4.23 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 12.4%. Profit
for the period amounted to RMB151.6 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 82.9%. Accordingly, the Board has resolved to
declare a final dividend of HK$0.04 per share.

In 2022, we focused on our annual goals, and the philosophy
of “finance-centered” for our operation and management was
well implemented throughout the year. The proportion of non-
APl products continued to increase, and the market structure
of “three pillars” including overseas market, domestic oilfield
market and non-oilfield market has gradually formed. Continuous
breakthroughs were made in product innovation and technology
improvement, and the efficiency of premium connection production
processing continued to improve. Focusing on accounts receivable
and inventory, the joint pressure of the market and the on-site,
we grasped the overall situation of the Company’s operation.
In 2022, we turned pressure into momentum, facing the new
trend of complex and ever-changing operational environment, we
concentrated on internal improvement and development, and fully
covered the ESG system; the various talent training programmes
were gradually rolled out; a number of self-developed system
have been widely used in production organisation and equipment
management, and various management innovations have become
the driving force for the dynamic optimisation of the system; in
2022, we further expanded our business presence, focusing on
overseas business expansion in the markets of the Middle East
and North Africa. The overseas sales revenue exceeded RMB1.15
billion, accounting for 27.2% of the total revenue, representing
an increase of 17.6 percentage points over last year. The annual
business objectives were in line with expectations, which enhanced
our competitiveness in the global market. The construction and
improvement of corporate culture has also been an unswerving
effort. We won the awards of provincial-level “Model Enterprise
of Corporate Culture Construction” ({ZbER R EN) and
“Model Enterprise of Safety Culture” (%230t R&{2) which
demonstrated the strong power of culture to drive the high-quality
development of Dalipal.
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Looking forward to 2023, while the general situation domestically
and internationally and the competitive dynamics of the industry
are not destined to be calm, the Company will firmly follow the
blueprint of its “sixth five-year plan”, focusing on the layout of
high-end manufacturing, intelligent manufacturing, technology
leadership, new materials, and green development of Dalipal,
continue to promote all aspects of our work, marching on our new
journey of “strive for first class and last for hundred years”. In the
new year, we will continue to focus on market sources, continue
to enhance the Company’s competitive advantages, ensure the
Company’s high-quality development and rapid development,
continuously expand the market layout, strive to optimise the
product structure, and maximise the benefits of resources. We will
continue to adhere to the finance-centered business philosophy,
always benchmark against first-class enterprises, further improve
the profitability of orders, improve the comprehensive profitability
of products, and maintain a leading position in the industry. We
will continue to refine management, accurately grasp customer
needs, increase cash flow, reduce inventory age, and reasonably
match resources to achieve synergy between production and sales
and maximise benefits. In 2023, we will continue to focus on ESG
development, talent cultivation and product technology innovation,
and strive to achieve green, healthy and sustainable development of
the Company, so as to create value for the society and bring greater
benefits to our employees and shareholders. We will accelerate the
implementation of our production expansion plan on the basis of
comprehensively promoting digital and intelligent transformation,
and seek suitable opportunities in the market for mergers and
acquisitions to expand our market share and continuously enhance
our market share and overall competitiveness.
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We believe that more challenges and opportunities ahead will
be encountered. Dalipal will continue to explore new modes of
development, new business areas and innovative solutions to
continuously improve our operational efficiency and profitability.
We will also continue to uphold our corporate culture of integrity,
innovation and excellence to create greater value for our
shareholders and customers.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | promise that the Group will
take proactive measures in the coming year to address various
challenges, maintain the business performance for steady growth,
and be committed to creating the best returns for shareholders. At
the same time, | would like to extend my sincerest gratitude to all
investors, friends from all sectors, customers, supply chain partners,
all employees and their family members for the care and support for
the development of the Group!

Meng Fanyong
Chairman of the Board and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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EENSREEEBN

Executive Directors
Mr. Meng Fanyong (& JLE), aged 61

Executive Director and Chairman of the Board

Mr. Meng is an executive Director and Chairman of the Board
responsible for the overall strategic development, and leading the
business development of the Group. He was appointed as Director
on 28 August 2018 and re-designated as executive Director on 27
February 2019. Mr. Meng has over 41 years of experience in oilfield
equipment business. He also has over 23 years of experience in
operation and management business of OCTG manufacturing. He
joined the Group on 18 September 1998. Mr. Meng has been a
director and chairman of Dalipal Pipe since September 1998. Prior
to joining the Group, he acquired knowledge and experiences in
operation of oilfield and oil pipe manufacturing industry by holding
various positions in North China Second Drilling, which principally
engages in maintenance of oilfield equipment and oilfield service,
including technician, dispatcher of machine maintenance factory,
workshop director, manager of machine maintenance factory, and
deputy factory director of operational and services department from
September 1981 to July 1999. Mr. Meng is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Meng is the father of Mr. YX Meng,
an executive Director and the deputy chief executive officer of the
Group. Mr. Meng graduated from Communist Party of China Hebei
Provincial Party School Party and Government Cadres College* (7
I E T ERERHIBEKZERT) in the PRC in July 1998. Mr.
Meng holds approximately 80.6% of the issued share capital of Rosy
Astral Limited, which has an interest in such number of Shares of
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and
Futures Ordinance as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” in this report.
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Mr. Zhang Hongyao (5RAL#&), aged 53

Executive Director, Vice-Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer

Mr. Zhang was appointed as Director on 27 February 2019, re-
designated as a non-executive Director and vice-chairman of the
Board on 19 June 2019, and re-designated as an executive Director
from non-executive Director on 1 January 2020, and was appointed
as chief executive officer on 4 April 2022. He is responsible for sales,
marketing and investment management of the Group. Mr. Zhang
has more than 18 years of experience in oil pipe manufacturing
industry. Prior to joining the Group, he has been the deputy general
manager of Baosteel America Inc.* (BN ABFR A7) since July
2015; the deputy general manager of the steel pipe department of
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (& [ /%10 A R 2 7)) from August
2007 to July 2015; the general manager and director of Yantai
Lubao Steel Pipe Company Limited (FZEEMEBRSEAT)
from August 2004 to June 2005 and from June 2005 to August
2007 respectively; and the deputy general manager of Baoshan
Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. Steel Pipe Branch* (&1L ED AR A R
‘B2 7]) from August 2004 to June 2005. Mr. Zhang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in trade economics from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics (/8848 KE) in July 1992 and a master’s
degree of arts from West Virginia University in December 2001.
Mr. Zhang has an interest in such number of underlying Shares of
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and
Futures Ordinance as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” in this report.
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Ms. Xu Wenhong (8 4L), aged 54

Executive Director and chief legal officer

Ms. Xu is an executive Director appointed on 27 February 2019 and
the chief legal officer responsible for the overall legal compliance
of the Group. Ms. Xu has more than 29 years of experience in
commercial legal advisory and over 17 years of experience in
management of oil pipe manufacturing business. She joined the
Group on 1 April 2003. She has been the chief legal consultant and
secretary of the board of director of Dalipal Pipe since April 2003
and June 2014, respectively. She was also a director of Dalipal Pipe
from August 2007 to April 2010 and since October 2013. Ms. Xu
has been the deputy general manager of Dalipal Pipe Company
Bohai New District Branch Company* GZ hE A HERE R A A
& HTE 5 2 7)) from November 2011 to October 2012, the deputy
general manager of Dalipal Equipment Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (3
SR EEGIRAF]) from July 2009 to November 2011. She has
also been the assistant of the general manager from April 2003 to
December 2005 and the deputy general manager from December
2005 to October 2016 of Dalipal Pipe. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Xu was a lawyer in Hebei Jinsheng Law Firm* (aldt & Bsi2fl s
F5 A7) from June 2001 to March 2003; a legal officer of North China
Petroleum Science and Industrial Company* (FEdLAMEI T &4
A a]) (currently known as Rengiu City Huabei Qilfield Technology
Industrial Trade General Company* ((EEMEILHAR TEHAR
7)) from September 1997 to June 2001; and legal officer of North
China Second Drilling from March 1993 to March 1998. Ms. Xu is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Xu obtained
a diploma in legal education in network education institute of
Shandong University* (LLIER A E 48485205 £65%) in July 2004 and the
qualification of PRC lawyer in June 1996.
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Mr. Meng Yuxiang (ZF#), aged 36

Executive Director and deputy chief executive officer

Mr. YX Meng is an executive Director appointed on 27 February
2019 and the deputy chief executive officer responsible for the
overall human resources and production operational management
of the Group. He has over 11 years of experience in management.
Mr. YX Meng joined the Group on 21 May 2017. He has been
the deputy general manager and a director of Dalipal Pipe since
December 2017 and June 2017, respectively. Mr. YX Meng was the
assistant of the general manager of Dalipal Pipe from May 2017 to
December 2017. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. YX Meng worked
in Beijing Dacheng Real Estate Development Company Limited* (1t
RAKEHERZEARRE(TAT) as the deputy head of follow-
up working group from January 2014 to January 2015 and head
of land resources management group from February 2015 to April
2017. He was also the head of planning and design department and
office executive assistant of Beijing BBMG Property Co., Ltd.* (1t
T E XA Q7)) from February 2011 to February 2012 and from
March 2012 to January 2014, respectively; and the engineering staff
member of BBMG Property Management Co., Ltd. Jiahua Branch*
(trReBYEEEERETAGEEEES QA from July
2008 to February 2011. Mr. YX Meng is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. YX Meng is the son of Mr. Meng
Fanyong, an executive Director and chairman of the Board. Mr. YX
Meng obtained a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering from Beijing
Construction Engineering College (It REZE TFRZEPT) (currently
known as Beijing University of Civil Engineering and Architecture
(b RS AE) in July 2008, and obtained a master of business
administration from Peking University (At X A22) in June 2022.
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Ms. Gan Shuya (Fifizz), aged 55

Executive Director and chief operating officer

Ms. Gan is an executive Director appointed on 27 February 2019
and the chief operating officer responsible for the overall operational
and financial management of the Group. Ms. Gan has more than
37 years of experience in auditing and accounting in oil-related
industry. She joined the Group on 23 August 2010. She has been
the director and financial director of Dalipal Pipe since October 2016
and December 2017, respectively. Ms. Gan has been the assistant
to the general manager of Dalipal Pipe from October 2010 to
December 2017; the manager of finance department and assistant
of the general manager of Dalipal Equipment Manufacturing from
August 2009 to September 2010 and from July 2009 to September
2010, respectively; and department head and manager of finance
department of Dalipal Group from October 2007 to March 2008
and from April 2008 to June 2009, respectively. Prior to joining the
Group, she held various positions in Hebei Yanhua Accounting Firm
Company Limited* (/3L #EESETRIEHFTEMR A A, including the
auditor, project manager, senior project manager and department
manager from December 1998 to September 2007. She was also the
auditor of North China Petroleum Audit Office Fourth Audit Office*
EJL A ET R FUERTE) from January 1997 to November 1998;
the auditor and the accountant of North China Second Drilling from
July 1991 to December 1996 and from May 1985 to August 1988,
respectively; and the worker of Cangzhou Machine Maintenance
Factory of North China Petroleum Second Drilling Company* (¥4t
HHEERE _#BHATRAFAMEER) from September 1984 to
April 1985. Ms. Gan is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Gan completed a course in accountancy at the Adult
Higher Education, School of Continuing Education, Hebei University*
OFTAERE R AE) in July 2001. She obtained the qualification of
PRC certified public valuer in September 2005 and the qualification
of PRC certified public accountant in May 1995. Ms. Gan has an
interest in such number of underlying Shares of the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance as
disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” in this report.
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Non-executive Director
Mr. Yin Zhixiang (B8 % %f), aged 65

Non-Executive Director (Re-designated from executive Director with
effect from 4 April 2022)

Mr. Yin was an executive Director appointed on 27 February 2019
and the chief technical officer responsible for the overall research
and development and technical management of the Group. With
effect from 4 April 2022, Mr. Yin was re-designated as a non-
executive Director. He has more than 41 years of experience in the
operation of oilfield. He joined the Group on 23 August 2010. Mr.
Yin has been the chief technical expert and deputy general manager
of Dalipal Pipe since June 2017 and October 2016, respectively;
the project manager of Dalipal Pipe since January 2018; and the
deputy general manager for general affairs from November 2011 to
October 2016 and the director of technical centre from December
2012 to October 2015 of Dalipal Pipe. He was also the general
manager of Dalipal Bohai Branch from November 2011 to May
2016. He was also the deputy manager for general affairs of Dalipal
Equipment Manufacturing from July 2009 to November 2011 and
the deputy general manager of Dalipal Group from July 2008 to July
2009. Prior to joining the Group, he was the director and deputy
general manager of Rongsheng Machinery Manufacture Ltd. of
Huabei Oilfield, Hebei (AIJbZE LA M L B BLE B IR A A1) from
May 2002 to July 2008; and the dispatcher, chief of production
division, branch factory manager and deputy factory manager, of the
second machinery factory of North China Petroleum Management
Authority* (ZEILAHE IR B E Z#ME) from August 1981 to May
2002. Mr. Yin gained his experiences in machinery production in a
factory located in Jiangsu in the PRC from March 1977 to August
1979. Mr. Yin had been a director of Dalipal Pipe prior to September
2020. Mr. Yin obtained a diploma in economics management from
Communist Party of China Central Party College* (FF #£rp SR E AL K
B EPT) in December 1995 and a diploma in statistics from Hebei
University in December 1989.
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Independent non-executive Directors
Guo Kaiqi (Z85i1f), aged 67

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Guo is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 19
June 2019. Mr. Guo has over 47 years of experience in operation
of oilfield. Mr. Guo was the party committee secretary and deputy
general manager of China Petroleum Materials Corporation (4
Bl A MY & 2 7)) from November 2007 to July 2015; the party
committee secretary, party committee deputy secretary, secretary
for committee of discipline inspection and union president of North
China Oilfield Branch Company* (¥3bhMH 72 &]) from July 1999
to November 2007; the deputy director of North China Petroleum
Administration Bureau from November 1997 to July 1999; the
party committee secretary, party committee deputy secretary, party
committee member, chief of corporate management department
and committee member of organisation department of North
China Petroleum Administration Bureau Underground Operation
Company* GELEREZERH TIEEZAR]) from July 1985 to
November 1997; and the worker and committee member, of
Dagang oilfield, and North China oilfield from November 1972 to
September 1983. Mr. Guo obtained a master’s degree in corporate
management in Petroleum University (Beijing)* (fi3fAE (4b3) ) in
June 2002.

Wong Jovi Chi Wing (£%%8), aged 42

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive Director appointed on 19
June 2019. Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience in corporate
finance, investment and asset management. Mr. Wong is currently
the managing director of Seazen Resources Asset Management
Limited. Prior to that, Mr. Wong served as an executive director of
Wonder Capital Group Limited from March 2018 to April 2022; as
a director of distribution department of Janus Henderson Investors
(Hong Kong) Limited from July 2014 to March 2018. Before
asset management, Mr. Wong served at the investment banking
division of China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Ltd. and Haitong
International Capital Limited respectively with extensive experience
in IPO and M&A. Mr. Wong also worked in Auto22.com Ltd from
December 2002 to February 2010, and his last position was general
manager. Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business Administrative from
the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology and a Bachelor
of Science from The University of Auckland. He is also a member of
CPA Australia.
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Cheng Haitao (B /87%), aged 64

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Cheng is an independent non-executive Director appointed on
19 June 2019. Mr. Cheng has over 28 years of experience in the
steel pipe manufacturing industry. Since March 2019, Mr. Cheng
has been the part-time consultant of Mongolia Baogang Steel Union
Company Limited* (N5 & & S8 A% (0 G FR A 7). Mr. Cheng has
been the honorary director of the Expert Committee of the Shanghai
Steel Pipe Industry Association* (L/BMETEHEERELZER)
since May 2018 and he has been certified as the consultant of Steel
Pipe Division, China Steel Construction Society* (¥ Bl Si45#& 7 &
& 5 2) in April 2017. Prior to July 2019, he was a committee
member of the Fourth Steel Pipe Technician Sub-committee,
National Steel Standardisation Committee* (2EIHIZE(LEZE &
FEHEME D HIMTZE B E); and president and editor of Steel Pipe
( C#B%E) %55, a publication relating to the steel and metal pipe
industry published in the PRC, from September 1999 and April
2007, respectively, to June 2020. Mr. Cheng was also the deputy
manager and deputy general manager of Pangang Group Chengdu
Vanadium Steel Company Limited* (£ B K EBHEAH R A7)
from August 2008 to May 2014 and from May 2014 to May 2017
respectively; deputy manager of Pangang Group Chengdu Steel and
Metal Company* (223 = B fk #0372/ BR & £ 2 7)) from June 2002
to August 2008; the deputy general manager of Pangang Group
Chengdu Seamless Steel Pipe Company Limited* (228 £ B pk &0 4
LEHE B R EMAR]) from December 2000 to May 2002; the chief
engineer, deputy general manager and chief dispatcher from June
1995 to December 2000 of Chengdu Seamless Steel Pipe Factory*
(P &P =42 S B B7); and the deputy factory director and the factory
director of Chengdu Seamless Rolling Factory* (5K #BAE4E FEL 7 %)
from June 1993 to May 1995; and the deputy factory director of
Chengdu Seamless Tube Factory II* (A &EPELEELE — 2 R) from May
1991 to May 1993. Mr. Cheng gained his experiences in production
of metal in a factory located in Sichuan in the PRC from July 1987 to
May 1989 and technical experiences in iron and steel metallurgical
processing and thermal processing in a research institute in the PRC
from May 1982 to August 1984. Mr. Cheng obtained a master’s
degree in metal pressure processing in Beijing Steel and Metal
College* (A ##22%) in June 1987.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
EEREREEEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (2|5 £¢), aged 49

Company secretary and finance and investor relations director

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (RIZ££) is the director of finance and investor
relations and the company secretary of the Group. He joined
the Group in December 2021. Prior to joining to the Group, Mr.
Lau worked as the chief financial officer, company secretary and
independent non-executive directors for certain listed companies
in Hong Kong and Canada. Mr. Lau has over 20 years experience
in financing and accounting in China, Hong Kong and Canada.
Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a master degree in finance from City
University of Hong Kong. He is currently also an independent non-
executive director of four companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, namely Kingdom Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 528), United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2337), Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6833)
and Kangli International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6890). He
was also an independent non-executive director of China Wood
Optimitization (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 1885) until 15
February 2022.

*  For identification purpose only
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Business Review

Main Business, Business Model and Industry Overview
of the Group for the Year

The Group is principally a supplier of application equipment
for energy development, mainly providing oil and gas pipes for
companies engaged in the oil and gas industry and providing high-
end pipes for new energy as well as special seamless steel pipes
for the exploration and development of energy industry and the
manufacturing of energy related equipment. The Group has an
extensive product mix, and is suitable for use in the development,
mining and transmission of various categories of energy sources,
including oil, natural gas, shale gas and new energy as well as for
the manufacturing of energy related equipment.

The Group's products are divided into standard products and
customised products made according to customers’ special
requirements. The production model adopted by the Group is
“sales-oriented”. That is, relevant manufacturing units of the
Group will coordinate the production, inspection and delivery of
products based on the specifications, performance, quantity and
special requirements on the working environment of each customers
according to customers’ orders or contracts. The clientele of the
Group are mainly sizable oil and gas companies and high-end energy
equipment companies. The raw materials of the Group’s products
are mainly scrap metals purchased by entering into procurement
contracts with suppliers with the procurement price determined by
the Group upon negotiation with the suppliers with reference to
market conditions and production needs. In terms of product sales
models, domestic markets are mainly direct sales while both direct
sales and distributorship are applicable to international markets.

During the Year, adhering to the business strategy of “strengthening
oil and gas pipes, diversifying moderately and manufacturing
leading products with exclusivity (—& 3% - BEZ T - EERBE
BLLEM)", the Group strengthened its business of oil and gas
pipes while continuously developing pipes for oil drilling equipment,
including pipes for drilling, oil tank pipes and perforator pipes, as
well as special pipes with leading technologies, including special
pipes applicable to new energy and pipes for the manufacturing of
high-end machineries. The Group has successively received positive
results and feedbacks on test performed and evaluation reports
prepared by well-known domestic enterprises or been enlisted as
their qualified supplier. The extensive product mix of the Group has
further enhanced the soft competitiveness of the Company.
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Although the industry was affected by the accumulating impact
arising from multiple factors, including the conflict between Russia-
Ukraine, the energy crisis and the tightening monetary policy of
overseas economies during the Year, and faced the problem of
declining average prices and shrinking demand, the demand for
seamless steel pipes was still steadily increasing from the perspective
of individual market segments. Pipes for oil and gas drilling and
pipes for new energy are the main categories of seamless steel
pipes, which witnessed a stable market demand during the Year. In
particular, demand for pipes for oil and natural gas drilling, especially
special product series, recorded an increase. In respect of export,
according to the General Administration of Customs of the PRC, the
cumulative export of seamless pipes increased by 44% year on year,
among which the export of pipes for oil and gas drilling increased by
96% year on year.

The industry in which the Group’s products are operating is a
mature market with stable and rising demand. It is characterised
by high market concentration, high technical barriers and high
industry standards. During the Year, the Group leveraged on market
opportunities, adjusted its business strategy in a dynamic way,
stabilised its domestic market and tapped into the overseas market.
The Group gave full play to its advantages in terms of independent
R&D and fast and flexible customer service, and implemented the
concept of lean operation. The operating results of the Group for
the Year improved significantly when compared with the previous
financial year.

Analysis of Core Competitiveness

During the Year, the Group's core competitiveness were enhanced:

(1) Technical R&D — DLP-T4, a product solely designed by the
Group, passed the level 4 evaluation test of APl 5C5 2017 in
the United States. It has been used in large quantities for shale
gas mining in wells with extraordinary depth of more than
6,000 meters of CNPC's southwest oil and gas field during
the Year. The Group also owned the independent intellectual
property rights in respect of innovative high-strength and tough
casing which are corrosion-resistant, and has been used in
large quantities in major oil and gas fields in China, such as the
CNPC's southwest oil and gas field during the Year. The Group
successfully developed affordable CO2-resistant series products
and completed the actual well conditions corrosion test in
Dagang Oil Field and coalbed methane wells in Shanxi, and they
have entered the actual well service period.
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Intelligent manufacturing — the Group has built intelligent
production lines which are composed of smart equipments
consisting of robots, computer numerical control (CNC) machine
tools, logistics warehouses, testing equipment and automated
production lines, thus enabling product functions like identity
recognition, information collection and statistical analysis within
the production process and enhancing the tracking of product
quality. The Group’s unmanned smart intelligent warehouse,
which is the first of its kind in China, realised the automatic
circulation and information tracking of products in the complete
manufacturing process, thereby providing support for efficient
operation.

Green development — being system oriented, quality,
environment, occupational health and safety and energy
management systems are integrated with green development.
Green factory management is facilitated in all aspects. At
the same time, suppliers/partners are driven to participate in
the establishment of standard systems guiding the formation
and promotion of a low-carbon green environment from an
evaluation perspective of the supplier/partner. The carbon
footprint of products from “cradle to grave” is quantified and
verified throughout the life cycle, and multiple measures are
taken to reduce carbon emissions. As a result, emission levels in
terms of sulfur oxides, nitrogen oxides and particulate matters
are far below the ultra-low emission standards set by Hebei
Provincial Government. Projects such as waste heat utilisation,
equipment modification for energy saving, research and
cooperation on energy-saving new processes and introduction
of new energy have been launched. The shale gas series casing
solely developed by the Group is an energy-saving and emission-
reduction product that helps the exploration of clean energy.
Dalipal has won the title of Green Factory in Hebei Province.

Annual Report 2022 F &3k

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

@)

BB RN

BREBLETE - ARBITET B#SEA - &
BHIR - MRRR  RAIRE - BFCEE
RETREBEARNERILAER  BERE
ERRERS AR - EARREEGFA DN
WEe - RE TERRENTERLE  AKH
REREENEALESE  ERERET
FzEaBAEMERRY  SEMEE
REHE -

MERERITHE  UWBERLEE  HRE R
B BEREZEMEREERARMAGEHE
EAERS  THEERETIRER - R
W, AEERE - TBHER A
ET2RBER RN - 5| B KIKA
BRI RANMERE - FRERLNEERIAPT]
EAEBESRNIRENELRZEER - 218
I 8RR BE R - ALY - BREALYM
RN E BERUE IR R RO LR B E SR
£ o NRSCRFARTHEAFA - REERER
- ERERT TR R AFRMERSIAFE
F BEMBENEERRIEEBREIRER
MAVEMR - B)NBRERNFRR - RRIES
LA A% & TR

&
—
=

31



3 2 Dalipal Holdings Limited 3£ /] &5 A% A IR A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWE DT

(@)

Market expansion — given the Group's achievements in
recent bids for the projects of CNPC and SINOPEC and the
mass supply of non-API products have been acknowledged
by the mainstream customers like CNPC and SINOPEC, thus
strengthening the relationship between the Group and
its customers. The Group has obtained certifications and
recognitions from well-known oil companies in the international
market and started substantive business cooperation with them,
contributing greatly to the growth of international business.
The Group's integrated full-industry-chain production line and
its consistent product quality management system have been
able to flexibly and promptly respond to changes according
to market conditions, thus satisfying customers’ demands for
high-quality products and enabling the Company to respond
to customers’ personalised and urgent needs quickly. All
these provided the Company with plenty room for further
development.

Management enhancement — the Group promoted the
philosophy of business management with financial attributes as
the focus and built a “precise, refined and lean operation (5
JE K5 - FEZSIE )" culture oriented by data for efficiency
improvement, cost reduction and efficiency enhancement,
quality improvement, and technological and management
innovation. In respect of the capability enhancement of
personnel management, the Group engaged training
institutions to conduct management capability improvement
training programs focusing on the implementation of individual
development plans for members of middle management and
employees with high-potential to meet the needs of rapid
development.
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Outlook

Looking forward, the management of the Group believes that the
industry in which the Group is operating will still face the impact
of, among others, the Russia-Ukraine war, the energy crisis and the
geopolitical influence on economies. The prices of raw and auxiliary
materials and energy supply will fluctuate to some extent, and the
product demand may shrink due to the intensified competition with
other industry players. However, with the continuous changes in
the global economic development and the adjustment of the supply
chain pattern brought about by the Russia-Ukraine war, as well
as the unwavering theme of maintaining steady economic growth
in China, it is expected that the investment in energy mining and
infrastructure construction will increase steadily, which will have
positive impact on the demand for the Group’s products.

The Group will continue to promote various tasks regarding the
product strategy positioning of “specific, specialized, innovative
and new products (EAFHFHT)”. The Group will focus on oil and gas
pipes, new energy pipes and special seamless steel pipes, strengthen
product, customer and market innovation, meet and guide customer
demand, manufacture leading products with exclusivity, and enhance
the brand effect of products. Taking lead to promote energy saving
and emission reduction, the Group will take comprehensive green
development in its production and operation segments, to develop
environmental friendly products through technological innovation,
and to establish a low-carbon green development mode prioritising
ecological elements. Based on digital technologies, the Group will
build an efficient and smart manufacturing factory and a business
process system, continuously optimise management and promote
low-cost, high-quality and high-efficiency development. It will strive
for the certification and recognitions of overseas oil companies and
enlarge its share in the international market. It will also continuously
implement the management mode of “precise, refined and lean
operation”, keep strengthening its financial structure and promote
the high-quality development of the Company. The Company will
build a sustainable management, technology and operation team
with a strong sense of identity, consciously practicing the corporate
culture and synchronizing with the Group to achieve steady growth
in operating results.

In the future, we will take the comprehensive implementation
of digitalisation, intelligence, technological leadership and green
development as opportunities to accelerate the expansion plan of
high-end manufacturing, strengthen internal management with
continuous optimisation, identify appropriate opportunities for
mergers and acquisitions to expand the Group’s market share and
enhance its market competitiveness as key strategies for further
development.
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Financial Review
Revenue

The Group recorded a total revenue of RMB4,227.8 million for the
Year, representing an increase of 12.4% from RMB3,762.6 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021. For the Year, the
revenue of new energy pipes and special seamless steel pipes and
other products decreased, while the revenue of oil and gas pipes
increased.

For the Year ended
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BETT BHE2021F12A31HEBARE
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For the Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021 Changes
B £2022512A31H 220215124318
LEE LFE 2
Percentage Percentage
Sales of Sales Sales of Sales Sales
WE HEMNL HE HEML HE sd]]
RMB million %  RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEBEER % AEEBEET % AEEBEET %
Sale of: HE -
Oil and gas pipes ARRARAE 2,635.1 62.3 1,674.0 44.5 961.1 57.4
New energy pipes and
special seamless steel ¥TREIR & M 5k
pipes SN E 1,567.9 37.1 1,896.4 50.4 (328.5) (17.3)
Other products HMEm 24.8 0.6 192.2 5.1 (167.4) (87.1)
Total CEL 4,227.8 100.0 3,762.6 100.0 465.2 12.4

The Group recorded an increase of 57.4% in the revenue of oil and
gas pipes to RMB2,635.1 million (2021: RMB1,674.0 million), a
decrease of 17.3% in the revenue of new energy pipes and special
seamless steel pipes to RMB1,567.9 million (2021: RMB1,896.4
million), and a decrease of 87.1% in the revenue of other products
to RMB24.8 million (2021: RMB192.2 million).

The increase in revenue of oil and gas pipes was mainly due to the
increase in sales volume as a result of the successful bidding in the
domestic oil and gas field market and the successful expansion of
business in the international market, as well as the increase in sales
price due to the change in product structure, the change in market
conditions and change in exchange rate. The decrease in revenue of
new energy pipes and special seamless steel pipes was mainly due to
the increase in consumption of other products and special seamless
steel pipes as a result of the increase in sales of oil and gas pipes,
and the corresponding decrease in sales volume.
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For the Year ended
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For the Year ended

31 December 2022 31 December 2021 Changes
BZ2022%128318 BZ2021%12831R
EEE ILFE 2
Percentage Percentage
Sales of Sales Sales of Sales Sales
HE HEML HE HEML HE gl
RMB million %  RMB million %  RMB million %
ARBEER % AREBET % ANREBET %
Domestic Sales WIHE 3,077.7 72.8 3,401.7 90.4 (324.0) (9.5)
Overseas Sales EIEINE= 1,150.1 27.2 360.9 9.6 789.2 218.7
Total At 4,227.8 100.0 3,762.6 100.0 465.2 12.4

For the Year, the Group recorded an increase of 218.7% in the
revenue of overseas sales to RMB1,150.1 million (2021: RMB360.9
million), which is mainly due to the recovery in overseas demand,
the increase in sales volume as a result of the success of the Group’s
strategy to expand into the overseas markets, and the increase in
market sales prices and exchange rate.

Cost of sales

The Group recorded a total cost of sales of RMB3,616.9 million
for the Year, representing an increase of 8.1% as compared to
RMB3,345.1 million recorded for the year ended 31 December
2021, mainly due to the increase in sales volume and the increase in
prices of raw materials and energy.

Gross profit and gross margin

The Group's total gross profit for the Year was RMB610.9 million,
representing an increase of RMB193.4 million as compared to
RMB417.5 million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The Group’s overall gross profit margin for the Year was 14.5%,
representing an increase of 3.4 percentage points from 11.1% for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase in gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase in selling prices.

Other income

For the Year, the Group’s other income was RMB33.2 million,
representing an increase of RMB12.0 million from RMB21.2 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the
exchange gain and the income from derivative financial instruments.
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Selling expenses

For the year, the Group’s selling expenses was RMB186.9 million,
representing an increase of 89.7% as compared to RMB98.5 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the
increase in revenue.

Administrative expenses

For the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses was RMB171.5
million, representing an increase of 41.0% as compared to
RMB121.6 million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021,
mainly due to the increase in labor costs, research and development
expenses, taxes and surcharges.

Finance costs

For the Year, the finance costs of the Group was RMB108.8 million,
representing a decrease of 8.4% as compared to RMB118.8 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the
average interest rate decreased and the interest expense decreased,
accordingly.

Income tax

For the Year, the Group’s income tax amounted to RMB25.4 million,
representing an increase of RMB8.6 million as compared to RMB16.8
million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due
to the increase in profit before taxation.

Profit for the year

The Group's profit for the year was RMB151.6 million, representing
an increase of RMB68.7 million as compared to RMB82.9 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the
increase in revenue and gross profit.

Capital expenditure

For the Year, the Group invested RMB86.7 million in property, plant
and equipment (2021: RMB76.4 million).
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Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group has mainly financed its working capital and other cash
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and
resorted to external financing including both long-term and short-
term bank borrowings in case the projected operating cash flow is
insufficient to meet the capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB464.9 million (31 December 2021: RMB551.6 million) and were
mainly denominated in RMB, with certain amount denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars (31 December 2021: mainly
denominated in RMB, with certain amount denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and US dollars).

As at 31 December 2022, interest-bearing borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB1,939.1 million (31 December 2021: RMB2,467.2
million), among which RMB762.3 million (31 December 2021:
RMB650.3 million) were long-term borrowings and RMB1,176.8
million (31 December 2021: RMB1,816.9 million) were short-
term borrowings and all of which were denominated in RMB (31
December 2021: all denominated in RMB). As at 31 December
2022, RMB1,802.3 million (31 December 2021: RMB2,372.2 million)
out of all of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group have been
charged at fixed interest rates.

Debt to equity ratio, which is calculated by the net liabilities (interest-
bearing borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by the
total equity as at the respective year end and multiplied by 100%,
was 105.0%, representing a decrease of 37.3 percentage points
from 142.3% at 31 December 2021, due to the decrease in short-
term borrowings.

Current ratio, which is calculated based on the current assets divided
by the current liabilities, increased from 1.05 as at 31 December
2021 to 1.18 as at 31 December 2022.
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Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 1,777 employees (31
December 2021: 1,592 employees) in total, total staff costs (inclusive
of Directors’ emoluments) for the Year amounted to RMB231.4
million (2021: RMB191.4 million).

The Group believes its success depends on its employees’ provision
of consistent, high quality and reliable services. In order to attract,
retain and enrich the knowledge, skill level and qualifications of
its employees, the Group places a strong emphasis on training for
employees. In addition, the Group offers competitive remuneration
packages, including basic salary and performance-based monthly
and annual bonuses, and reviews the remuneration packages
annually according to industry benchmark, financial results, as well
as the performance of employees. The Company has also adopted
share option schemes and share award plans for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants, including
the employees of the Group, who have contributions to the Group.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s property, plant and
equipment with carrying amount of RMB1,193.5 million (31
December 2021: RMB1,103.6 million) and other chattels with
carrying amount of RMB759.9 million (31 December 2021:
RMB744.9 million) were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank
borrowings.

Foreign exchange risk

A majority of the Group’s businesses are operated in the PRC and
are denominated in RMB. With the growth of its export business,
the Group hedges its exposure to exchange rate fluctuations
through forward foreign exchange settlement and it is expected
that the Group will not be subject to any materially adverse effects
arising from exchange rate fluctuation. Nevertheless, the Group will
closely monitor the financial market and would consider appropriate
measures as and when necessary.

Significant investments held and material acquisitions
and disposals

For the Year, the Group did not hold any significant investments or
have any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures of the Company.

The Group does not have any specific future plans for material
investments or capital assets as at the date of this annual report.
Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group does not have any contingent
liabilities.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM IPO

The shares of the Group were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 8 November 2019 by way of IPO. The net proceeds
after deducting the underwriting commission and other costs and
expenses arising from the IPO were approximately HK$426.3 million
(approximately RMB383.7 million). As stated in the Prospectus,
the Company intended to use the proceeds (i) to fund the Phase
Two Expansion; (ii) to strengthen the Group’s product research
and development and innovation capabilities; (iii) to strengthen
the Group’s relationships with key customers, expand the Group’s
customer base and further expand the Group’s sales to overseas
markets; and (iv) for general replenishment of working capital and
other general corporate purpose. On 10 June 2020, the Board
resolved to allocate part of the unutilised net proceeds of the Phase
Two Expansion for the repayment of certain existing interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group. For details of the Reallocation, please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 10 June 2020. During the
Year, the net proceeds were utilised as follows:
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Total amount Unutilised Unutilised

Original utilisedasat  proceedsasat  proceeds as at

planned use Amount of 31 December 31 December 31 December

of net proceeds Reallocation 2022 2022 2021
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(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)

(\REBER) (\R%EER) (AR¥EET) (ARBEER) (AR¥AER)

To fund the Phase Two Expansion RIBRERRMES 339.2 (200.0 1093 299 60.9

To strengthen the Group's product research and JI38 7 £ BIR)E AT EA18I5

development and innovation capabilties 7 9.2 - 38 5.4 55
To strengthen the Group's relationships with AL ERTEXFHE
key customers, enlarge the Group's customer & BAZEERNERE
base and further expand the Group's sales to %+ Wi —HIEAAEE

overseas markets EFNTEREE 7.7 - 56 21 24
For general replenishment of working capital -~ B\ —fR B REEE 2T

and other general corporate purpose E—HELFRR 276 - 276 - -

For repayment of borrowings BRERER - 2000 2000 - -

Total fit 3837 - 3463 374 68.8

The unutilised net proceeds are kept in banks and approved financial {8 F 89PT8 2B F 5817 BRIE BB M BAY$R1T

institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC. As at the date of this report,
the Company does not anticipate any further change in the planned
use of the reallocated proceeds as described above. The remaining
unutilized net proceeds as at 31 December 2022 are currently
expected to be fully utilized on or before 31 December 2023. As
disclosed in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report, due to the impact
of the Pandemic, the progress of the Phase Two Expansion has been
delayed and therefore there will be a delay in the timing of the
utilization of the proceeds (which are expected to be fully utilized on
or before 31 December 2023).
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in the development,
manufacturing and sale of oil and gas pipes (previously known as
oil country tubular goods), new energy pipes and special seamless
steel pipes (previously known as special seamless steel pipes) and
other products (previously known as pipe billets). The activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December
2022, a discussion on the Group's future business development and
principal risks and uncertainties that the Group is facing are provided
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on page 17 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 29 to 39.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by key financial
performance indicators is set out in the section headed “Financial
Review"” on pages 34 to 38.

The Company promotes the culture of adhering to the highest
ethical standards of business conduct and commits to comply
with all prevailing laws and regulations in all its operating regions.
During the year, the Company was not aware of any material non-
compliance or breach of the applicable legislation or regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

EVENT AFTER THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

There was no significant event after the end of the year up to the
date of this report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee and the Audit
Committee is of the opinion that such financial statements comply
with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and all
other applicable legal requirements. The Audit Committee therefore
recommended the Board to approve the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year. The results of the Group for the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 185.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.04 (2021: HK$0.03) per ordinary Share for the Year. Subject
to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of the members of the Company on
Thursday, 1 June 2023.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting is currently scheduled to be held on
Tuesday, 23 May 2023. A notice convening the AGM and other
relevant documents will be published and despatched to the
shareholders of the Company in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR THE
AGM AND FINAL DIVIDEND

In order for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 18 May 2023 to Tuesday, 23 May 2023, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 17 May 2023.
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For the purpose of determining members who are qualified for the
proposed final dividend for the Year, and conditional on the passing
of the resolution approving the declaration of the final dividend
by the shareholders of the Company in the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will also be closed from Tuesday, 30
May 2023 to Thursday, 1 June 2023 (both days inclusive), during
which no transfer of shares can be registered. To qualify for the final
dividend (which will be payable on or about Monday, 12 June 2023)
to be approved at the AGM, shareholders of the Company must
ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 29 May 2023.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group is subject to various environmental laws
and regulations set by the PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations. During the year,
the Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the operations of the Group. Further, any
changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units from
time to time.

The Group is always committed to maintaining the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. A report on the environmental,
social and governance aspects has been prepared with reference
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules and is set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social & Governance Report” on pages 85 to 175
of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers, suppliers and
business partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its suppliers and business partners.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 268 of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in share capital of the Company during the Year are set
out in note 23(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, the Company has made the below repurchase
of Shares on the Stock Exchange. As at 31 December 2022, all
3,932,000 Shares have been cancelled. The repurchases were made
by the Board for the purpose of enhancing shareholders’ value in
the long run. Details of the repurchase of Shares are as follows:

Total number
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Month of repurchase repurchased  paid per share  paid per share consideration
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March 2022 2022938 670,000 1.78 1.59 1,144
April 2022 2022%4RA 1,964,000 2.10 1.83 3,913
May 2022 2022%5H 1,298,000 2.00 1.87 2,507
3,932,000 7,564

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its any other  Fr EXXFT#EEE SN - R QRIS E A LRI P 2 7

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Year.
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RESERVES

Details of the changes in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and note 23(c) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB189.1 million, included
in the Company's retained profits and share premium accounts.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution or dividend, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. In accordance with the Article of Association, dividends
shall be distributed out of the retained profits or other reserve
(representing the share premium account of the Company).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
43.0% of the Group's total purchases and the percentage of
purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier accounted
for approximately 13.3% of the Group’s total purchases. The
percentages of sales for the year attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers combined accounted for approximately 34.7% of
the Group's total sales and the percentage of the sales attributable
to the Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 7.9%
of the Group's total sales.

None of the Director, any of their close associate or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company'’s share capital) had an interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Fanyong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hongyao (Vice-chairman)
Ms. Xu Wenhong

Mr. Meng Yuxiang

Ms. Gan Shuya

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yin Zhixiang
(Redesignated from executive Director on 4 April 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Guo Kaigi
Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing
Mr. Cheng Haitao

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one-
third of our Directors will retire in the AGM. Mr. Meng, Ms. Gan and
Mr. Yin will retire as Directors at the AGM, and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Upon expiration of the original service contracts with the Company
in respect of their roles as executive Directors on 18 June 2022,
each of the following executive Directors, Mr. Meng, Ms. Xu, Mr.
YX Meng and Ms. Gan have entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 19 June 2022,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

In replacement of the original service contract with the Company
in respect of Mr. Zhang's role as an executive Director, Mr. Zhang
has entered into a service contract with the Company in respect of
the same role for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2023, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other.
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Each of the Company’s independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
two years from 19 June 2022, upon expiration of their original
appointment letters on 18 June 2022, which may be terminated by
not less than 15 days’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Mr. Yin, who was re-designated as a non-executive Director
from executive Director with effect from 4 April 2022, has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
from 4 April 2022, which may be terminated by not less than 15
days’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

No Director proposed to be re-elected at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract with the Group, which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Biographical information of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 28 of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors have been independent
throughout the Year and remain independent as of the date of this
annual report.

NABEBUIFPTEECHARRRE D
H2022F6 4198 B ZFHNEF & - EMFIH
BETmEN2022F 6 H18H R » ATH(T
A—AmS—FEHTPRISENEmE@BAM
BIE o BRIEAEBE2022F4BABEHATESF
TAENTTES  AREARRRIZIH - &
2024 A4 R ABH =5 - AlRE A — AR
—HEBEBTLISEEEMM T LRI

BEZENERAFAS LEENEZTHAEAN
SEMRISARAREROREEL - MAKED
BR—FRETEREOCXERERINOB
MBI ERL

AEEEEREAEEENREERENAFR
F20HE5E28H

BYFHTESHNE IR

ARBEREZEIFMTESRE LMARAE
BBGHEAB Y MBELNFERRE - ARFR
RERBYFNTESNAFEL2E—ERBY
AT REERNFHERDBELAL -



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which will
be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company, or as otherwise required,
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange are as follows:
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M2022F12A31H » ARRIEZEEREZITHA
BRARRHEMEEE(TEEALESMPEK
BIEEXVED) BIR%(H - ABEER G RERET - #E
BIEEA RS ENEXVIBETRESD AL
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IR AEST BB A E AR Q B) B A TA R 2 el
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Long positions i)
Number of
ordinary
Shares and
underlying
Shares held
Name of Group under equity Approximate
member/associated derivatives percentage of
Name corporation Nature of interest capital shareholding
ZEREE RE
AEBAREAT fTEIEER BA R
®E HBZEER BREnE s nRe Bot
(Note 1) (Note 4)
(K1) (fizt4)
Directors EE
Mr. Meng The Company Interest of controlled corporation 706,353,600(L) 47.14%
mrE /NG| (Note 2)
REEEBR R (f1722)
Mr. Zhang The Company Beneficial owner 10,500,000(L) 0.70%
RAE NN EREEA (Note 3)
(H17t3)
Ms. Gan The Company Beneficial owner 7,200,000(L) 0.48%
Fat AT BB (Note 3)
(H7t3)
Mr. Guo The Company Beneficial owner 810,000(L) 0.05%
Pk VNG BEnlAA
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Notes:

(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company.

(2)  Rosy Astral is owned as to approximately 80.63% by Mr. Meng. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Meng is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Rosy Astral.

(3) These represent the maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued to such Directors upon the exercise of the pre-IPO share options granted to
each of them (under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) as at 31 December 2022.
Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out under the section headed
“Share Option Schemes” below.

(4) The percentage represents the number of Shares or registered capital involved
divided by the number of the Company’s issued Shares as at 31 December 2022,
being 1,498,468,000.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests and/or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was to incentivise or reward eligible
participants (i.e. (i) any full-time or part-time employee (including
any executive Director) of the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”);
(ii) any non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Group or Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier
or customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any person or
entity that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(vi) any adviser or consultant to any area of business or business
development of the Group or any Invested Entity; (vii) such other
persons who in the sole opinion of the Board may contribute or
have contributed to the development and growth of the Group; and
(viii) any company wholly owned by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of participants for their contribution to
the Group, for the purpose of motivating them to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and attracting
and retaining the aforementioned eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
our Group.

() FEILURFZALEARBRMMAERERD P OFE -

(2 BEMZEEHEALNS063%ER - REFEFERHFEK
) REERRANEER AR P EEES -

(3) HEEHZE2022512A31BEERTFEEREEAAMEE
AT AR M T 81 2 B IR A0 B XA B3 & AT IE AR 1T 7] Bk
BREZERFTHESRNEE - BAEXARBEME
A&t B BEFIN T S A ER T8 | —& -

4) ZEIERERMSBRMHEE KEMERKRAERRQ A
2022512 A31 AWM B ETRMHE B sk &R (B
1,498,468,000/%) °
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For any options granted to Directors, chief executives or substantial
shareholders of the Company, or any of their respective associate,
options to be granted to any of these persons shall be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any independent
non-executive Director who or whose associates is the proposed
grantee of options). Where any option granted to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive Director, or any of
their respective associates, would result in the Shares issued or to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted to such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant, (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the Shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of each offer for the grant,
in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of options shall be subject to
prior approval by resolutions of the shareholders of the Company
(voting by way of poll) at which all core connected persons of the
Company shall abstain from voting in favour, and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Company is aware that under the new rule 17.03A of the
Listing Rules which came into effect on 1 January 2023, participants
of share schemes shall only comprise of employee participants,
related entity participants and service providers (as defined in the
Listing Rules). The Company will only grant the share options under
the Share Option Scheme to eligible participants in compliance with
the new rule 17.03A and pursuant to the transitional arrangements
for share schemes existing as at 1 January 2023 as specified by the
Stock Exchange.

The number of Shares issued and to be issued in respect of options
granted and may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the total Shares of the
Company in issue, without prior approval from the shareholders of
the Company and with such participants and his close associates
abstaining from voting.

The amount payable on acceptance of the grant is HK$1.00, which
will be payable on or before a prescribed acceptance date, and
any offer of option made by the Directors under the Share Option
Scheme shall be open for acceptance for a period of up to the
earlier of 21 days from the relevant offer date. In relation to any
options granted under the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price is
determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares for the five Business Days immediately
preceding the date of the offer for the grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

Annual Report 2022 5 49

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

MAESE  ARFEETHRA B EERREREM
BES BB AR DB N BAIB N IEH
TES(TERES BEREBEREEAR ANTMAE
SIEITE RS EBE A HE o WAEZRE
BN TESH I MHESABEARTT
BB IE - BEEHZATR T —EAABHEAE
R R AR T A B T E R B BT
FEITHRM A EFEOEERZR T ASE %
TR D 4AFERRIB0.1% + M (iR B T B 5t
o omEBBSEESAL  AZBERENKETAE
BANBRERBR(AREHA AR R) SLA4E
% HAMEE > AQARFIBZOBEEATARY
BORZFBZR N3 AR BB STRR Y B Atb 3R TE R

FF -

ARRATHE - RIEV2023F1 A1 BEROFH
EmRAFE17.03A% - RIDFTEINSEEEE
BiERERESEE HETB2HE RRBEREE
B(EERETRA o KAEHBERIEF AR
17.03AMIRIRIE X FTIE MBI Z2023F1H1H
MANRGTENBEZEE - MEER2HEHER
AR RERT EITE T R BB AR RE -

RARFEIARBBRN BRI ERZELEER
HETBME ANERRERN - siAEEREARE
1218 A B VE L O BB R KR AT B i T
5 DETRETREITHRNEE NEBRAR
AR EITAID BB % -

BB L ENIEA1.0087T 0 BINEEER
BEisk 2 AT AR EERIEERERTEE
AR B Z AN EEEN B R RS
21 KRR FAREER - BBTMARIEER
RERTEIM BRI - 1TFERESET - B
N2 DR A B R FAR L BEIRYURTE ¢ (i)
SRR EL B R TEE 2 B A& FH U
& K mEE -



5 O Dalipal Holdings Limited 3 ) 2% A R 2 &)

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Share Option Scheme does not contain any minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised. However,
at the time of granting of the options, the Board may specify any
such minimum period.

The vesting period of the options granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme is determinable by the directors and to be stated
in the offer to the grantee. The exercise period of such options to
be granted is also determinable by the directors, save that such
period must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. Unless
otherwise terminated by the shareholders in general meeting in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption which was 19 June 2019, after which
no further options will be granted or offered but the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to
the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any subsisting
options granted prior to the expiry of the 10-year period or
otherwise as may be require. As at the date of this report, the Share
Option Scheme had a remaining life of approximately 6 years.

The total number of the Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 150,000,000 Shares
(representing 10.01% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company as at the date of this report), unless shareholders’ approval
has been obtained. The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time.
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Details of the movements in the Company’s outstanding share EZEAREE - ANAGIRIEERES 205 B89 Mk
options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the Year  {T{FEEMIENE B BT
were as follows:

Outstanding During the Year Outstanding
Exercise asat Exercise Price REE asat 31
Category of period 1January  per Share December
participant Date of grant (Note 1) 2022 HKD Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 2022
20225 Bk R2022%
il 1818 fIfER 128318
SEEEH b=l (Wii1) WRATHE B 2R B Bt BXRR HAAHE
Employee 10 December 2021 From 30 November 2023 1,000,000 256 - - - - 1,000,000
€5 2015128108 1030 November 2031
2023F11A30HE
203151174308
10 December 2021 From 2 December 2024 to 1,000,000 256 - - - - 1,000,000
20214127108 30 November 2031
20245127202
203151174308
10 December 2021 From 1 December 2025 to 1,000,000 256 - - - - 1,000,000
20214127108 30 November 2031
20255127102
203151174308
10 December 2021 From 30 November 2026 to 1,000,000 256 - - - - 1,000,000
20214127108 30 November 2031
2026511A308Z
203151174308
Total &5t - - 4,000,000 - - - - - 4,000,000
Notes: Mt -

1. The vesting period of the share options under the Share Option Scheme is from 1. BRERTEIE T A MEREL R E R B B S
the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise period. BEETEEFRL -

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available MZAImEAH - ARBEREAZEEOE
for allotment and issue pursuant to the exercise of options granted A4 & 17 if A] 1 AC 3% M AT 0 IR ) BB
under the Share Option Scheme is 146,000,000 Shares, representing 146,000,000 % - #H & N A2 &l 2 #H/TIRAL
approximately 9.74% of the issued share capital of the Company. 9.74% -
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 19 June 2019, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted
by a resolution in writing passed by the then shareholders of the
Company to incentivise or reward eligible participants (i.e. any full-
time or part-time employee (including any executive Director) of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and any non-executive Directors
or proposed non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company
or any Invested Entity) for their contribution to the Group for the
purpose of motivating the eligible participants of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme to optimise their performance efficiency for the
benefit of the Group, and attract and retain or otherwise maintain
an on-going relationship with the eligible participants of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the long-term growth of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had
a remaining life of approximately 6 years.

There is no maximum entitlement limit for the participants as
specified in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The amount payable on acceptance of the grant is HK$1.00, which
will be payable on or before a prescribed acceptance date, and
any offer of option made by the Directors under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be open for acceptance for a period of up
to the earlier of 21 days from the relevant offer date or the latest
practicable date as specified in the Prospectus. For the avoidance of
doubt, no further option may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

There is no minimum period for which the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme must be held before it can
be exercised once the relevant share options have been vested on
the grantees, unless otherwise determined by the Directors. Please
refer to the below for further information about the applicable
vesting period and the exercise period of the options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

In relation to any options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, the exercise price is determined at the discretion of the
Directors, provided that it shall be not less than the nominal value
of a Share. Please refer below for further information about the
exercise price of the options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

BERXARMBENERESTS

H2019F6 8198 @ AR A& BRI EEBEER
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BaERsESE (ASERTMRREEER
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Upon terminated by the shareholders in general meeting in  JRERIRIE & /R A2 E AT BB AR 51 21 B0 (6 R FE AR
accordance with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, no B A& 4R M - BT @ BEWE T E bR -
further options will be offered but the terms of the Pre-IPO Share 1B & /R AR E RIERES 2IMIETEE S ER
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the extent &R MREFFR DR - FITFEEE 7 AISIEE
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any subsisting options — BEA AR E R EIET BN IR A eEENE
granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance #7571 B9 (E A IR A BE AR IEA K o

with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Movements of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share AFE - BEBE X AREERERESERE 2

Option Scheme during the Year were as follows: BEIRENSEINT
Outstanding  Exercise Price Outstanding
Exercise asat  perShare During the Year asat
Category of period 1 January HKD i 31 December
participant Date of grant (Note 1) 2022 (Note 2) Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 2022
R00E BRAE R00E
e 1818 ERER 128318
SazEh RiLBH (hit1) BRI (i) B B B BA% WA
Directors
3
Mr. Zhang 8 October 2019 From 9 November 2022 3,000,000 0477 - - - 1,500,000 1,500,000
REE 201910788 08 November 2026 (Note 3)
#0221 A9E (h#3)
E2026511788
8 October 2019 From 9 November 2023 3,000,000 0477 - - - - 3,000,000
201910A8H to 8 November 2026
12023511 A9
22026511 78R
8 October 2019 From 11 November 2024 3,000,000 041 - - - - 3,000,000
201910488 o8 November 2026
W04E1ANR
E2026%11 8
8 October 2019 From 10 November 2025 3,000,000 0477 - - - - 3,000,000
2019510A8H 0.8 November 2026
1202561174108
E)026%11 A8

12,000,000 - - - - 1,500,000 10,500,000
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Outstanding ~ Exercise Price Outstanding
Exercise asat  perShare During the Year asat
Category of period 1 January HKD FEE 31 December
participant Date of grant (Note 1) 2022 (Note 2) Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 2022
R00E SRR R00E
e 1818 ElET 12831H
SEEER RiLRH (1) WA (i) 2R Bfif B 2AN HATE
Ms. Gan 8 October 2019 From 9 November 2020 1,200,000 0477 - 1,200,000 - - -
Tat 2019E10A8H to 8 November 2025 (Note 5)
2020511797 (Hits)
E225%511 A8
8 October 2019 From 9 November 2022 2,400,000 0477 - - - 1,200,000 1,200,000
201910888 o8 November 2025 (Note 3)
1202251198 (h#3)
E225%11 A8
8 October 2019 From 9 November 2023 2,400,000 0477 - - - - 2,400,000
2019E10A8H 0.8 November 2025
12023511798
E)025%11A8A
8 October 2019 From 11 November 2024 2,400,000 0417 - - - - 2,400,000
2019%10A8H 0.8 November 2025
W04E11ANA
E)25%511 48R
8,400,000 - - - - 1200000 6,000,000
Employee
&
Mr. Bai 8 October 2019 From 9 November 2020 1,500,000 0477 - - - - 1,500,000
BEE Noted) 2019510488 to 8 November 2025
R2020511A9R
E225%511A8H
8 October 2019 From 9 November 2022 3,000,000 0477 - - - 1,500,000 1,500,000
201910788 t0 8 November 2025 (Note 3)
12022511 A9 (h##3)
Z2025% 11788
8 October 2019 From 9 November 2023 3,000,000 0477 - - - - 3,000,000
2019510A8H to 8 November 2025
2023511797
E2025%11A8A
8 October 2019 From 11 November 2024 3,000,000 0477 - - - - 3,000,000
201910488 to 8 November 2025
N0UENANA
E)25%11 A8
10,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000 9,000,000

Total #5f 30,900,000 -

1,200,000 - 4200000 25,500,000




Notes:

(1) The vesting period of the share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise period.
The vesting of the share options is subject to the fulfilment of certain vesting
conditions. Please refer to the Prospectus of the Company for further details of the
vesting conditions.

(2)  The exercise price represents 30% of the final offer price of each Share upon
Listing (i.e. HK$1.59).

(3) As one of the vesting conditions in relation to the financial performance of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 were not met, 50% of the share
options expected to be vested on 9 November 2022 has lapsed on the date when
the Board approved the final results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 (i.e. 21 March 2022).

(4)  Mr. Bai was the chief executive officer of our Group when the options were first
granted to him on 8 October 2019, he has ceased to be the chief executive of
the Group with effect from 4 April 2022 but remained as the general manager of
Dalipal Pipe.

(5) The weighted average closing share price immediately before the dates on which
the share options were exercised was HK$2.10 per share.

Except for the options which have lapsed or exercised under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme as set out above, no other share options
have been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2022.

As one of the vesting conditions in relation to the financial
performance of the Group for the Year were not met, 50% of the
share options granted to Mr. Zhang, Ms. Gan and Mr. Bai expected
to be vested on 9 November 2023 have lapsed on the date when
the Board approved the final results of the Group for the Year (i.e.
21 March 2023). Accordingly, the total number of Shares which may
be allotted and issued upon exercise of all the outstanding options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of
this report was 21,300,000 Shares, representing approximately
1.42% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of this
report.
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SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company has adopted the Share Award Plans on 31 May 2022
(the “Adoption Date"”). The purposes of the Share Award Plans
are to (i) recognise and reward the contribution of certain eligible
participants to the growth and development of the Group and to
give incentives thereto in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Plans, the Share Incentive Committee
which as at the date of this report, comprises of Mr. Meng, Mr. Guo
and Mr. Cheng, may, at its power and authority from the Board,
select any eligible participant to participate in the Share Award Plans
and make an award of Shares (the “Awards”) to them from time
to time. Eligible participants under the Connected Persons’ Share
Award Plan are directors (excluding all non-executive Directors
including independent non-executive Directors) and chief executives
of the Group and eligible participants under the Non-Connected
Persons’ Share Award Plan are any full-time employees of Group
who are not connected persons of the Company.

Subject to any early termination in accordance with the rules of
the Share Award Plans, the Share Award Plans shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing from 31 May 2022,
being the Adoption Date. After the expiry of such 10-year term, no
further awards may be made but the rules of the Share Award Plans
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to any Awards made prior thereto and the administration of
the trust property held by the trustees. As at the date of this report,
the Share Award Plans have a remaining life of over nine years.

According to the Share Award Plans, the Award Shares shall
principally be (i) existing Shares as may be purchased by the trustees
on the Stock Exchange or off the market; (i) such Shares as may be
allotted or issued to the Trustee as a holder of Shares, whether by
way of scrip dividend or otherwise; and (iii) such Shares which any
person or company recommended by the Company may irrevocably
donate or transfer to or irrevocably vest or caused to be vested in
the trustees to be held upon trusts.

The Board or the Share Incentive Committee may, after having
regard to all relevant circumstances and affairs of the Group
(including without limitation the Group’s business and operational
conditions, its business plans and cashflow requirements currently
and in the near future,) from time to time cause to be paid to the
trustees from the Company’s resources such amount of money
which may be utilised by the trustees to purchase Shares which will
constitute the shares pool.

B {2 R bt &

AAFE 202295 A31 BERME (D ZENEHE
([8R& B 1) - Btn ZENET 818 ()5 T R EERE
FEERSEEUAEBRERERELNE
Bt WRERSIEESEAS B RSEE R NES
HEERBEREDN  Mi)BAEBNE—SERE
Wl EWAA ©

RIBR A R E - RO BB Z B (RAHRE
BEEE&RESE - FBRENKELE) AT TRIZE
HEFER T 2RI LERKEEMSERSH
H(TEBEMRINZEE) 2R R &
W AR EE B i) 2R ([ 52 R |) - BEE A LRt
HETEHETNAERAR2EERARENE
E(MREMAEFNTES (BB IFNTE
) RRRHITHRAR - MIEREA T 22E)
EIETHAERALT2RERAEBEMN2BIE
B(WIARFRMEAL)

B IR R AR (D 22BN AT B3R A E IR R AR - BRI
MR EIN BN BB RMNHE202265H31H
HBEF10MF « MR ZI10F BRI EME N5 —
SYERE A EEED - MR BB T EIR BN A S
RN RAER - LAME R IE i A 1E L 8 ({7 228
HREMRZAABBAMSERAME - REA®RS
B+ & BN SR TR F HIBBOF o

RIBR D ZRDRT &) - BB DEZROXZFEAR
RERBE R FTSIBINE B MR AN ¢ (NZFEARE
R EEE AR BEERLE BTN (T
BB EMITR) ¢+ (i) AR BB EM
AL RIATRET AT IR IE G S E T FEA
AR EBRARBN I TEATENR

T/'\ °

REt M RERBEARARESEH (BB ETR
RAR BT KB ER - HIRE R AR
MEBFEILBRSRERFT R  EFLBN
HEZ B TRAUARRERAZFTEAX
NEFEARBERHREBEERRN FEHR
A BEB A RIMRREFA S AR -



The Share Incentive Committee may from time to time, at its
discretion, determine the earliest vesting date and other subsequent
date(s), if any, upon which the award Shares held by the trustees
upon trust and which are referable to a selected participant shall
vest in that selected participant.

The Share Incentive Committee may specify the condition(s) and/
or performance target(s) (if any) that must be duly fulfilled by the
relevant selected participant before any of the award Shares may
be transferred to and vested in such selected participant under an
award.

The maximum number of Shares to be purchased by the trustee for
the purpose of the Share Award Plans shall in aggregate not exceed
10% of the total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date
of the Share Award Plans (i.e. not exceeding 149,846,800 Shares)
throughout the term of the Share Award Plans.

The maximum number of Shares which may be subject to an award
or awards to a selected participant shall not in aggregate exceed, in
any continuous 12-month period, 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the Adoption Date throughout the term of the
Share Award Plans.

As at 31 December 2022, no share award has been awarded under
any of the Share Award Plans.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes”
and “Share Award Plans” in this report, during the Year, none
of the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, was a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to have any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or a connected entity of a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Controlling Shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
has any contract of significance (including contract of significance
for the provision of services) with the Company or its subsidiaries
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or were deemed
or taken to have an interest and/or short position in the Shares or
the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholders Nature of interest ordinary Shares shareholding
REREME ERME ZRERHAE BORER D
(Note 1) (Note 4)
(Bia£1) (Hfat4)
Ms. Luo Yumei Interest of spouse (Note 2) 706,353,600(L) 47.14%
BEB{LL BoiBiEes (H1at2)
Rosy Astral Beneficial owner 706,353,600(L) 47.14%
BE BERBEAA
Polaris Swift Limited Beneficial owner 417,822,000(L) 27.88%
ERBRAA EmmAA
Notes: et -

(1) The letter “L"” denotes the shareholder’s long position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company.

(2)  Ms. Luo Yumei is the spouse of Mr. Meng. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Luo Yumei
is deemed to be interested in the Shares of the Company which Mr. Meng is
interested in.

(3) The percentage represents the number of Shares or registered capital involved
divided by the number of the Company’s issued Shares as at 31 December 2022,
being 1,498,468,000.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates had interests in businesses which compete or are
likely to compete either directly or indirectly with the businesses of
the Group as are required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Covenantors, each being a Controlling Shareholder
of the Company, has entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in
favour of the Company on 19 June 2019, pursuant to which each of
the Covenantors has unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to
the Group that he/it will not, and will procure his/its close associates
(other than members of the Group) not to directly or indirectly
participate, acquire or hold any right or interest in or otherwise be
involved in or undertake any business (other than the business of
the Group) that directly or indirectly competes, or may compete, any
business which is in any respect in competition with or similar to or is
likely to be in competition with the business of the Group. For details
of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the Prospectus.

Each of the Covenantors has provided to the Company an annual
written confirmation in respect of his/its compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the compliance with the non-competition undertaking by
the Covenantors under the Deed of Non-Competition and are of
the view that such non-competition undertaking has been complied
with during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the material related party transactions made during
the Year is disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. The related party transactions set out in note 26(a)
and 26(b) to the consolidated financial statements also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and such transactions
are fully exempt from any announcement, reporting, annual review
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions.
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PROPERTY INTERESTS

The Group holds 100% interest in various land parcels located at
North of Nanshugang Road, Bohai New District, Cangzhou, Hebei
Province, the PRC with total site area of approximately 994,886.91
sg.m. for industrial usage for the Phase Two Expansion. The property
under construction comprises portion of land parcels with a total site
area of approximately 530,925 sq.m.. Construction for Phase Two
Expansion is in progress as at the date of this report. It is expected
that construction for Phase Two Expansion will be completed by
December 2024.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emolument policy for Directors’ remuneration are set up by the
Remuneration Committee, and the emoluments of the Directors are
mainly determined having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and the Share
Award Plans as incentives to Directors and eligible employees, details
of the scheme are set out in the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Share Award Plans” above in this report and in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s contribution to defined contribution
retirement schemes in the PRC and Hong Kong are set out in note
6(b) to the financial statements. Under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”), no forfeited contributions for the
MPF Scheme may be used by the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions as the contributions are fully vested to the
employee upon payments to the MPF Scheme. Under the retirement
benefit plan managed by the local government authority in the PRC
participated by the subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC,
no forfeited contributions will be used by the employer to reduce
the existing level of contributions.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, each Director
was entitled during the Year and remains entitled up to the date of
this report to the compensation out of the assets of the Company
for all losses or liabilities incurred due to the execution of his/her
duties or taken place related to such execution. The Company has
taken out the appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
policy for the Directors and officers of the Group as a means of
security.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Apart from the Share Option Scheme, the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Share Award Plans, there was not any subsisting
equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company during or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares of the
Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the minimum public float of 25% as required under the
Listing Rules as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
report.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for their reappointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Meng Fanyong
Chairman

21 March 2023
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The Company was listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 8
November 2019. The Company’s corporate governance situation
during the Year was as follows. This report complies with the
mandatory disclosure requirements as set out in part 1 of the CG
Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY
Corporate Culture

“Striving to be a first-class enterprise, serving first-class customers
and building a century-old brand” is the vision and mission of the
Group. Closely focusing on to achieve this vision and mission, the
Board and the management of the Company lead all employees
to always adhere to the basic value principle of “compliance with
laws and regulations, honesty and trustworthiness”. Continuous
improvement, uninterrupted innovation and courageous reform
are the inexhaustible driving force for the long-term development
of the Company. The Company advocates concentric thinking,
common goals and simultaneous actions to respond to changes
with openness and sharing, and always pursues “No Best, Only
Better”. The Group will achieve harmonious development among
shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and the society with
its steady growth and excellent performance.

Corporate Strategy

To achieve the goal the Company’s long-term development,
the Group focuses on its financial and ESG performance to
achieve sustainable development. The Group exercises stringent
management over the Group’s revenue, earnings, margins and
costs, return on capital and investments and other financing
activities. The Group’s core competitiveness in operational
excellence, product innovation and technology infrastructure is an
important measure for the Group to capture business opportunities
in various industries. In recent years, the Group has been increasing
its investment in research and development to facilitate innovation
and smart technology manufacturing. The Group is also committed
to maintaining a healthy liquidity and flexibility, maintaining a long-
term and balanced debt repayment profile, and actively managing
cash flows and working capital. A discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance is included in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this
annual report. The Group aims to create long-term value and
basis in achieving the Group’s objectives. Meanwhile, the Group is
increasingly focused on ESG and exploring the next steps to support
the global transition to a low-carbon economy by achieving net
zero emissions, good health and well-being of our employees, and
inclusion and diversity in the work-place. Further details about the
Group’s ESG initiatives and its key relationships with stakeholders
are disclosed in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to follow best practices in corporate
governance in order to enhance the Shareholders’ value by ensuring
standards in integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure.
The Company has emphasizes on a quality board, sound internal
controls, transparency and accountability to all Shareholders as its
corporate governance principles. The Company has adopted the
code provisions set out in part 2 of the CG Code as its own code
of corporate governance. During the Year, the Company was in
compliance with all relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions in terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiries with each of the Directors, all
Directors have confirmed to the Company that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
Year.

LEADERSHIP
Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategies
as well as reviewing the operation and financial performance of
the Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering overall strategies of the Group, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results,
recommendations on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant
operational and financial matters. The Board has delegated to
management the authority and responsibility for daily management
of the Group, implementation of strategies approved by the Board,
monitoring operating budgets, implementation of internal control
procedures, and ensuring compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and other rules and regulations. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.
Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
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Board Composition

During the Year, the Board consisted nine Directors with the
following composition:

Executive Directors

Mr. Meng Fanyong (chairman of the Board,
chairman of Nomination Committee)

Mr. Zhang Hongyao (vice-chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer since 4 April 2022)

Ms. Xu Wenhong (chairlady of ESG Committee (previously known
as Corporate Governance Committee) and the former Risk
Management Committee (combined into Audit Committee on
24 August 2022))

Mr. Meng Yuxiang

Ms. Gan Shuya

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Yin Zhixiang
(Re-designated from executive Director on 4 April 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Kaigi (chairman of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing (chairman of Audit and Risk Management
Committee (formed by the combination of the Audit Committee
and the Risk Management Committee on 24 August 2022) and
the former Audit Committee)

Mr. Cheng Haitao

To the best knowledge of the Company, except for Mr. Meng
being the father of Mr. YX Meng, none of the Board members have
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other. Such balanced Board is composed to ensure
strong independence existed across the Board. The composition of
the Board reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective
leadership. The biographical details of Directors are set out on
pages 20 to 28 under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” in this annual report.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

All of the Company’s independent non-executive Directors are
experienced and of high calibre. They are equipped with academic
and professional qualifications in either accounting, investment
or oil pipe production. With their experience gained from various
sectors, they provide strong support towards the effective discharge
of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent
non-executive Director has given an annual written confirmation
of his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and the Company considers that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Board at all times has met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Meng is the chairman of the Board who is responsible for
leading the efficient business development of the Group.

Mr. Bai was the chief executive officer of the Group who
is responsible for the overall administrative and operational
management of the Group until 4 April 2022. With effect from 4
April 2022, Mr. Bai ceased to be chief executive officer of the Group
and Mr. Zhang has been appointed as chief executive officer of the
Group in place of Mr. Bai.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is held accountable to the Company’s Shareholders
and stakeholders. It is responsible for the overall leadership and
control of the Company, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions
and performance, and is responsible for promoting the success of
the Company. The Board makes decisions on the strategies of the
Group in the best interests of the Group, and reserves its right of
decision all major matters relating to budgets, policy, strategies,
internal control, risk management, material transactions, financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company.
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All Directors have brought in precious and valuable business
insights, experience and knowledge to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. They are all provided with full and timely
access to information of the Company as well as access to contact
and services of the Company Secretary and senior management. In
order to ensure that independent views and inputs are available to
the Directors, the Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors have disclosed to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution of
each Director in performing his/her responsibilities to the Company.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

The Board understands that independent views and input are
vital elements to good corporate governance. The Company has
mechanisms in place to ensure independent views and input are
available to the Board, among others, (i) each individual directors
can access to the advice from the senior management and external
independent professional of the Company directly, when necessary;
and (ii) dedicated meetings between independent-non executive
Directors and chairman of the Board or external auditors had been
arranged for the independent non-executive Directors to express
their own views and raise any matters or irregularities which may
have impact on the Company and provide constructive advice
accordingly. The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness
of the mechanisms on an annual basis.

As at 31 December 2022, four Board Committees, namely the Audit
and Risk Management Committee (formed by way of combination
of the former Audit Committee and Risk Management committee
on 24 August 2022), the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and ESG Committee (formerly Corporate Governance
Committee), which are set up and delegated various responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of reference.

Through the chief executive officer of the Group whom the Board
has delegated authorities, the senior management of the Group
is provided with authority and responsibility for implementing
the decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily
operations and management of the Group.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EENEEEERRE
OF DIRECTORS

The CG Code provides that all Directors shall participate in  {PHEEASTARTE - 2EREEYEXRESEEE
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their 3% - ABSE R B EH MM MR - FERBSE
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board B2 EEALRTAFENBEIL THESESEY
remains informed and relevant. HEf o

All Directors have participated in continuous professional 28EFLHDRAEFEELERE - WERANAT
development and provided a record of training they received for  $2{HEARE RNATIEZEZIEIBEEE - RAER -
the Year to the Company. During the Year, each of the Directors &K EEFBEESEBRITRSLEE ARSI
participated in continuous professional development by reading ‘EE R ERIREIFEEEIXRE o

materials relating to the discharge of their duties and responsibilities

and regulatory updates.

Reading materials
relating to the discharge of
their duties and responsibilities
and regulatory updates

Name of Director FEEENM R EER
ExEH BITHBEREEUREEEN
Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Meng Fanyong v

=B NELRE

Mr. Zhang Hongyao v
SRALIBSE 4

Ms. Xu Wenhong v
R+

Mr. Meng Yuxiang v
BTFARE

Ms. Gan Shuya v/

Fatgp i+

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. Yin Zhixiang v
BRERESE A

Independent non-executive Directors

BYYITES

Mr. Guo Kaigi v
AR E

Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing v
Mr. Cheng Haitao v
BREE
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The Company has also continuously updated Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The CG Code stipulates that non-executive Directors shall be
appointed for a specific term subject to re-election at regular
intervals. The Articles of Association also stipulates that all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first annual general meeting of the company
after their appointment and that every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Each executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company, pursuant to which they have agreed to serve as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years beginning on 19 June
2022 (for Mr. Meng, Ms. Xu, Mr. YX Meng and Ms. Gan) or 1
January 2023 (for Mr. Zhang), which can be terminated by either
party by not less than three months written notice. The term of the
service contract will be automatically renewed and extended for
one year after the current term expires, until either party terminates
by giving written notice to the other party at least three months in
advance. The non-executive Director has been appointed with effect
from 4 April 2022 for fixed term of 3 years, and such appointment
can be terminated by either party by giving a written notice to the
other party at least 15 days in advance. Each independent non-
executive Director has been appointed for an initial term of two
years beginning on 19 June 2022, and can be terminated by either
party by giving a written notice to the other party at least 15 days
in advance. The term of office will be automatically renewed and
extended for one year after the expiry of the current term at that
time, until either party terminates by giving written notice to the
other party at least 15 days in advance.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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The appointment of all Directors is subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Company’s Articles
of Association. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, all Directors of the Company are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first
annual general meeting after his/her appointment. The procedures
and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lau Ying Kit is the Company Secretary of the Company
responsible for providing compliance and company secretarial
services to the Group and assisting the Group to cope with the
changing regulatory environment and to suit different commercial
needs.

Mr. Lau Ying Kit was appointed as the Company Secretary on 10
December 2021.

Mr. Lau undertook no less than 15 hours of professional training to
update their skills and knowledge for the Year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary on corporate governance and board practices and matters.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As at 31 December 2022, four Board Committees, namely the
Audit and Risk Management Committee (formed by way of the
combination of the former Audit Committee and Risk Management
committee on 24 August 2022), the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the ESG Committee (formerly Corporate
Governance Committee), are established for the roles of overseeing
particular aspects of the Group under defined terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Board Committees are provided on the
Company'’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. A list of the
Chairman and members of each Board Committee is set out under
“Corporate Information” on page 3 of this report.
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Audit and Risk Management Committee (formerly
Audit Committee, combined with Risk Management
Committee on 24 August 2022)

Prior to the combination with the Risk Management Committee on
24 August 2022, the Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong (as committee chairman),
Mr. Guo and Mr. Cheng.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the
Board during the relevant period aligned with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor; reviewing, in draft form,
the interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group and
significant financial reporting judgements contained therein; and
overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting system, and the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. At the
meetings, the committee reviewed the Group's financial statements,
external auditor KPMG's audit plan and quotation, and the terms of
reference of the committee. The Audit Committee has also reviewed
the Group’s financial results and monitored the audit process
with the attendance of the external auditors before reporting and
submitting to the Board for their approval.

After the formation of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
on 24 August 2022 by way of combination of the Risk Management
Committee to the Audit Committee, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee remains to comprise of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong (as chairman), Mr. Guo
and Mr. Cheng.

The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee adopted by the Company are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code, and are currently made available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is mainly responsible
for performing the original functions of each of the former Audit
Committee and Risk Management Committee as set out above in
this section and the section headed “Risk Management Committee”
in this report.

No meeting was held by the Audit and Risk Management Committee
during the Year.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Meng (as
committee chairman), Mr. Guo and Mr. Cheng.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted by
the Board are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code, and are currently made available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Board composition, structure, size and diversity of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
nomination, appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
CEO and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the
Company. For more information on the Company’s policy on board
diversity, please refer to the section headed “Board Diversity Policy”
in this report.

The Board has adopted written policy for the nomination of new
Directors. In evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship,
the criteria to be taken into account when considering the suitability
of a candidate shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to the
diversity of the Board as well as the effective carrying out by the
Board of its responsibilities.

The Board has adopted procedures for nomination of new Directors,
pursuant to which (i) the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
Director and the biographical information of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the criteria set out in the written policy
adopted for the nomination of new Directors; (ii) if the process yields
one or more desirable candidates, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should rank them by order of preference based on the
needs of the Company and reference check of each candidate; (iii)
the Nomination Committee should then recommend to the Board to
appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship; and (iv) for any
person that is nominated by a Shareholder for election as a Director
at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria set out in the written policy adopted for the nomination of
new Directors to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.
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To ensure a proper understanding of the operations and
businesses of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations (including
the Listing Rules), the newly appointed Directors will be provided
with a comprehensive, tailored and formal induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
to discuss and review the suitability regarding Board size, structure
and combination, in light of the Company’s business and strategic
direction.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-
executive directors and one executive Director, namely Mr. Guo (as
committee chairman), Mr. Cheng and Mr. YX Meng.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted
by the Board are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code and are currently made available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration packages for all Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under
code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of part 2 of the CG Code to make
recommendations to the Board on remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held three meetings
to discuss and review the Company’s remuneration structure and
amount of remuneration for the Directors and chief executive.
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The emolument payable to Directors and senior management
will depend on their respective contractual terms under service
agreement/appointment letter and is fixed by the Board with
reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee,
the performance of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and a
Share Option Scheme on 19 June 2019, and the Share Award Plans
on 31 May 2022. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is to recognise and reward the contribution of certain Directors and
senior management of the Group to the growth and development
of the Group and the Listing and the purpose of the Share Option
Scheme and the Share Award Plans are to enable the Group to
grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution of the Group. Details of the share option schemes
and the Share Award Plans are set out in the Report of the Board of
Directors.

Range of Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration, which included share-based payments, of the
senior management of the Company for the Year, by band is set out
below:
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Remuneration Band individuals
FrEEE AH
HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £%1,000,000% 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L2 1,500,000/ 7T -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 L2 2,000,000/%8 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7C%2,500,00078 7T 1
2

ESG Committee (formerly Corporate Governance
Committee, renamed on 24 August 2022)

The ESG Committee and the former Corporate Governance
Committee consists of one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Xu (as committee chairlady),
Mr. Guo, and Mr. Wong.

The terms of reference of the former Corporate Governance
Committee adopted by the Board are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the relevant times. The
Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for performing,
and has performed, the functions set out in the CG Code.
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The Corporate Governance Committee is mainly responsible for
proposing applicable principles of corporate governance and
reviewing and determining corporate governance policies to
maintain the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance
and non-financial internal control systems, thereby improving
and ensuring the Group’s corporate Governance practices meet
high standards. During the Year, two meetings of the Corporate
Governance Committee were held to discuss and review the
corporate governance report prepared by the Company regularly.

Upon the renaming of the Corporate Governance Committee to
ESG Committee on 24 August 2022, the Company adopted a the
new terms of reference of the ESG Committee, the terms of which
are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code and are
currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The ESG Committee is mainly responsible for performing the original
function of the former Corporate Governance Committee as set out
above in this section, and the overseeing of the Group's achievement
of ESG-related objectives and monitoring the relevant performance
of the Group and its ESG risk management and internal control
system, and the reviewing of the Group’s compliance with the CG
Code and the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

No meeting was held by the ESG Committee during the Year.

Risk Management Committee (combined into Audit
Committee on 24 August 2022)

Prior to 24 August 2022, the Risk Management Committee consists
of one executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Xu (as committee chairlady), Mr. Guo, and
Mr. Cheng.

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee adopted
by the Board during the relevant period are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.
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The Risk Management Committee is mainly responsible for
determining the overall objectives of risk management, approving
strategies and monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of
the construction and operation of the risk management system,
understanding and grasping the major risks and risk management
status, and approving major risk response plans and risks manage
organization structure and its responsibility plan, and approve the
annual report of risk management and the audit report of annual
risk management supervision and evaluation. During the Year, two
meetings of the Risk Management Committee were held to discuss
and review the internal audit and risk management report prepared
by the Company regularly.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance and hence the purpose of the Board
Diversity Policy aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity of
Directors. The Company considered diversity of board members can
be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge.

The current Board is considered well-balanced in terms of the
aforesaid characteristics, and of a diverse mix appropriate for
the business of the Group. With two female Directors, it is also
considered that gender diversity has been achieved in respect of the
Board.

In order to achieve gender diversity in Board succession, the
Company would also put further emphasis on gender balance and
gender equality in future recruitments and identification of potential
candidates, so that sufficient potential candidates of different
gender are in place to fill the vacancy of the Board, when necessary.

During the year, in respect of the gender diversity at workforce level
(including senior management), the female representation is about
18.1% of the total workforce. Given the business of the Group
remain heavily reliant on machines operation and manual labour, it
is expected equality of gender ratio will be difficult to achieve within
the Group. However, the Group will still strive to enhance gender
diversity (in terms of gender ratio) across all levels of the workforce
so far as reasonably practicable. The Company will apply the same
measures as taken in achieving gender diversity in Board succession
as mentioned in the section headed “Board Diversity Policy” in this
report to achieve gender diversity at workforce level.
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The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually on
the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
recommend candidate(s) to the Board for adoption. The Company
aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will also review the Board Diversity
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness
annually. After assessing the suitability of the Directors’ skills and
experience relevant to the Company’s business, the Nomination
Committee considered that the existing Board was suitably qualified
with professional backgrounds and/or equipped with extensive
expertise for the purposes of providing direction to and oversight
of the Group's strategic and business in achieving its objectives.
Accordingly, no measurable objectives has been set at present.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company planned in advance four scheduled Board meetings
a year at approximately quarterly intervals in order to ensure that
all Directors could plan in advance their availability to attend the
scheduled Board meetings. Additional meetings will be held as and
when required. During the regular meetings of the Board, the Board
reviewed the operation and financial performance, and reviewed
and approved the annual and interim results of the Group.

During the Year, the Board has held forteen meetings. All Directors
were given the opportunity to include any matter on the agenda of
regular board meetings, and had sufficient time to review in advance
documents and data related to matters to be discussed at board
meetings.

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member are entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials and have unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and
have the liberty to seek external professional advice upon reasonable
request.
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MEETING ATTENDANCE RECORDS

During the Year, three audit committee, two nomination committee,
three remuneration committee, two corporate governance
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committee, two risk management committee, fourteen board REBREERZES  UAEET2SENINEEAE
meetings and one annual general meeting had been held. The F A& - KAAFTESHESFBWOT :
Company’s Director attendance is set out below:
Corporate Risk Annual
Audit  Nomination Remuneration  governance management Board General
Directors committee committee committee committee committee Meeting Meeting
B Re Hi bRER ARER S
gz ZE® ZE® ZE® ZE® ZE® e BFAS
Mr. Meng mEE - 22 - - - 14/14 n
Mr. Zhang RAEE - - - - - 14/14 171
Ms. Xu frat - - - 22 22 14/14 1/1
Mr. YX Meng AFIEE - - 33 - - 14/14 171
Ms. Gan Tt - - - - - 14/14 111
Mr. Yin Bk - - - - - 14114 "
Mr. Guo Brk 33 2/2 33 212 212 14114 "
Mr. Wong FhE 33 - - 2/2 - 14114 n
Mr. Cheng i 33 2/2 33 - 212 1414 "
Shareholders meeting BREXE
The Board is responsible for maintaining a continuous contact with Z S &8 H4&FERRNHEYF  LERER

shareholders, in particular communicating with shareholders through
annual general meetings or other general meetings, and encourages
shareholders to participate. One general meeting was held during
the Year.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fee for 2022 annual audit service and non-
audit services (including interim review and tax consulting) fees paid/
payable to the Company’s auditor, KPMG, was RMB2.2 million and
RMB1.0 million, respectively.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy pursuant to which
the Shareholders will be entitled to receive any dividend the
Company declares. Pursuant to the dividend policy, dividend shall
be approximately 40% of the profit of the Group for the particular
financial year and the payment and amount of any dividend will
be at the discretion of the Board and will depend on the Group’s
general business condition and strategies, cash flows, financial
results, capital requirements and taxation conditions, interests of
respective Shareholders, statutory restrictions, and other factors that
the Board deems relevant.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.04 (2021: HK$0.03) per ordinary Share for the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the results and cash flows of the Group for the
year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the accounts on a going concern
basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The statement of the independent auditor of the
Company about their responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report from page
182 to 184 of this report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the
design and implementation of internal controls and risk management
which covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk
management (including ESG risk) of the Company, as well as
continuous monitoring the effectiveness of such internal controls
and risk management. The Board has delegated such responsibility
to the management of the Company. The management, under the
supervision of the Board, has established an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the
Group.

During the Year, the Audit and the Risk Management Committee
(formed by the combination of the Risk Management Committee
into Audit Committee on 24 August 2022) reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal controls and risk management matters
that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee also consider the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting function, as well as their
training programmes and budgets.
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The Company has established a independent internal audit
department. The Group has also engaged an independent
professional firm to conduct a review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems. The
independent professional firm engaged has performed a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems covering the Year. The review covered all key controls and
based on inquiry, observation and analytical review procedures
supplemented by testing of transactions, reports and reconciliation.
The internal audit department has reviewed the review result
submitted by the independent professional firm and recommended
the same be submitted to the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee for their consideration. The overall opinion
on the internal control and risk management systems of the Group
are satisfactory.

For the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board has
considered and is satisfied that the internal control system in place,
which covers all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management (including ESG risks)
functions, is reasonably effective and adequate.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

Certain measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include the following:

e The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

e All employees are required to strictly adhere to the employment
terms regarding the management of confidential information.

In addition, all employees are required to strictly adhere to
the rules and regulations regarding the management of inside
information, including all employees who, because of his/her office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of inside information
in relation to the Company, and are required to comply with the
Model Code.
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The Group complies with the requirements of the SFO and the
Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as
soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any
of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is
fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures that the information
is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose
the information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure
that information contained in the announcements or circulars of
the Company is not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false
or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company has established an internal audit department. The
internal audit department is highly independent and is responsible
for evaluating the effectiveness of the Company'’s risk management
and internal control systems, and supervising the management
to continuously improve the areas of risk management (including
ESG risks) and internal control. The internal audit department
examines key issues related to accounting practices and all major
internal control issues, and provides investigation results and
recommendations for improvement directly to the audit committee.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at
the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an EGM.
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Shareholders to convene an EGM

The Eligible Shareholder(s) shall at all times have the right, by written
Requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

Eligible Shareholder(s) must deposit the Requisition signed by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong, which for the time being is at Room
4006, 40 Floor, Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, and state in the Requisition
that the Board is required to convene an EGM to deal with any
matters specified in the Requisition. The relevant general meeting
shall be held within two months after the submission of the relevant
request.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM, the agenda proposed
to be included and the details of the business(es) proposed to be
transacted at the EGM. The Requisition must be signed by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and the
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited. If the Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM within
two months and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) at an EGM after the deposit of the
Requisition.

Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders shall mail a written inquiry to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong (Address: Room 4006, 40 Floor,
Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place, Hong Kong), or email to
ir@dalipal.com, stating the Company Secretary as the recipient.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director
of the Company for election as a Director, the Shareholder must
deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) to the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17 Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary.
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The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact information of
the Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding, the full name of the
person proposed for election as a Director, including the person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules,
and signed by the Shareholder concerned (other than the person
proposed to be elected). The Notice must also be accompanied by
a letter of consent signed by the person proposed to be elected on
his/her willingness to be elected as a Director.

The period for lodgement of the Notice and the letter of consent will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
by the Company of the general meeting convened for election of
Directors and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which the Notice to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Nomination
Committee of the Company and the Board to consider to include
the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting proposing such
person to be elected as a Director.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

A Shareholder should lodge a written Proposal with his/her/its
detailed contact information at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong, with a copy of the Proposal served to the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong at their respective address
and contact details set out on page 5 of this annual report.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder concerned at
the general meeting varies according to the nature of the Proposal as
follows:

(1) Notice of not less than twenty-one clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general meeting of the
Company; and

(2) Notice of not less than fourteen clear days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company.
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VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions set out
in the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company will be voted by poll.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Amendments had been made to the Articles of Association of the
Company in order to, among others, (i) allow a general meetings to
be held as an electronic meeting (also referred to as virtual general
meeting) or a hybrid meeting; (ii) bring the Articles of Association in
line with amendments made to the Listing Rules and the applicable
law and procedures in the Cayman Islands; and (iii) make certain
minor housekeeping amendments to the Articles of Association for
the purpose of clarifying existing practice and making consequential
amendments in line with the amendments to the Articles of
Association. Details of the amendments are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 27 April 2022.

The amended and restated Memorandum of Association and Articles
of Association adopted by a special resolution of the Company at a
general meeting held on 27 June 2022 is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings
and other general meetings, as effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
allowing investors to understand the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Board endeavour to make themselves available
at the annual general meeting to meet shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Shareholders’ communication policy of the Company, which
contains the channels for Shareholders to communicate their
views on matters related to the Company, and steps taken by the
Company to solicit and understand the views of the Shareholders
and stakeholders is set out as follows:

— The Board shall maintain on-going dialogue with Shareholders
and the investment community;
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—  Communication methods between the Company, Shareholders
and investment community include the followings:

(). raising of enquiries by Shareholders to the Company
through the contact provided by the Company;

(ii). provision of bilingual corporate communications by the
Company;

(iii). publication of information and materials and business
updates of the Company on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company;

(iv). holding of Shareholders’ meetings; and

(v). any other activities conducted to facilitate communication
the relevant stakeholders.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ communication policy of the Company for the
Year. On the basis that (i) a general meeting was held to reach out
to individual Shareholders and stakeholders to encourage their
participation in the matters of the Company and to raise enquiries
and (ii) all bilingual announcements, circulars, annual and interim
reports, and voluntary announcements on business updates of the
Group are made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company to provide Shareholders and stakeholders with
easy and timely access to the latest development of the Group, the
Board considered that its Shareholders’ communication policy was
effectively implemented during the Year.

The AGM of the Company will be held on Tuesday, 23 May 2023,
with notice of the AGM sent to the shareholders not less than 21
clear days and not less than 20 clear Business Days before the date
of AGM.

The Company maintains a website at www.dalipal.com where
up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are made available for
public access.
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About this Report

Dalipal Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”
or “we") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) is pleased to present its fourth Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview
of the Group’s management of significant issues affecting the
operation, including ESG issues.

Reporting Period

This Report describes the Group’s initiatives and performance
regarding the environmental and social aspects during the period
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting
Period”).

Report Scope

Considering the materiality of revenue generated to the Group, this
Report covers all subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong and Hebei
Province of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), whose core
business is principally engaged in the development, manufacture
and sale of Qil Country Tubular Goods (“OCTG"), new energy pipes
and special seamless steel pipes. The Group will continuously assess
the impacts of its business on key ESG aspects, which are included in
this Report.

Reporting Basis

This Report is prepared in accordance with the Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements of the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” (the "ESG Guide") as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and the “comply or explain” provisions contained therein. This
is to enable stakeholders to better understand the progress and
development direction in respect of the operation and sustainable
development of the Group. Specific key performance indicators
("KPIs") that the Group considers to be material were disclosed
during the Reporting Period. The Group will continue to optimize
and improve the disclosure of KPIs. The final chapter of this
Report is accompanied by a complete index to facilitate readers’
understanding of the Report in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide.
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In preparing the Report, the Group follows the following four

reporting principles:

Principle

A

Definition

T

FERmELEIET - AEBEREIA T WEERFRR -

Measures

i

Materiality

B2

Quantitative

g1t

Balance

i

Consistency

—EUE

The issues covered in the Report should reflect
significant economic, environmental and
social impacts of the Group, or be in a scope
that affects the stakeholders’ evaluation and
decision-making.
WEPTREN ZEE R ERHLE  RI5
MHENEATE IR ERNENE IR
TER) RS o

The Report should disclose KPIs in a measurable
manner.

s AR AR 2 R0 77 SR RRBHA 1R

The Report should reflect the sustainability
performance of the Group as a whole in an
impartial manner.

BEEN R EHRRANEE RGN HE
HRRR -

The Group should confirm that the
methodologies for preparing the ESG reports
are consistent with those used in previous
years, and state any revised reporting
methodology or indicate other relevant factors
that may affect meaningful comparisons.

REBEEERRERE HEREAMEN
TEREBEFEMAE R SREEERT
BVE R A BRARUER - XHFTAGH
EEEREYLNEMMBEREE -

R

Through various communication channels, the
Group understands stakeholders’ expectations
of the Company’s sustainable development
for identifying key ESG issues for the Group.

AEEBBSEEBEENTHRIFHELAN
NERAFEZER T EOTEE - LALERIE
AEEZHEENBRER -

The data in this Report is disclosed and calculated
in accordance with the requirements of Appendix
27 of the ESG Guide, Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs, and Appendix
3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs to disclose
the Group's environmental and social KPIs in a
quantifiable manner wherever possible.
RBENBFEIENIRIT - L@ RERRE
185l - 8RR B E RURIRE 55
Nt = 2 ARERUERERES| INE
SKIRE NETE - BARAEBE A A REARE
ERREMT S RERAERIER -

The Group impartially presents environmental,
social and governance issues that significantly
impact the Group’s business, including the
achievements, impacts, challenges, etc., and
formulates a response plan.

REB M MEH2RB R EEEXBFHEEKR
TENRE  HehEREE  EhERHE
R~ B - EREVKEE - WHIE R

g -

The scope of the Report is consistent with the
Report presented in the previous year, and the
use of consistent statistical methods allows for
meaningful future comparisons of ESG data.
If the methodology used and the scope of the
report are changed, we will explain it in the
notes for stakeholders’ reference.
WEEHERAF B WER B
= RIRE Mg RERBBARAIIERER
EWLE o WA AL - [EREE kR
BRUEREE BT EM T RS
MERZ -



Annual Report 2022 5 8 7

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Access to the Report

This Report has been prepared in both English and Chinese
and uploaded to the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website (http://www.dalipal.com). In the event of any conflict or
inconsistency between the English and Chinese versions, the Chinese
version shall prevail.

About the Group

The Group is mainly engaged in the research and development
("R&D") and manufacturing of OCTG, of which the business of
Dalipal Pipe Co., Ltd. began in 1998 and was headquartered in
Cangzhou, Hebei Province, China. The Group has been committed to
R&D, manufacturing and providing integrated professional services,
focusing on the development of an intelligent manufacturing
enterprise for OCTG. The Group was listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on November 8, 2019, to meet future business development needs.

The Group attaches great importance to innovation-driven
development, continuously promotes cleaner production, green
manufacturing and intelligent services, and strives to build core
competitiveness and sustainable development capacity, with special
pipelines for petroleum. In response to the national “Carbon Peaking
and Neutrality Goals”, the Group actively promotes the low-carbon
transformation through the formulation of a science-based action
plan, striving to achieve carbon peak by 2030 and carbon neutrality
by 2050. In 2022, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Group
established the ESG Committee. It launched the “Carbon Reduction
Action Implementation Plan “and formulated a distinct theme of
“Strong, Green, Intelligent and Innovative” in the framework of the
sixth Five-Year Plan, focusing on six development priorities, such as
“product planning, green development, technological innovation,
management innovation, intelligent manufacturing and international
operation”, to implement our development philosophy, building the
strategic direction for the Company’s development in the next five
years.

RE HEREBHRS
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Awards and Honors in 2022 2022 F ERIFREE
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Sustainability Governance

The Board is fully responsible for and oversees the Group’s ESG
strategies and reporting. The Board is responsible for leading the
identification, assessment and determination of ESG-related risks of
the Group. Meetings were organized from time to time to discuss
ESG-related matters, and ensure that appropriate and effective ESG
risk management, internal control and improvement systems are
in place to formulate effective risk response plans and implement
sustainable initiatives. For details on corporate governance,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report 2022. In addition, the Group has appointed Riskory
Consultancy Limited as the professional consultant to provide us
with ESG and sustainability consulting services to help promote
sustainable development.

~— -_—
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Risks and Opportunities Identification

Risks
=B

RE HEREBHRS

JEE| e ER 44438 38

Opportunities
B

In terms of the environment, extreme weather events
occur frequently in many places, and climate change
has attracted unprecedented attention from the world.
Combating climate change has increasingly become a
topic of concern for the sustainable development of all
countries (regions).

EIREAH - ZHim K REHEE - RIKE(LRIFTR
BHSIEE AT - EFHREF(CE RN ARG
BT ERAYNEE

China’s solemn commitment to the world of “carbon
peak” and “carbon neutrality” of carbon dioxide
emissions indicates that China’s energy consumption
control policy and environmental protection policy will be
gradually tightened, and the government’s control and
supervision will continue to increase.

R B[Rt SR ARt — B CRR PR AT B I IR FR R A IR0
B B 1RAGE - RS E R E R REREE BB R MR BRI
REFINE - BREENEMEE DEIETEIK -

External regulators, investors and customers are paying
more and more attention to ESG, driving the Company to
innovate and make continuous progress in environmental
protection, green production, clean energy, and emission
reduction technologies.

SVEBERE AR  REENEF FYESGRERL - BFL
AIAERRRE  SKEBLE  BRER  BERMES®E
TETRIFT - TEED -

Facing the energy industry, in order to ensure national
energy security, domestic oil and gas development will
continue to increase, and unconventional oil and gas
and offshore oil and gas resources will gradually become
the main battlefield of future oil and gas exploration
and development. The application of supercritical and
ultra-supercritical technologies in the energy industry is
normalized, and the development and transportation
of new energy sources such as shale gas, shale oil,
heat insulation, thermal recovery, combustible ice for
marine, geothermal, and wind power will provide rare
development opportunities for the industry.
NRHEMEERITE  RRERREREE - BAHER
BENEHSREMA - R FHRANEFHRE RS E
B R ARROH REN R BB E 8IS - BERTTRBRA -
HBEEARNERTERE  BE55R - B5H R &
B OBFRTMK - R REEHEROMEERS
RITERIRMHEBSONERMSE
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Risks
BB

Opportunities
Hia

In terms of governance, countries are committed to
strengthening and standardizing ESG information
disclosure and improving the transparency of ESG fund
products and corporate ESG performance, so as to
combat “greenwashing”.

HERTH - SEEEARIGRRBESGE B WERLE -
RITESGR S E M AP XESGREUMNBRAE © EMiTE
[RARJTTR

The epidemic has brought uncertain risks to the
company’s normal operation and management.

RIEHRRIERLEBIRERT AT ERR -

Board Diversity

I I )

-~ o~
CiCICN

BYATESAL

Independent Executive Director 3 3 . 3 CyO

The major adjustment of the industrial structure and
the strong alliance between large enterprises will
significantly improve the regional industrial concentration,
create favourable conditions for the Company to
achieve lightweight expansion through mergers and
reorganization, and is a major opportunity for the
transformation and upgrading of enterprises.
FEFEEBHERFE - AEEZRENRBES - AR
REEHEXETE  RARBBRITELAERESL
EERBBEN IR - REEBATHRNEREE -

The state continues to lean towards innovation-driven
by vigorously supporting high-tech enterprises to
increase scientific research, encouraging the use of new
technologies, new formats, new models, and vigorously
transforming and upgrading traditional industries,
providing firm policy support for the Company’s
development.
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Board ESG Governance Structure

The Group attaches great importance to ESG and strives to
continuously enhance corporate social responsibility in its business
processes and integrates the sustainable development policy into
the Group’s business development blueprint to better respond to
the changing needs of the ever-changing society. In view of this,
during the Reporting Period, the Board selected and appointed
committees members by the Board from amongst the Directors of
the Company to establish an ESG Committee (the “Committee”)
and an ESG Working Group to formulate annual action plans and
monitor the implementation of ESG-related strategies among
various departments. We have also formulated the “Environmental
and Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” to integrate ESG into
our Five-Year Plan, business management and various targets, to
ensure the effective operation of the company’s ESG governance
system and comprehensively improve the ability to perform ESG
responsibilities. At the same time, in order to improve the level of
management governance, the company’s directors and supervisors
continue to learn, continuously improve their ability to perform their
duties, loyalty, diligently and prudently.

The Board
EEg

ESG Committee
ESGZEE

In 2022, our management mainly participated in the “Listing
Rules Implementation Brief”, “Corporate Governance Guidelines
for Board and Directors”, “Leadership Role and Accountability in
ESG”, “Climate Information Disclosure Guidelines”, “Focus on
Board Diversity and Inclusion”, “ESG Thematic Training” and other
thematic training. Moreover, we have added and regularly updated
the ESG page on our website, including subpages “ESG Reports”
and “ESG Actions”.

RE HEREBHRS
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The Committee regularly arranges meetings to maintain the ZE8e@FHZHeH @ WRERNEERNESGER
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG management practices and reports ~ EHHAERM - WNREBAEESSERBRNESS
to the Board after each Committee meeting to enhance and ensure  [E%f @ AR S MEERAEENESGEREDS
that the Group’s ESG management meets a high standard of its &% - HE—@BEBIEETER :

general practices including but not limited to:

To develop and review the Group’s ESG-related objectives, strategies, risks, opportunities, measures, policies,
management approaches and practices, as well as to make recommendations to the Board;

HE MARS AR EEARESGH B 1R - 5KA% - Efg - #8 - i - BER - BESHEER - UMEFSRD
b=

To oversee the Group’s achievement of ESG-related objectives and monitor the performance of the Group;

EEASBESGHEE B RN ERBEARERAKENRR -

To review, assess and verify the disclosure, disclosure process, accuracy and materiality in the corporate
governance report and the ESG report according to the Reporting Principles;

RIBRERER  FAEARBEEEREBRE MESGREANNKE - HKEBIRAEREMEZE |

To make sure that the Group has appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control systems,
monitor and review ESG trends and responsive measures; and
HRAEEREENARNESCAREEMAMBEIERS » BB RRFESGBE MABMEE T % -

To review and monitor the training and continuous professional development (including those related to ESG
and corporate governance) of Directors and senior management of the Group.

B MERAEEEERSREBABRIILHEEXER (BRAEESGREEE ARSI MIFEEE
ER) °
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Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to upholding business ethics and believes
that the integrity and commitment of its employees is one of the
crucial factors to success. The Group strictly complies with relevant
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China ({#F# AR
MEIRTIEE#HFE)), the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({FZE AR EFBE R %EEEE) ), Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China (/& ARILMEIAIE)),
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance ({7 - FEEZ &) ) and other
national or regional laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not seriously violate any
laws and regulations relating to the prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering which have a significant impact on the
Group, nor did it report any concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees.

Employees are required and have the responsibility to conduct
themselves with integrity in an ethical and proper manner. Thus, the
Group has implemented an “Anti-fraud Management Policy” ({/z %
HLEIBH|E ) ) and “Practice for Professional Integrity for Employees”
(CETERZWMEMET)) with its formulation to set out our
commitment to preventing all forms of corrupt practices. Payments
or acceptance of any kickbacks from external parties is strictly
prohibited. We also have the same expectations for our suppliers
and other business partners. The Group will take disciplinary action
for any breach of the Group’s laws and regulations.

Commitment to Integrity

We require employees in sensitive positions such as purchasing
positions, quality inspection positions, and sales positions, to register
the “Sensitive Positions and Employees Information Form” ([ &%k
R EEAE1285]), which is being updated every six months.
Also, all employees are required to sign the “Promise of Integrity
and Self-Discipline for Employees” ((E LEEZBHEELEZ)).
Besides, “Probity Commitment” ({BEZ1##7%) ) is also required to be
entered into with suppliers before transacting with them, promising
no behaviour violating the principle of good faith such as fraud and
bribery in any business connection.
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Whistle-blowing Policy

The Group sets up a whistle-blowing channel to encourage
employees, suppliers and clients to raise concerns about fraud,
corruption and bribery in confidence, through hotline, mail and
electronic media communications, as well as publicizes the reporting
channels in relevant areas of the Company. During the Reporting
Period, we launched the “Report on Code, Reward Now"” ([ “#5"
ER3R - B L88E)]) publicity, internally promoted the reporting
channel “Dalipal People” Official Account ("ZEHE A" ARF),
established an “Anti-Corruption Whistle-blowing” program in
corporate WeCom to alert users towards suspected misconduct,
malpractice or irregularities, and set up a reporting hotline on the
company’s website and procurement system for supplier’s whistle-
blowing.

All reported cases are promptly and thoroughly investigated by
the Group’s internal audit department and reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board. Where laws are violated, the case will
be reported to the judiciary in accordance with the law. If there is
sufficient evidence to prove possible acts of corruption, the case will
be reported to the relevant local authority. The Company prohibits
any unlawful discrimination or retaliation, or hostile measures
against employees involved in the investigation. Complainants and
whistle-blowers are protected in assisting in investigations. Personnel
who leak information on whistle-blowers or retaliate against whistle-
blowers in violation of regulations shall be deemed to have seriously
violated the Company’s regulations and will be dismissed and
terminated from their employment contracts.

HEHHE
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Anti-corruption training

In terms of anti-corruption training, employees in sensitive positions
should be trained on anti-corruption at least quarterly, and other
employees and departments should be trained or organize a training
at least annually to promote the awareness of integrity. Internal
Audit Department organizes activities:

RE HEREBHRS

RE 55

REGEITE  ARELHHRELETED
BEEERX-RARESHI - RETREME
PEBERIFIFR-ARETHEI - LRREIA
EEIE

B - SARMIERE  EREHPIRB AR -

e In order to strengthen employees’ awareness of integrity, during the Reporting Period, the Group formulated the
“Integrity Education and Publicity Plan 2022", while the Internal Audit Department launched the “Xiaofu's Blog”
column, publishing integrity articles every month, and organizing various departments to learn as a warning.

1 o RINEETREER - RMEHME  AEMBE QC0FERBHUEEEHR)  FHAEFIEL [IMIBUE] 8

integrity initiative to employees.

e In conjunction with the “International Anti-Corruption Day” on 9 December, a thematic post was issued to launch a

o E512A9F [HRRBMAE] &HHHARBEHEX @ (8 TERRRIES -

2
e Organized thematic training on compliance management and loyalty and diligence obligations for directors and senior
executives.
3 s MBER SREREABSREERIE  PPIHEAESEI -

4 HRTZEE o

¢ Provided online and interactive anti-corruption training to directors, senior management and employees through our
sustainability consultants, so that employees can learn in line with their own processes.

s BB RAHERRIEXEMN MIEE 2% BISRHASLEEFARESEI - CETMEHREED

~
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The Group will continue to fight corruption and bribery to eliminate
dishonest acts in business. We endeavour to prevent any non-
compliance with relevant laws. To enhance corporate governance,
the Group sets up Audit Committee and engages external lawyers
and auditors to review and provide opinions on the Company’s
financial report and other compliance issues. Besides complying
with the requirement for the corporate governance of listing
companies enforced by the Stock Exchange, we constantly review
the effectiveness of our internal control measures to enhance the
governance level. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any litigation related to the Group or its employees with
the relevant laws and regulations relating to corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, and there was no incident
of non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group.

REEFZ—VIFTRE - BERBITBEMESXH
IR METHRELRTR  HLESRERTR
ML - RE-SRACEER  RARAEZ
ZBE - WINPT AR EZBEEH A
AN BREREMAREERHER - BRTH
BRI AT EHRRIMERERARRKIN - IR
Frigia s MEREE R RORR - BRIT R EAKF -
RREHRE - NREBL T ABERGAEERHE
BEFRES BB R - BEFRAREET

REERHR  BXYAREERHUAEERERY
BHEEEESEN -

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group adheres to the enterprise value of “creating value for
customers, creating opportunities for employees, creating strength
for the enterprise and creating harmony for the society”. The
stakeholder’s involvement enables the Group to understand the risks
and opportunities of our development, ongoing communication
with stakeholders is also very important for formulating sustainable
development strategies. We have identified key stakeholders
who are critical to the Group’s business and have gathered their
views through various communication channels to understand
their expectations towards the Company’s sustainability, so as to
formulate various measures to respond to stakeholders.

&SR

AEERFIAEFRIEEE RETAIEH
T REXREESN  REERIEMEINFR
g5 MBHEN2EERAKE T RERVER
MHE - B EHENERENGIE A FHER
REBS T+ OER - LR THAKREEBE
BMEENERSNE  WEBRREBREAK
SEBR - e TREMH R QRN ATFEER
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Stakeholders and their expectations Engagement channels Main measures of response

BHERAIE BERN B FE iy = E3E HE

Government — Legal compliance —  On-site inspections and — Operated, managed and

R - Proper tax payment check paid taxes according to

m - Promote regional economic -  Research and discussion laws and regulations,
development and through working meetings, strengthened safety
employment preparation and submission management; accepted the

for approval government’s supervision,

—  Disclose information such inspection and evaluation (if
as annual reports, interim any), and actively undertook
reports and announcements social responsibilities.
on the website of the Stock
Exchange

—  Company website

—  Compliance control

— EPRE - BEMER ®BE — REEENBE RN -

— HOEAT - WRMEBIIESH - BEEER - ILABTHE

— EPREEBEERNE TERERE MR ®E B EkiHa(ng) - I
DAL BB AETEEE -

- BEBMAERHPARAT]
(B2 PR ) B ABuA %
B IR - RHIRE
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Stakeholders and their expectations

K EREGE

Engagement channels

BEAR

Main measures of response

B e

Shareholders

and Investors
R RIEEE
B

Return on investment
Information disclosure and
transparency

Protection of interests

and fair treatment of
shareholders

Business risk management

REDHR

BRI EMERE
PRIER R M2t B A7 75
PR

FH5RER E R

Annual general meeting and —

other shareholder meetings
Disclose information such
as annual reports, interim
reports and announcements
on the website of the Stock
Exchange

Meet with investors and
analysts

Company website

BEREFAE MEMARR
g

B 2 PT I 5R 5 M8 U B A
BE - ER - PHIRE
SN

B EER SN EE
NEIABUE

Issued notices of the general
meetings and proposed
resolutions in accordance
with the regulations, and
disclosed the Group'’s
information through
announcements/circulars
and periodic reports in the
year.

Carried out a different

form of investor activities
with an aim to improve
investors’ recognition.
Disclosed Company contact
details on the website and
in reports and ensured all
communication channels
were available and effective.
BEREEMHRRAGEE
MIR2ARZER  BBBMHA
& BEMTERREEEA
SEEH -
RIREREERMEMEST
BEREANREETE - 1
A uh Ko s R R B A B E AR
Bk WiERFTEBRERE
BRAIA -
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Engagement channels

RIE - S RERRE

Main measures of response

BHERAIE BERN B FE iy = E3E HE
Employees Safeguard the rights and — Regular meetings Provided a healthy and
BE interests of employees — Training, seminars and safe working environment,
‘.‘ Working environment briefing sessions developed a fair mechanism
= Career development — Intranet and email for promotion, cared for
opportunities —  Annual performance employees by helping those
Occupational health and appraisal in need, organized employee
safety activities and provided
self-actualization training.
RIS B HORER R A a8 - EHg=® RMHRELZ 2N TERE
TIERE — Bl EERANE BRI RNTFEFHS  RES
BEuREge - NERERER EZEPNES - BYHEERE
BEERERTE — FEEMGHE B KR HIEH
BRER
Clients Safe and high-quality - Website, brochure, disclose Strengthened quality
BP products and services information such as annual management to ensure
"I’“ Stable relationships reports, interim reports stable service standards,
. and announcements on

Transparency of information
Integrity
Business ethics

22 BHES LR
B RE
ERERE

Wi

CEel

the website of the Stock
Exchange

Email and customer service
hotline

Feedback and reporting
Regular meetings
International certifications

— Uk =AW B

SR G ER - FR -
FHEATRE RS

- BEERMFPRBAK
- REE®BE

THE®

- ﬁ?‘}fam{é

entered into long-term
strategic cooperation
agreements and obtained
international certifications
from professional
institutions.

Used a sales management
platform to optimize sales
processes, strengthened
daily communication with
customers, and built long-
term relationships with
quality customers.
IREEEE - ARIRTE
12 &%E = ET%E@@ZE%/E\
W%%Iﬁi%&%ﬁmﬁ
|15T\ 270N Fl;.;
@%%mﬁﬁ$é@M%%
B isEESH A EE
W WEEEEPEV R
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Stakeholders and their expectations

Engagement channels

Main measures of response

HOEREHE BEAR EENEEEE

Suppliers/ — Long-term relationship —  Business meetings, supplier —  Invited tenders publicly to
Partners —  Honest cooperation meetings, telephone calls select the best suppliers

fHtpEng, - Fair and open and interviews and contractors,
GIERM - Sharing sources for -~ Regular meetings performed contracts

e

Peer
Companies/
Industry
Associations
and Societies

BEJEGES
g ttE

o9 e

AN

customized raw materials
Risk reduction

RHGERIE

HEAE
REHEHD ZER TR
PRz

Experience sharing
Cooperate
Fair competition

Review and assessment
Tendering

Emails, circulars and manuals —

Company website
Open procurement platform

R GRS
BEREY

AR

it Rt

i

EH  BARFM
NGIFENS

BARBETE S

Industry conferences
Field trips

Standard publicity
Training

Seminar

SES
Ei
sy
sl

il

obligation according to the
agreements.

Used open procurement
platform to advance
procurement processes,
enhanced day-to-day
communication, and built
long-term relationships with
quality suppliers/business
partners.
BRAFBFREEERE
HIER, EBRHE - BRI
BEITAE -

ARG ERIE T & RS
R N8 H SR - W
BEMEREBB AR
REIGERIR -

Adhered to fair competition,
cooperated with peers,
achieved a win-win
situation, shared experience,
participated in various
industry seminars, and
promoted the sustainable
development of the industry.

BEQFHS  HRAXE
tE BRAR  DF&5HR
SMSRBITEMR S - HH
TTENAIHERE -
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Engagement channels Main measures of response

BoEREBRE BEAR BN EEEE

Market — Compliance with laws and - Disclosure of information —  Complied with regulatory
Regulators regulations —  Report requirements in a strict

GBS E - Disclosure of information - Consultation manner, disclosed and

Q

The Public and
Communities
HEAR
@E\ﬁ
&®

EPEREM
BRIE

Community engagement
Social responsibility
Employment promotion
Transparency in consultation

M
HEEE
R
A

ERKE
wE
A

Volunteer service
Charity and social
investment

Press conference
Company website

HLITHE
HEIHERE
AmERFE
SR

reported real information

in a timely and accurate
manner according to law.
BRETEERE  RIBE
ERRE - IR E K 2R
HEEH -

Gave priority to local people
seeking jobs from the
Company so as to promote
community building and
development; maintained
smooth communication
channels between the Group
and the community.

Issued accurate information
in a timely manner.
BRERAM AT K IIEH
g REHEERER R
FASESEMRBREBS
o

K~ ERERIESR
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Materiality Assessment

The Group believes that understanding and appropriately responding
to the expectations of our stakeholders will help us achieve sound
and sustainable development. In order to more effectively identify
and assess potential ESG issues that will have a significant impact
on the Group and its stakeholders, we have reviewed the material
issues from the previous year, and identified and prioritized ESG
material issues for this year, with reference to the regulatory trends,
international standards, peers, etc.

Materiality Assessment

BRED

EEMSM

AEERETHLEEEESHENRE - 8
BORMERBENAIFERR - RTEBRL
AW FEHAREREFNEEREATE
MERRE HeREEERE  RfICOE
ZFERINERERE  Y2EHIMEESB
2 BRRE - XS - ABRIARFENESGE
B WHHETELESRF

Confirmation of the

Materiality Assessment Result

BIUFIEER

With Reference to:

(i) Regulatory trends of the HKEX;

(i) ESG material issues mentioned in
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board
(SASB) “Industrial Machinery & Goods"”;
(iii) ESG material issues were identified by
companies listed in Hong Kong.

BBRBE
() BTV EEE 8%

(il) AT AR R EFERIZ B & (SASB) [T E#M
RT%m] RRNERESCHAE :

(iii) BB LT REXARSEMFEHEHNERESG
A o

The Company’s Board and/or management
reviewed the Preliminary Materiality Assess-

The Board and/or management confirm the
results of the Importance Assessment.

ment Result to confirm the material ESG-relat- g xef/secnErrEsHTHES -

ed issues considering the applicability. The
materiality level is evaluated considering its
significance in maintaining the sustainability
of the Group.

ANFRMEREN AEREEMVNSEEERES
WER - WEBAHRARNBERRE - BEMTER

RIEE B EHAHRISEE T EFROAYIEME

=0

Review

A



We have listed 12 issues that are of greatest concern to the
stakeholders and to the Group. The materiality assessment result is as

follows:

Higher
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BARENRERFNERREL - AERE

. Customer privacy protection

T

UAKBRAEENHE  E2MUOMIIERM

BETLBRE
. Charitable donations
REEH
E
(7]
3
o
<
[J]
X
©
- 8
b 2
o8
oA
e
g i
.§ = Energy use and efficiency, effective resources management (such as water,
= paper etc.)
S BEREA RS  ARERER (2K - 4&R)
[ ] Adfging and promotion Supply chain management
RERSE HEHER
() Participation or organization of volunteer activities Employment, employee welfare and benefits, training and development,
SHABRETED prevention of child and forced labour
EMEAR ETREARGE  SJIRER  PEHRETRAEHST
L ) i
oy Significance to the Group ';lg%her
HAKENEEY
Environmental ‘ Human Rights and Employees . Operating Practices . Product and Service Responsibility . Community Contributions
B AREET EmMREEE R AR
=z
Stakeholder Feedback BHEEROE

The Group attaches great importance to the valuable feedback of FHfi+ P ERIFMHENEESE  HE

stakeholders. If you have any questions or opinions on this Report or
the performance of the Group’s environmental and social policies,

please email us to share your comments and suggestions with us at i ZERHE R REHE -

ir@dalipal.com.

HARESAEBMARIE RSB MERBTFE
Tk ER  BEHBEir@dalipal.comE K
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Environmental Aspects
A. Corporate Culture

As we become increasingly connected to the environment, the
Group understands the importance of pursuing a clean environment
and our responsibility as a corporate citizen. In order to reflect the
Group’s commitment to sustainable development and compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to environmental protection,
we have been striving to innovate, reduce the impact on the natural
environment and actively respond to climate change.

We have a clear “Environmental Mindset” under our corporate
culture — ecological environmental protection, pollution control,
clean production, green development. The main contents are as
follows:

(1) Implement the requirements of ecological environmental
protection measures and take the path of green and low-carbon
development.

(2) Adhere to the whole process management, from source
substitution, process control, terminal treatment, waste
recycling to implementation of green, low-carbon and high-
quality development.

(3) Develop clean energy and environmentally-friendly products to
grow a circular economy.

Environmental Emergency Management

During the Reporting Period, we continuously improved the
emergency management mechanism, improved the emergency
handling capacity of environmental incidents, effectively prevented
the occurrence of environmental emergencies, and reduced
environmental risks through internal high-frequency, high-quality
inspections and timely rectification, as well as organizing and
carrying out training, emergency drills etc.

REEEH
i 3417

EERMERENBEARER  AEERHAE
KRFRENEZEARRIEREERRNE
T RERAKEHAHEEROAEETE
RRREOERIER - RIFI—BEZ DA B
HERRENTELBEHRAREEL -

Bl SR SR —
R SLAR ERAE  BHEBE - TBAR
T
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2B
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w
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Combating Climate Change

We recognize that protecting the environment and minimizing the
adverse impacts of our business operations on the environment is
a continuous responsibility of a good corporate citizenship. With
the intensification of climate change and the increasing frequency
of extreme weather bringing physical risks to the Group, such as
typhoons, flooding caused by heavy rain, etc., we may have more
serious impacts on our operations. While hot weather may cause
diseases, such as heat stroke, which pose a threat to the health and
safety of our employees.

Fighting climate change is also an important issue facing human
society. In the 75th session of the United Nations General Assembly
, China officially announced that “strive to achieve carbon peak by
2030 and strive to achieve carbon neutrality by 2060”. In order to
cope with the transition risks of increasingly stringent environmental
laws and regulations, and actively respond to the call of the Nation,
the Group formulated an implementation plan for carbon reduction
actions to actively practice and promote low-carbon development.

The Company Strategy

The Company actively assumes social responsibility and commits to
“strive to achieve carbon peak in 2030; achieve carbon neutrality
in 2050”. We have incorporated the carbon peak and carbon
neutrality plan into the Company’s “2023-2027 Five-Year Plan”,
with comprehensive green transformation as the guide, green and
low-carbon development of energy as the key, and institutional
innovation as the driving force,based on intelligence, information,
digital, green, to build a comprehensive intelligent factory in the
petroleum pipe manufacturing industry,and strive to become
a domestic industry with a high level of intelligence and high
management and production efficiency, low energy consumption
and low emissions, so as to contribute to the Nation of taking the
lead in achieving carbon peak and carbon neutrality.

Responsive Measures

During the Reporting Period, the Group comprehensively identified
national and local environmental protection laws and regulations,
as well as standard requirements, revised and improved relevant
environmental and energy policies, and completed the training and
implementation of responsibilities for all employees, supplemented
by regular operation inspection and evaluation during operation to
ensure the effective implementation of relevant policies.

RE HEREBHRS

FE SRR 2L
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Carbon Reduction Action Implementation Plan AT TE) Bt 5 2€

At the beginning of 2022, the Group quickly launched the 20224854 + AEERBRBCHRIRTEE S
preparation and promotion of the “Carbon Reduction Action  Z2)47 &I R T1E o smiBHIERI 2 R G et
Implementation Plan”. By formulating scientific and systematic & - BB TEIET 2 - Rl EHEHEFRER -
carbon peaking and carbon emission reduction action plans, the

Group scientifically promotes low-carbon transformation:

Carbon Peaking, Carbon Reduction Action Plan
BRiEig - B BT B Rt &

1. Strengthen the top-level design of the Company’s system, establish a production and operation systems of
green, low-carbon and cyclical development, improve resource and energy utilization efficiency, promote
synergy in pollution reduction and carbon reduction, and create green and low-carbon products through
equipment energy conservation and environmental protection upgrades, promotion and application of
advanced technologies, continue to reduce carbon emission intensity.

MBAR RSN R - BUGKCERBRERNEESERR - BAREBHRRRTR - SERMHE
BRER - ReERERMARE - HERSERNE - TERCERER - FHERERBINERE -

2. Establish a sound carbon emission management system and strengthen the management of carbon assets.
BUTENBRERRBR  NRREEER -

3. Track the R&D and application of cutting-edge technologies in low-carbon and carbon capture and carry out
life cycle assessments and carbon label certification.

BRMME R ER B SR A S R AT AV T B R A - BRI A dn A EART A MR ERE TIE -

4. Actively promote carbon emission verification and cleaner production review, promote clean energy
substitution, improve the level of scrap resource recycling, and implement the all-scrap electric furnace
technology.

FHHERPFRZENBEZEETR I (REBRERER - BAENEREWFAKE - HIT2EEH
BEIZE-

5. Introduce advanced technologies in a timely manner, tap the potential of energy conservation and carbon
reduction, promote the development of waste heat utilization, give full play to the function of energy
conversion, and achieve coordinated carbon reduction.

TS SERIT - ORIZEREMRIOE ) - HEBRANAER - RO BERRERYIE - BRBRIRK o

6. The Company intends to effectively improve the overall energy efficiency by focusing on the introduction
of electric furnace waste heat power generation technology, scrap steel continuous charging preheating
technology, amoeba residual steel monitoring technology, hydraulic servo energy-saving technology, etc. to
strive to achieve the advanced level of cleaner production in energy consumption, material consumption and
water consumption per unit product by 2025.

NEREBBERSI ABERAE TR - BEHEEITRRRN - PR E R BRI - RERREFRER
M - BRIEE A FIERBRERUKE « NFE2025F » BAIEMERE - MRTKESEIBREEFLEKE -
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Carbon Reduction Actions

As frequent human activities lead to higher global greenhouse
gas emissions, increased greenhouse effect and rising global
average temperatures, extreme weather events become more
frequent and may have a lasting and severe impact on the health
of our employees, business operations, the economy and the
environment. Therefore, the Group is committed to demonstrating
our commitment to reducing greenhouse gas emissions and carbon
footprint through sustainable long-term actions.

RIE - S RERRE

BB
MEREN TSRS REA RN
A SERENESHTRALY  EHX
SFMH BT LTLHRMOE TR -

T B ATRE O -
m - AREHNEBERTSRGOETH

MERBMRAL R SRR RA SR B
/E‘\ °

KB AIEEEE - EBRER

Case Study: Forward-looking Cooperation, Promote Carbon Reduction

During the Reporting Period, the Group and Air Liquide (Cangzhou) Co., Ltd. held the signing ceremony of
the sustainable development project. The two companies adhered to the sustainable development concept
of “low carbon, energy saving and environmental protection”, deepened cooperation and launched the
“Continuous Casting Tundish Oxygen Combustion Innovation Project”, which adopts the oxy-combustion
torrefying technology, and effectively improves the level of energy saving in production. It is predicted that after
the implementation of the project, 50%-60% of gas energy will be saved, and carbon dioxide emissions will be
effectively reduced.

HEHA - WFEJEﬁiAMt SROBMBRARRITAFEERIEDFOERN - EHFANEH - 85t - RRIOA
FEZERED  RICEE FJURD TIESTHEB2AMERIFIER | - ZIABRKBE2AMERIERI - 6
%@ﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁ%%i&ﬁﬁﬁ@k‘?ﬂ o %IH B Bie&TAET Al EIR50%-60% MM RENE & © WA BFEE _ S biRBENE -

At the same time, the “biomass carbon utilization project” to be cooperated by the two sides focuses on
the application of biomass carbon in steel mills , and realizes the full life cycle management and low-carbon
metallurgical carbon footprint, which is the Company’s active exploration of the promotion of sustainable
development with the energy transformation goals.

LRI - A ENI EYMERMARE | - BERNEDERERNKRNER - ERERLSMIRET 2 £
BEIER  ERAFERREE B E T HBAIHEERNVERKR -

N EEE AEER AR
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Reduce the Smelting Cycle of Billet Electric Arc Furnace and Reduce Emissions

RS TE R AR ER - B sk

The high energy consumption of the electric arc furnace smelting is an important factor restricting the low-
carbon green development of the entire iron and steel industry, and has long plagued the development and
progress of enterprises. In view of this, in 2022, the Group thoroughly implemented the concept of “carbon
peak and carbon neutrality”, formed an R&D team, and focused on the balance and coordination of “electricity-
oxygen-iron” in the smelting process. The smelting cycle of the electric arc furnace has been shortened by
10%, and the carbon emission content has been reduced by more than 10%. The successful implementation
of this project has brought the Company’s overall green and low-carbon production level into a new stage and
contributed to the national energy conservation strategy and the realization of the carbon peak goal in the short
term, promoting the sustainable development of the steel industry, and laid the foundation for achieving a long-
term green and low-carbon strategy.

BB A RERARHAOBRERE 2 TEERGECERNEZEVERNR RARNBECENBRIEES - &t
0L - REER2022FRABRBEHER - B MRS - AFEER - B aReR E-5-8 107
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B TP PP

High-performance Shale Gas Drilling Used to Help the Construction of a 50 billion Large Gas
Area in the Southwest Oil and Gas Field
EMERERERAEE B HIAERHRHAS00RARERR

Shale gas refers to unconventional natural gas that occurs in organic-rich shale and its interlayers, mainly in
the form of adsorption or free, and is a clean and efficient energy source. Southwest China is rich in shale
gas reserves, and by 2025 a strategic atmospheric area of 50 billion cubic meters will be built. The geological
conditions of shale gas reservoirs are extremely harsh, and the required strength, toughness, and anti-collapse
performance of the casing are extremely high.

BEREEBEREAREREEREREY  URMSEREATFEFEARNIETHRAAR  B—&F
B SRR o KBElIfEMtR B aRFEEE R - 2025F ZREMKS00E M FORKEIEARE o BEREHE 5
HEmET R - HEENRE - B - UBERMEERES -

In response to the harsh geological conditions, drilling and production requirements of shale gas reservoirs,
the Group has carried out in-depth cooperation within the industry, academia, research and application, and
customized and developed a series of casing products for shale gas drilling with a yield strength of 1,000MPa.
It has the characteristics of “lightweight, high strength, high toughness, high collapse resistance, and high
connection strength”. By increasing the strength of the oil pipe and reducing the wall thickness of the pipe body,
the overall weight of the casing string is reduced by more than 30%, saving resources and reducing carbon
emissions by more than 20% during the manufacturing process.
AEESHEARBTZINMERENERELIER  ETESHAREAE  TRERMETERRE
1,000MPaR E = RBIKARINEEER - EFIRE(L 5RE 2P  SNER  SEERE MR -
BBRSOHERE  RETEEE  EMARTEELENERESE0%N L - HINERNOAR - 25818712
P (AR HE R 20% A = o

In 2022, the Group supplied more than 15,000 tons of casings for high-performance shale gas drills, used
green products to facilitate the exploitation of green and clean energy, and contributed our strength to the
construction of a 50 billion large gas area in the Southwest oil and gas field.

20225 - AEEHES R EERERAEE 1500040 - BR TRAGKCERDNEEBZERNFE - &
PR R A0 EARRERBER TENENE -
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Case Study: Dalipal’s “Carbon Reduction Day”
=0 REMEHE A

We actively implement the concept of low-carbon development, create a low-
carbon atmosphere, and promote the low-carbon concept to employees. Since
2022, we have designated World Environment Day on June 5 as Dalipal’s “Carbon
Reduction Day” and launched a series of carbon reduction activities.

BMERERERERIES  2EERAE  WHEISHERES - 520224
R - FMe ASBIMERIRER IEANE N ZRIR R 1 FHE RS R &S -

We created a low-carbon and environmental protection awareness and
atmosphere through hanging posters and online publicity activities. Everyone
is encouraged to commute with low-carbon methods on their own, the air
conditioners be turned off willingly in the office area, and promoted justified
advice and activities about energy saving, consumption reduction, pollution
reduction, and efficiency enhancement.

BREBEHEHR RELEFEEHFLEEMRFRNBAMNAE - ERAK BB ERLIT

g

B - EEIE0EE - 4T RS  BRUETAECESENANRE HEEDHES -

ik T1&5 i i B
fFE R BTN

Iy Ny N

Aamit il

TrREEBEHMEMAE

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
This Report focuses on scope 1 and scope 2 greenhouse gas

BEREHH
ABEETRERE 1 NBE20REREEE

emissions. Scope 1 is direct greenhouse gas emissions from the  #  #E1 AR 8 AEBEM%HE BERRER
stationary and mobile fuels combustion owned by the Group. Scope  MABHRGEFTRM EZE B =R EEHN - #E2AK
2 is indirect greenhouse gas emissions from purchased electricity B ZANSBEFEFEINEE NEENEEEERIGH
consumed by the Group. e
Due to the increase in production, the Group's total greenhouse HREZEIN - AEEHNAZERBEIHNERE
gases emission increased compared to last year. During the ARG - RNEHE - BEREHHOT -
Reporting Period, greenhouse gas emissions were as follows:
Types of greenhouse gas
emissions Unit 2022 2021
BERBIHERER B 20225 20214
Scope 1 - Direct emissions Tons of CO, equivalent 103,589.58 89,136.47
HE - EEHR MR — S LIRE 8
Scope 2 - Energy Indirect emissions Tons of CO, equivalent 295,878.97 307,799.50
& [E2 — g REEBEN M-S tiRE =
Total Tons of CO, equivalent 399,468.55 396,935.97
wme WE—SUbiRE S
Intensity Tons of CO, equivalent/ 94.49 105.50
revenue in million RMB
= W—EriE e BETARBKE
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Emissions

The Group strictly complies with the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China ((hEAREFEREIRE
7&)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Noise Pollution Prevention ({H # A R HE 1B IRE R 8 )5 208
7%)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Appraising of
Environment Impacts( {2 A R AMBIR TR EFT(E L) ), the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes ( {FZE A R LN [E 72 2
Y35 RIRE A7) ), Cleaner Production Promotion Law ({# %
ARHEMENEREEREE)), Regulations on the Administration
of Construction Project Environmental Protection ( GE2FRIAHRE
RIEZIEIEM)), Decision of the State Council on Several Issues
Concerning Environmental Protection ({E#Bx N IRIBRES
TRIREHREY), Air Pollution Control Ordinance ({Z=&;5 &
f&f1) ), Waste Disposal Ordinance ({EE¥)EE & 51 ), and other
applicable environmental laws and regulations and we obtained the
“Discharge Permit” granted by the local environmental departments.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any severe
violations or compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations. Also, the Group has audited and obtained the ISO14001
environmental management system certification, so as to comply
with the national maximum limit allowed for sulfur oxides emission
concentration limits and total emissions, which limited the amount
of air and greenhouse gas emissions generated in the course of the
Group's business.

RE HEREBHRS

23587

AEBEEETRREETREA(REARKLFNH
IRBREE) - (P EAR LB R E 52006
E) (PEARKFBERBZETEL)  (PE
AR KB E BB R Y5 RIRIELAE) - (PEA
REMBBREERER) GERIBBRERE
EIREM) - (B AN RIERES TRERR
TE)  AEFFLE BIGEH D REDR B G5 )E
FEERERES - WiFE EMIRIRIFIBIERNCT
AYHERGT R ) o MRS HAR - NEBW A
BERUASEEBERAFENRREEERD
B - BR - REHE AEBEEZTEAT
ISOT4001IRIZE B ARERE MR EE
RETA W BRERER BB ERRED -
FREINEE B BREFEENERNBEE R
WE -
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Air Emissions

The Group’s air emissions mainly come from particulate matter,
sulfur oxides and nitrogen oxides generated by industrial furnaces
and equipment in the production process. In order to reduce air
emissions in the course of our operations, we have adopted the
following technical enhancements:

e Adopt low nitrogen combustion technology on the combustion
system;,

e Equip advanced adsorption and catalytic combustion technology
on the exhausted gas treatment facilities;

e Increase the thickness of the heating furnaces and added flue
gas treatment devices to reduce nitrogen oxides emissions;

e Add online monitoring equipment at the main tapping hood
of flue gas, establish wheel washing facilities and online
monitoring equipment in the factory and at the main entrances
and exits for raw materials, to reduce the air pollution from
dusts;

e Equip pollutant purification and denitrification devices for
exhaust gas;

e Replace the annular furnace, quenching furnace and tempering
furnace flowmeter with a more advanced and accurate
ultrasonic flowmeter; and

e Optimize industrial processes to reduce the frequency of in-
plant transportation, update new energy vehicles, and increase
the proportion of clean transportation.

ESRIERL

AEBENRBERFINEIERE TEEEMREEL
ERREMELNENY - MW RARLY -
RIEEELEBEP BRI - RPIRIUT A
TRIBERAR

o MERGERAERMRGERIM :

o RERUERIERRHEER A ST RO TR BT AN LR B R

5

o TEAMERIPEIRINERMILRERRERE
MARE RS HER

o HEXBHIMOEREREREITRE TR
BEAMRHMEZELORESREEENGE
HERERRE - UREBEHARSR

s REBRNMEREFSAMBIEKE:

o RV EAE - BAEREN ERAE
St - S EEARROBERTEN | R

o BUETIERENUNRIBABRHAR - F3
LR AES - Rea RERLLA -

~
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During the Reporting Period, the emission standards of particulate
matter, sulfur oxides and nitrogen oxides of various industrial
furnaces of the Group met the ultra-low emission standards of Hebei
Province and the Bureau of Ecology and Environment of Cangzhou
City permitted discharge, and the exhaust emissions were as follows:

RE HEREBHRS

RBEME - ARESBIREEENY - iR
£~ REF PRI E R 1 E BIEH
BARERRMTAERRFE R NOPRE - BER
PEpEmT

Bureau of

Ecology and Environment
Types of air of Cangzhou City
emissions Unit Permitted Discharge 2022 2021
BERPERER B BMNTERBRERFITHRE 20224 20214
Sulfur oxides (SOx) Ton 15.3 0.2 0.1
k=Rl 7] Mg
Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) Ton 48.1 14.9 21.5
A&y 7]
Particulate matter (PM) Ton 56.7 37.9 442
SRR Mg

Air Emissions
JE% SR BE B
60 56.7

50

Ton [

48.1
442
40 37.9
30
215
20 15.3 49
10 I
0.1 0.2
0 ———

SOx NOx PM
mEY A&y EiE k)
M Cangzhou Municipal Ecology and Environmental [ 2021 W 2022
Bureau Permitted Emissions 20214 20225

BMNTERRERFIHRE
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Waste Management

The Group also recognizes the importance of waste reduction
for the Company’s sustainable development. With the increasing
severity of resource and energy shortages, countries worldwide
are paying more attention to waste management at source. Waste
management is imperative for employee health, the environment,
and in most cases. There are two main types of waste in the
Group's daily operations: (i.) Hazardous waste from the production
process (i.e. hazardous or potentially harmful to human health or
the environment), mainly involving dust removal ash, waste mineral
oil, sludge, waste paint, paint residue, etc.; and (ii.) Non-hazardous
waste from production activities such as electric furnace slag,
refining slag, iron oxide sheet and waste refractory materials.

The Group strictly complies with the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China ( {FFZE A R EMBEIRIBREL) ),
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes ( {1 ZE A R
N E B8 RE W55 IR AL ) ) and other relevant environmental
laws and regulations. We appoint a professional waste handling
company, which has the qualifications of collecting, storing, treating,
and disposing of waste, to handle our hazardous waste.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has completed the
revision of the General Waste Management Regulations, and it
has established and implemented a number of waste reduction
and recycling strategies, revised the environmental protection
management system such as pollution production and discharge
control, and formulated specific rules and regulations through
the operating procedures of the pollution production process,
the operation and control of environmental protection treatment
equipment, the monitoring of pollutant discharge from waste
gas and wastewater, the collection and transfer of solid waste,
the monitoring of noise and air pollution, and the environmental
protection management responsibility system, forming a systematic
environmental protection management system.

BREYEE
AEERBEERYEE RIS QB A RHERR
MEBEM - BEEERNMERERNMERRR
B ERZERINIERERE - BERYERY
BETIRE RENERZHBEALTMEZEL
T -AAKENERZENS TEEMEER
Y ()VREEEBRENAEREZEY (AN ARR
FRIREMEBERIEEESE) TR KK
EEIR - BEWRM - U5 - BB - BREF AR
REERDRELNEZERY - fINEEE -
BIRE - SACEIR R REMH -

AEBBRKBEEFETRI(FEARKNE
REREER) - (REARLMEE RS AR
BIaR)EREREREEERERNRE -
ISRREEYRBREE - YR EEXERYE
BARNRENGIEEEERY)  REXERD
BEARABRE B BRENREERDNE
1% o

WEHME - AREE E 2 R EE N O R
EMERRS - B RERYERRTE) B
PR ERSRAREEGE  BEHESTER
TERIZ - RIDAERBETERE - BREKTR
WIPEREDR - BEREREMINEBRRIE RBAR,
HREDR - RIREBEEREHERBORES
B AR —ERGHRRERGIE

During the Reporting Period, in addition to the increase in  FIREHR - BN EESHIEI - BHBEEYE
production, therefore the amount of waste increased accordingly. A2 thBE Y il o AEBELE Y BEEYE A0
The amount of waste generated by the Group was as follows: T
Type of waste Unit 2022 2021
BERYEE B 20224 20214
Hazardous waste Ton 9,011.19 9,785.60
BEBEEY A
Intensity Tons/revenue in million RMB 2.13 2.60
"E WE, BETARBKE
Non-hazardous waste Ton 65,813.94 63,795.10
EEEREY I
Intensity Tons/revenue in million RMB 15.57 16.96
=E WE BETARBKE
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We are committed to reducing our emissions and waste generation,
formulating an annual management plan, targeting responsibilities
and corresponding person-in-charge, strengthening supervision.

BB HERERRS

BABRL B FNR M ERYES - AHIE
FEEES  BHMATAEANBE ‘IR
12 LIREMEE - REZNALRR - RIFHRIE

To achieve the above targets, we advocated the following emission  #FA A NEYEEHEHE
reduction measures:

Technical Optimization Aspect

BB EE

Implementation of three furnace flow meters renewal work;

Bi=a MAVEREEH T

Complete the modification project of the ultra-low-emission dust removal system for bench of pipe billets,
and added a new filter exterior from the dust collector for the slag tapping hood of the electric furnace;
TEREAERRERFBEIENBCETRE - S T ERLBEOERKES

Use clean energy natural gas as raw material for the new heating furnace and adopt low nitrogen
combustion technology on the combustion system;

T ERINBEERRFRIRRARBIRE - PRI RSB ER MG

Complete the installation of the gas collection covers and dust removal devices within the production line,
and promote the reuse and sales of dust removal ash disposal;

TEEERHRBEESRSHERERE - WABKREREEVKHE - BEEWREERMA

Two sets of volatile organic compounds (“VOCs") collection devices are implemented additionally;
EIEREEMEBERY([VOCs HIEKRS ¢

Upgrade the pollutant monitoring and control system (the control system was changed to an advanced DCS
system), dynamically controlled the installation of online pollutant monitoring equipment for 3 spraying
production lines system to ensure that the monitoring and measurement of pollutants are more accurate;
and

FHR SR EE RS (R HI RS RRTENDCSEAL) - H3GREREER TR EREARBLEFEER
& REENSAYE BT EE INEE - &

Conduct weekly joint inspection of equipment, reduce equipment failure time, implement regular
maintenance and preventive maintenance, implement equipment transformation and upgrading to
continuously strengthen equipment maintenance management, and prevent running and dripping.
BRETREBERE - RO REBRERRE - BieERiRE AN EEE  BRREZGE - FHRATEN
SREREHEEEIRE - B IEIRERER -

g
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Waste Management Aspect

BEYMEEER

e Adopt water-based paint at spraying process, reduce the numbers of waste paint and thinner buckets;
&2 TR ERAKIRR - R ERR - BEARNEE

e Use dedicated packaging bag and warehouse to store waste;
ERBERGFHERY  BETR

e Record and manage hazardous waste strictly according to the management requirements, and installed the
Hazardous Waste Terminal Weighing Storage System;
BARRREREY BB ENRETRE B VRRTERRBEERTRGELIRHEEAERSR

e Improve the technology and use premium material to reduce furnace cinder during normalized oil casing
production process;
HETENFEREEME - SEETHMEERRIES

e Control the type of scrap metals to reduce the scale of light and thin materials entering the furnace to lower
the dust and gas emission; and
THIESEHE - R EERANELS - FRRAEERRNRER - K

e Recycle the metal material.

TEBYA BRI -

Pollutants Treatment Aspect

EKEEEH

e The sewage treatment process adopts filtration, adsorption and ultrafiltration;
VEKEI B RAR R RER

e The sewage is treated by reverse osmosis technique and then recycled as reclaimed water;
VKB RSB RIMTEIR IR IR B RAK

e Strengthen the dust control in the factory, stipulate the frequency for spraying and dampening the road, and
install wheel washing facilities at the site entrances and exits;
ISR AEZEERTE - BATERR T BB /KSEIR - IR A ORTIE T S EE R -

e Build a new reclaimed water pool, recycle the industrial used water, reduce fresh water usage; and
FEFn - TERKBERBAA  BOKERZE R

e Post water conservation signs in all areas of the Company to call on all employees to save water.

ERRESBREGRMEORKERD  SRE2RE TEHOANK -

e
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Case Study: Scrap Metal Recycling via Electric Arc Furnace

We are committed to establishing a green and low-carbon circular
development production and operation system, such as the “Scrap
Metal Recycling via Electric Arc Furnace” circulation system. An
electric arc furnace (EAF) is a heating furnace that heats a material
by an electric arc discharge. The production process is mainly to
add scrap metal raw materials to the EAF for smelting, which can
improve the efficiency of energy use. The system allows us to recycle
the waste metal from the arc furnace, and re-enter the production
line as raw materials, forming a circular economy and further
promoting resource recycling, making the production process more
environmentally friendly than the general linear production model,
thereby reducing the carbon emissions in the production process.

RIE - S RERRE

T4 BIEELEBENA

BB NEYHECERBERERNEELSE
X ofluElEEcBEANEIERES - &
SIVE (EAF) & — T& B ol S N & £/ iz
& - £ER &I ARG RE S B R AR I AEAFIA
IR @ IR ALREAME - BaEERF A
EE%JILEEFW? B EARNETRALER
FERBREEASRE T ERRRFIR - SE£E
BRI — AR A EEA T IRR - ek
{RAEE BRI

.

S
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L emmmmmmmmm———
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Hazardous waste treatment rate in compliance

fEREm A REER

~
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e
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Use of Resources

The Group attaches great importance to the efficient and effective
use of natural resources by allocating energy measuring instruments,
statistical statements of water, electricity, and other energy,
to facilitate the use of resources and allocate resources more
effectively. We formulated the “Energy Management and Control
Procedures” ( (BEIREIBIZEHIFEF) )" which has a clear guideline
on energy testing implementation, evaluation of energy conversion,
transmission and distribution and utilization system configuration
and operation, and recycling of surplus energy resources.

The primary resources used by the Group are electricity, water, and
paper. However, due to the nature of the Group’s business, the
packaging used in the finished products is not applicable. During
the Reporting Period, the Group refined the energy consumption
standards, implemented the hydraulic servo energy-saving
transformation project, the energy-saving transformation project
of the active submersible pump, the turbidity ring water hot water
lifting pump project, the intelligent compressed air system energy
hosting project, the reclaimed water reuse system to promote clean
energy substitution, effectively realizing the purpose of energy
saving, consumption reduction, emission reduction and efficiency
increase.

BRER

REBBNBERAEREARE  W+HER
BRERER WBEERRATERE - Sst
K- BERRNRAHRERSE - UERERFAR
BIREEEB AR - HAIHIE TCRERE BT R
BF)  AEEE ﬁ*ﬁziﬁﬂ - FHERERER
fid R AR RA L E HETAON - FIggreeRER
KR F AIERE -

AEEFFERANEIEERAEN - KRHAR - ﬁﬁ
AR EENEREE - 2R MATANEEI
#A o PERE R ZK%I%WEQWH@E%H
EheRBERRENGESIEIER - 3%‘*?%5@%3&
EIEE - ARKEKEAR IEE =R S 28D
BEHEETEE - v/KOFAEE SRESZERS
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Energy

Recognizing the importance of conserving electricity and natural

BER

REBHBHNES - RARGBERNEERN

gas energy, we continue to promote energy-saving technology I3 P95 B ae R iGE N @ - BUhR D
transformation and breakthrough, committed to reducing electricity 8R4 HES BEREBHEENE - BE
consumption which will reduce greenhouse gas emissions indirectly. Z=LA FEIZE - AEESEIRINGEEE - 2152

To achieve the above targets, the Group encourages the adoption of

TR

energy-saving measures, including but not limited to:

e A total of 6 energy-saving renovation projects have been o

HZEE#  KREER L BRMEENUERE

accomplished in air compressors, pumps and other facilities;

Formulate an applicable energy usage plan for computers and
set the appropriate display brightness;

Offices and conference rooms make full use of natural light to
eliminate day lights and ever-bright lights;

The switching time of lighting in office and living areas is
adjusted according to seasonal and weather changes to
meet the lighting demand of public areas and reduce energy
consumption;

Minimize the general lighting in public areas at night;

Pledged to the Energy Saving Charter 2022 launched by the
Hong Kong Environment Bureau; and

Appliances are set to energy-saving mode if possible, turn off
when the power supply is idle, and check the power off of the
office from time to time.

£ MARIEA 5 AR -
17 AR M9 7 Maswie ( _\Q‘\;j;;’mw

HeIE

e REMREBAENEREMNIR  AREA
BRRRE

o WAR - EHERSMABARNK  HBEAS
BEARAE

o WMAAERRABRIBEE - KRR HR
FRRS R - R A EERAT RN
R PRAK BEIROBRE

s REFRERILHRIIA :

s REBBRRBELM(EENT2022)
K

o TERRMARERMEEN  EREERE
B YA ERRERAETERARBNR

s

3 Energy %E?irfcizfr 2 02 2 &

BFEE

ARHRMABE B2 RO
BRI 1y m e om0 B2022>

(1) E2022F W ¥CAFIANMM - BRATHARABEMR24F 26020 ;
(2) #2022 F6AE2023FSAMM - MU FEARTERAE - TARBARE

REMEES (M ERENE ) R B
(GIMAL/BE/ ARAERKRL PRS-
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To g ity e

saving energy and reducing carbon emissions
we support the Government's Energy Saving Charter 2022

We pledge to




The Group uses natural gas as its main gas fuel and vehicle fuel.
During the Reporting Period, the energy consumption was as
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REBURARB T ZREBINE RERNE - 1
HREHE - RAIOEREREEFINWT -

follows:

Types of energy Unit 2022 2021

REREE B 20225 20215

Indirect energy

SE=E
Purchased electricity GWh 509.26 529.78
SNEE S B

Direct energy

HiZmR
Natural gas GWh 515.32 442.78
RAR, A
Gasoline GWh 0.29 0.95
i HIELE
Diesel fuel GWh 1.55 1.31
e & RHF
Liquefied petroleum gas' GWh 0.04 -
BAL AR, HEES
Total energy consumption GWh 1,026.46 974.82
BEFUH AR HEE
Intensity GWh/revenue in million RMB 0.24 0.26
=E FEE BB T ARE RS

1

The Group did not consume any liquefied petroleum gas in 2021. 1

AEER20211FERBERRLEHA -
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Upgrade Equipment to Save Energy REHR B LERE

e
:

m——

Case Study: The Energy-Saving Renovation of Continuous Casting Hydraulic System
O R B A AR EE BB i &

During the Reporting Period, the Group carried out a special action to improve energy efficiency around general-
purpose energy-consuming equipment such as motors, and has taken the lead in implementing energy-saving
transformation on casting hydraulic system, replaced the original pump sets with intelligent energy-saving pump
sets, configured drive control devices, and introduced loT services to achieve automatic control, online detection,
intelligent correction and multiple modes are adopted.
REBRNBERHESEHERARERREIRAZRTE  XAHERRBRGERDEIGE - HRER
BEM BT RAE  MERIIEHERE - Wl AYBARE - BRTEEH - 8 - BEREZT
= o

At the same time, equipment managers can monitor equipment parameters at any time through the mobile
cloud assistant and control the operation status of equipment. The energy-saving effect has been reduced from
37.9 kWh/h to 12.8 kWh/h, a decrease of 66%, which can save more than 200,000 kWh of electricity every year.
We also implemented the energy-saving transformation project of hydraulic presses. After the transformation, an
average of 35 kWh of electricity was saved per hour, and the electricity saving rate was 42%, which achieved a
significant energy-saving effect for the Group.

R - RIBEBASBBFREFRNEERE2E - BIEREETION o HRERRIE37.9 kWhhEE
12.8 kWh/h + FR1EiE66% * BUETE B BT S F A fiE208E M £ - BB KBEEESGETER - BUEBF
HE/PNREIEER3STRE - SEER42%, AAEEDISEZEHERR -

Case Study: Lifted Up the Pump’s for Energy-saving Renovation

=P RARBEESGE

1. Energy-saving renovation of the hot water lift pump in the chemical degreasing room of the comprehensive
pump room
fre RE(CEREMERVKIR A RETRESUE
The Group started to analyze the operation principle of the hot water lift pump in the turbid ring water
system from the current status of the equipment operation, fully studied the original design data of the
system and the current real-time operation data, and measured the cooling tower, chemical degreaser and
other related data in detail, and made a detailed analysis of the pump. Pump groups and pipelines were
transformed. Compared with the original model, it is expected to save 2.28 million kWh per year.
REERZBETEREFONBKEAREERKEZRANETRIE - RHOMRRSGIRRTEIRER Al
BRHEITRIE - S T oalE  LBRARFHEEE - BRE  BRETRE - HHEREER - &
FHEREIAI228BEE o

2. Energy-saving renovation of the heat treatment advection pool lift pump
AR IR TR R B s RS
The heat treatment pump room has 4 installed self-priming lift pumps, and the rated power of a single
pump motor is 160kW. After the transformation, the lift pump will operate in two-use and two-standby
mode, which is expected to save 2.31 million kWh of electricity annually.
ARBERFERRARKBBE RIS  BEARERETIHERIOTR  BUERRERARR A _HETE
N A FAIESHNEE2NEE -

Semm-
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Case Study: Regenerative Ladle Roaster

A gRAEER

L emmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm————————

We replaced the original vertical ladle roaster with a heat-storage regenerative ladle roaster with a single-
button operation, while reducing safety risks, improving heating efficiency, centralizing emission, reducing gas
consumption by 46.6%, and annual gas savings of about 278,000 Nm?* base on the production time.

BARRBELAERRELSEANERE  —§RE  RELZRBROFE @ BAMBME - SR (&
EIRREREA6.6% @ REERFEEFEMOMRLN27 8ERELTTK -

e

Water Consumption

Water is essential to the Group’s business, and we have managed
the water resources accordingly. The Group has not encountered
any problems in sourcing water resources that are fit for its
purposes. We implemented an expansion project on the sewage
treatment station, which effectively improved its treatment capacity.
In our system, we are committed to reducing the amount of water
used in the production process. At the same time, the boiler of the
billet branch plant has been retrofitted with a sodium ion exchanger
to improve the water consumption index of the production boiler,
and raw water consumption has decreased significantly in the pipe-
making and casting processes. To achieve the above targets, we
post water conservation reminders in our office and living areas,
restrooms and pantries to remind our staff of their water behaviour.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s water consumption was as
follows:

K

IKEREAEBEEBT 5 BT - HAPIUAR
FEXTHETRKEE - M BERBEMKTEL
RBEEMMEE - ZPIERTITKEREER
B ARURIT T HEIEEE S - RAEEM RS
o BABRD R EEBEERNKE - [
B - SRR 0 B EE SRIE OSSR BE T SO IER - E
HERERKER  EHIETERENRBLETE
RED RACEREDBERABTE - HEZA LA
12 BMERALER  EFEEAOKERMGE
FRKEIET - IREEE THM/KITA - RIEH
A - NEEZFKEMT :

Water consumption Unit 2022 2021
FEKE By 20224 20214
Total water consumption Cubic meter 659,980.00 735,465.30
BFEKE SR

Intensity Cubic meter/revenue in million RMB 156.10 195.47
7E MK/ BETARB

Case Study: Reuse of Reclaimed Water

=6 : pokE A

BE - KERMAXRES - HMAOFKAE

During the Reporting Period, the Group renovated its water system, interconnected drainage and reuse pipelines
between production lines, improved the refinement of water system equipment management, improved the
utilization rate of water resources, and reduced the amount of fresh water.

BERNREBERRGETHOE - BEEREIKEDAKEREREHER

REKERREBEERBA

In March 2022, the reclaimed water of the sewage treatment station was be reused, and the cumulative external
discharge of reclaimed water in the annual sewage treatment station will be 2,505.75 m3. Compared with the
same period in 2021, the annual discharge of reclaimed water decreased by 13,579.15 m3.

20223 A FaI5 /KRG /KB - FEIS/KEBIEFKREINEE2,505.7552 75K o 2021 5 [ H1 4
b FEHKINEEIRA13,579.153 77 K ©
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Improve the management level of online monitoring data of
water systems

REKERSERENBEEE

Highly e efficient

= x‘i

u”u

Stable Energy‘
conservation
=E ERE
Improve the degree of refinement Improve the water source reuse
of water system equipment rate of the water system
REKERREERBALC RR/KESUKIRE A
Paper AR

Since reducing the use of paper can indirectly reduce overall
greenhouse gas emissions, we have been taking the following steps
to reduce paper consumption:

e Encourage the sending and receiving of files through electronic
channels and the implementation of electronic document
management that significantly reduce the consumption of paper
and ink;

e Use a variety of office software for online office work, reducing
paper usage and delivery;

e Reduce paper usage by printing or copying on both sides when
appropriate; and

e Printing paper is used strictly according to the budget plan, and
over-budget on printing requires strict approval to reduce paper
usage.

EEENWQE?H%%ETF?EFHEEW %/E’_%EFE&
A — EEREUA TR A AR

Hm\m )

o FENETRBUBRERKETETXMHE
- 7(%/}3@9 E?E&Em#ﬁ’*ﬁ’]@'ﬁﬁﬁg :

o ERZEMDTMETR MR - HOMR
2 RS -

o RIEEREBEMmTENE IR R RA
g R
o ITEHEIRIZRAEER  BEEFHERSE

# - OB RRAE -
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7,500 2B RFITENHSER - ZHBERE

expected to reduce about 11,000 A4 sheets per year.

During the Reporting Period, we completed the unattended weighing project and realized the automatic and
paperless weighing of the incoming and outgoing process in the factory. In 2022, the electronic logistics system
recorded about 7,500 weighing records, and the Jinzhong System printed about 80,000 papers. It is estimated
that about 87,000 sheets of quadruple printing paper will be reduced each year after the project.
BEHARMTKEAETHREERR @ ERTEHRBEEBLEELR(L - 2022FEFYRZARBELCEHRD
BEEEE - TR EFARL8.7BRMEFTEN4A

The Company'’s self-developed oil-casing pipeline thread data platform was launched. It is expected to reduce
about 130,000 A4 papers per year. Optimizing the printing method of the exit pass, realizing the electronic exit
pass, and cancelling the printing of the paper exit pass are implemented. Based on the data used in 2022, it is

RAETHRENHEERBRBIET A LR - BAESFORD13BRAME - BCHPIEITEL N BRE
HPIRE - BUBARE HPIRITED - RIF2022FEEMEBIBFTE - BRAESFORD11ERALE -

The Group will continue to record the use of resources in order to
review the effectiveness of conservation measures in the future and
to set more improvement measures and targets.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands that the protection of the environment is an
essential responsibility of global enterprises, so the Group complies
with all applicable environmental laws and regulations and strives
to reduce resource and energy consumption. We have formulated
the Energy Control Procedures ( {g2JRIZHIFEF) ), Equipment
Management Control Procedures ( {:REEEIEHIFEF) ), Spare
Parts Management Measures ( {fEREHEIEHE) ), Pollution
Discharge Permit Management Regulations ( {BESEFA] B2
TE) ), and Greenhouse Gas Management Regulations ( & =R 8
EIBHRTE) ) and obtained the Radiation Safety Permit ( (¥g51% %
FFAJRE ) ) issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
People’s Republic of China.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has actively carried
out benchmarking improvements on the online monitoring
station dynamic management and control system. This dynamic
management and control system upgradation covered on-site access
control monitoring, video monitoring, and parameter monitoring
systems, and realized the integrated and refined management
online monitoring of organic waste gas generated from the coating
production line, platform uploading, and background monitoring,
while satisfying the ecological environment authorities’ management
requirements for the “three standards” for off-site management of
organic waste gas.

REBESFECHEERERNER - IUWERK
B ERAIRE AR - AR BT S B A SR pk =
B R AZ o

BRERRAREIR

AEERARERFEREREENSTESE - &
AREBEETHEERNRBERIOER - BN
BAOERKEERBRE - BABIE T RERIERE
F) (RBELRZEHRERF) (BoEFEER
E) (BOSHAEEREIRCEERBEER
FED) WHGHEARAMERFRE BRI
(B L 2FFAIE)

BEHH AREEREREANERERER
SEBHRERET  ARRETRSEE R
BEE - 2HERRG  BRTRRAEREH
BERARER - FHLE  REEERE 8L
BALER - RRE 7T ERRBTEAHFIHRN
EHERFFRSEET(IZEREINERER
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We have also developed an environmental monitoring plan
and introduced a dynamic pollutant control system to monitor
and manage pollutants in real-time, monitor the environmental
protection information of transport vehicles, and monitor dust levels
in real-time. We also appointed a professional team to conduct
regular monitoring of the environmental impact factors such as
sewage, exhaust gas, and noise level by the Company, and conduct
regular assessments of the Company’s natural resources such as
soil and air environment, review and assess environmental risks in
the business process, review relevant environmental guidelines in
operating practices, and adopt and implement necessary preventive
or improvement measures in a timely manner. Relevant measures
include implementing ultra-low emission standards in Hebei Province,
providing professional training to strengthen the knowledge about
the environment and safety for employees, communicating with
suppliers and partners, setting up occupational hazards notification
cards and risk distribution maps in the workplace.

BMEFERRERTS  RATSAYBEE
BEESGUNBERERNERSRY - EREHER
MIRRES  ERERBEKFE - HMEZR
AEEXEFEARRAEK - BER - REFER
BRERFTETERER - YHARF N HIRR
B ERBESERAERETERNE - REE
BEFHEEBRIETMREAR - a2 EBA
FRRRIRRIES] - MR B L B skekE
HiE o AREREEERNIT LS BEEMIRE -
R E TIRIR - REMBEXRE - BHEERE
TERHBER  REEUZRAREHR - RS MAE

o

=T

o
o

Case Study: Clean Production Acceptance Inspection

=B BREEERX

During the Reporting Period, the Clean Production Acceptance Inspection was carried out. The clean production
management system was further improved, the management level and production technology level were
improved, and certain environmental and economic benefits were achieved. Achieving electricity saving of about
2,515,200 kWh/a, water saving of about 17,100 m3/a, natural gas saving of about 134,100 m3/a, and economic
benefits of 2.6697 million RMB/a. At the same time, VOCs emissions are reduced by 1.31t/a, waste paint and
paint residue are reduced by 0.1t/a, COD emissions are reduced by 0.306t/a, ammonia nitrogen emissions are
reduced by 0.015t/a, and energy saving is 476.35tce/a.

BERNRRBREEERZIE £ PTEFREEEERR  REBEKEMEERMKE - WEIST —
TR IRIE e M B » BIRENEX)251.528kWh/a + §17K401.718m¥a - iIHRARLI13.418mYa - B
KBS A R266.978 70/a - R AVOCsHERR1.31vVa B BER « RBEA0.1¢a * CODJFHE0.306a -
SAMHF0.015¢a - BIREIREE476.35tce/a ©
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B. The Harmonious Society

Corporate Culture — The Meaning of Dalipal

“Dalipal” is the Chinese deduction of “# J73&", which means
“intimate partner”. “Dalipal” is derived from the combination of the
English words “Darling” (intimate) and “Pal” (partner).

Achievement, which means to
achieve high customer
satisfaction, give full play to
employees' abilities, express
employees' ideas, wishes, and
abilities, and to pursuit the
Company's prosperity;
BEEHESHE

The  KEB

§87) R RIEAEHGE

equipped with high

Company is strong;

EmB#HRFN ¢

The three words of Dalipal are our valued commitments to
customers, employees, shareholders and society, which clearly
expound the “connotation” of Dalipal.

The Group adheres to the clear orientation of cultural guidance
and has always continued to promote corporate culture to promote
corporate development. After 23 years of accumulation and
condensation, Dalipal has formed a complete set of corporate
culture systems with its own characteristics, clarifying the specific
content of corporate strategy and vision, corporate purpose,
enterprise spirit, management philosophy, code of conduct and
norms.

Strength, which means to
create value for customers,
while our products are

competitiveness, employees
are innovative, and the

BERIREPA

(=
B

BN RRBEN

RE HEREBHRS

Mgt E

PEXE-ZELIEHEE
[ZEHE |2 Dalipal |WEE  BEAREIBEZMNE
£ ] o [ Dalipal JJR B R S E &[ Darling | (3%
®9) [ Pal (4L MAEE ©

Universal, which means to
share with our community
inclusively, that is, the

Company growth benefits
employees, shareholders

and the society in general.
EELENET  MATE

BT KRR #HE8E

g
[Eiii

{
A
g

ENEZAFERMAES BT - BE - it
R O EEAGH - ARTRAR TN E MR
& -

RER B B FF L S| BHE R BAMT - I AR FHE A
EEXMCTHERMEECEER - KiB23FHRE
REUR - ENECKR T —EEAFACHE
BREEXCER - BT EEUEEES - 4
¥RE - bER - BEER - (TRERIERE

FABAR -
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In order to promote the landing and implementation of corporate  AHEE (M2 XX(Li&H - ZE - ARATHR20224F
culture, in 2022, the Company formulated a work plan for the HIF %X TEREMIIESTR @ BEDLEX
improvement and implementation of corporate culture, determined  {LEZHERAR - HETHFTZBZR  ZEXL
the key construction content of corporate culture, and carried it out  ZJRIMFR S EFARE » VP ESRE - § LA M
from the two aspects of establishing and improving the system and ~ &EfT °

implementing cultural construction, grasped middle-level leaders,
and promoted and practice from top to bottom.

Corporate Culture Quizzes and Competition Activities
TEMCEERGEITD

We carried out a 100-day corporate culture quiz activity for new and old employees to answer
questions every day to accumulate achievements. In order to encourage employees to participate,
we set weekly rewards, monthly rewards, and final rewards, and conducted a cross-departmental
evaluation and extra points for the participation of answerers.

FRAHIORM PR EREE) - TEZETEHEEEERE - RBEETLN - REBEE - K %
RAER - WEHHEBABREE - ETEHBPIERMD -

Corporate culture practice story: corporate culture oath, corporate culture collective display, corporate
culture practice story video
PEXMEBITRE - tEXEE

CEXEERBETR - CEUEEBITHRERA

Enterprise Value - Create value for customers, create opportunities
for employees, create strength for enterprises, create harmony for
society.

Since the establishment of the Company, it has always adhered to QA TR LA » 1A R BIR[ S (L& « 125
the philosophy of “Gaining knowledge for cultivating self-mind.  #f - FAIFHK - B=HFE | - 1FHE - B
Benefiting from the market. Walking the pathway to innovation. 4 - 2/ SEHK = | - AR RBAT B

TERE-ATFRIEER  REIRIEHKS
REEAEEN  RUESAEN -

Maintaining a good foundation”. Without wavering, the Company is
adhering to the comprehensive “tackle the gap with benchmarking”
continuously. We are committed to doing a good job of “immediate”
and focusing on what we are doing. We are also committed to
strengthening the Company’s development and growth and doing
everything possible to enhance the ability for risk resilience, in order
to build a broader platform for business start-ups and a stage that
can give full play to everyone’s talent, so as to expand our capacity
that truly allows our employees to realize their self-fulfillments. As
we believe that employees are connected to and are an essential
part of the enterprise’s strength. “When big rivers have water, the
smaller ones are filled”, is our vision of creating greater value for
employees and customers, as well as contributing to the realization
of a harmonious society. Together with our aspiration of the Chinese
Dream are the original intentions and mission of the Dalipal family.

= FIETHE BORIZERINE TR
FHERMEREE S - REBLEREE NEFE A%
FRIEMWFE  RTENES  ERENER
R - BIERE TR BERAREEBNE
A BETKAMELFRE - FmHARE TR
[RABKANA RS - REPAIEEANE
B AMELeNTRENEREMECHN 0
hE  ERERENEANVIOMER
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Employment e

Enterprise Talents — Knowing people and making good use of BEMLZATB - FAZH  EAKES © 13
them, appointing people only by virtue, introducing talents from NEE » (LA ©

outside to inside, and achieving talents.

) ) N
Knowing people Appointing Introducing
and making people only by talents from
good use of virtue outside to
them FEARS inside
HAEA Sh5IREE

We give tolerance for
our employees’ faults,
allowing mistakes
during exploration and
innovation. We do not
easily give up on any
employee.

REES - RHERR
SRAIFT R A KRR o TEE
SHWEEA—FRET -

We treasure not only
an employee’s ability
and virtue but also
their achievements. We
believe talents are able
to perform duty at any
working level and
capable to work at
different types of job
positions. We
continuously build
channels and platforms
for talent growth, so as
to focus on the career
development for our
employee.

TmEHE  THEX
B OBSETRE %
BEm  BREEHELE
BET - ABREERED
BRETREEE - K
TH¥E  BITEIRE
RS -

Promotions are
standardized,
appointment with a
basis and the virtuous
of relatives are not
avoided. We persist to
perform assessment
before public
recruitment, on-going
evaluation during
employment, and
comprehensive
actualization after
termination of
employment.
BEAAEE  ERAK
B RENER . B
FARTEE - AREE -
FRigiraRE -

Achieving
talents

BRAT

On-site learning and
talent promotion are
beneficial to cultivating
and training employees
who act accordingly
with the Company
culture and gain
experience in multiple
positions, so as to
uphold a mindset to
put themselves in the
customers’ shoes.
IS8R - BEENK:
BOIREERFIRINR A
WEITRARXIE - KE
L ERE - BRI
SHmIZEET o
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Building a core backbone team that highly recognizes the culture
of the Company and consciously practices the Company’s culture
is all the time an important strategic task for the survival and
development of the Company.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Employment Promotion Law of
the People’s Republic of China ( (R ZEAREMBEIGEREE) ),
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {7 AR FE
&)%) ), Social Security Law of the People’s Republic of China
((PEARKEMBIHEREZL) ), Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Minors ( {FZE A R MBI AL FIRE
7%) ), Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Persons with Disabled Persons ( {FZEARKEMBEEER AREE) ),
Regulations of Hebei Province on Population and Family Planning
( CadtE A DS 284 B EH]) ), Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance ( ({2 E#1E15H1) ), Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance ( CG&HIMHEATEEFHENESF]) ) etc. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not involved in any confirmed violation
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare that have a significant
impact on the Group.

We are committed to being an ideal employer and providing a
healthy working environment where our employees can thrive.
We have established an effective system of employment policies,
including equal recruitment policy, equal promotion policy, work-life
balance policy, compensation policy, remuneration and allowance
policy, dismissal and retirement policy, anti-discrimination policy,
diversity policy, training policy, employee welfare and benefit policy.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 1,777 employees
(2021: 1,729), of which all of them were full-time employees.

BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION BY GENDER
HhELEE MHRIEERE
B Mainland China = Hong Kong B Male B Female
ek B B gegis

Hong Kong
BB 7

Mainland China
A 1,770

BfEER—BRERRXIE - BBEITXUEN
ZOEBMERE THM - (EARRAFRRR
B BB -

AEBFEBETEEETRNPEARKNE
MEREZL)  (REARKXMBELEE) - (F
FARANBEHGREBE) - (hEARLNMER
REANREE) ~ (hEARKMBEIRAKR ARE
) b E AR B BIE B 5D - (REMHIE
By R B A TE B 5 8 RG] FHER R FA
BRER - RBEHHE AREABREERHA
SEEEATENTMEEE  BELEA T
RS R FERE - Znlb - REBRIK
HA 18 RAEFAR RERRBER

BPBORAEBET - REEREN TIERE
FEEEEHRE BRAK - RIS HERBER
ROBAYUERS  BREFERERE  FEERR
B TEEEFERER - MEBK - HB R
BUR - AR IE MORRECR « RIBEER - 2Ll
R BIIRRMEERABEK -

HE2022F12A31H AEEMNBETHEZKA
1,777 A(2021 : 1,729N) » 2EAHEHBET -

BY AGE GROUP
FHiE

m 31-40
31-405%

W 57 or above

51BRa AL

| 18-30
18-305%,

m 41-50
41-505%,
1 or aboye

5 mRek A E

41-50 152

41-505%
414
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has a turnover rate as
follows?:

/ Employee Turnover rate

1 O among it
%,

| BBk
1 By gender Male Female:
RIERIEIS BHEE wHEE
i 9% 16%
By age group 18-30 31-40
RFERED 18-305EE  31-40R%EE

18+ 9.

Mainland China Hong Kong
AR S

10 O«

By geographical region
By

Talent Acquisition and Retention

Just like the word “Pal” in the Group’'s name “Dalipal”, it means
“offering opportunity to the employees” in our enterprise culture.
We believe that our employees are the cornerstone of our business
operations and development and are the most valuable asset of the
Group. Therefore, we provided a fair and equitable talent selection
system, and formulated policy documents such as the Administrative
Measures for the Allocation of Human Resources Flow ( { AJ1&
RREELEEIEPE) ), the Specifications for the Management of
Labour Contract Management ( {84 RIEE TIEMRE) ), Rules
for the Management of Work Injury Insurance and Safety Production
Liability Insurance (( TIERBELZE2EEEFTRBREREHEMA
A1) ), Detailed Rules for the Handling of Labour Disputes ( { %85
IR T/E4RAI) ). We have built a talent acquisition team through
external recruitment, internal training, on-site learning, etc., and
developed about 10 various channels, such as WeChat, Baidu Tieba
and others. We have launched professional recruitment websites,
such as “51job.com” and “Liepin Talent Acquisition Platform”,
continuously attracting talents sharing the same philosophy with the
Company to join our team.

2 The number of employees in 2022 does not include probationary employees, and
the number of employees turnover rate is affected by the COVID-19 epidemic to
some extent.

HeinER
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The Group's Corporate Morality adheres to “honesty, integrity and
openness”. The Group strictly complies with the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China ( {FZE AR KB E)E) ), the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (% A
RHEMBEAEARFE) |, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Minors ( {F#E A RHLFIBIRKFAREE) ),
the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ( {ZEIH{F
FHETIMRE) ), the Employment Ordinance ( (IBfE15%I) ) and
other relevant labour laws and regulations. We strictly prohibit any
form of child or forced labour. The Group is fully aware that child
labour and forced labour violate fundamental human rights and
also pose a threat to sustainable social and economic development.
To ensure that there is no child labor employment, we launched
the HR system to realize automatic screening in the system, and
automatic elimination of people under the age of 18. Before entry,
strict examination of their identification documents, and internal
cross-inspection mechanism is carried out to ensure that no illegal
employment incidents occur. At the same time, employment
contracts and other records, including all relevant details of the
employees, are maintained properly to protect the employee’s rights.
In case of any irregularities, we will promptly investigate, punish or
dismiss relevant personnel and verify with the judicial authorities
upon request.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware any of
severe violation of laws and regulations regarding the prevention of
child labour and forced labour that have a significant impact on the
Group.

BPBR[HELE - APA&EE INEXER &
REBTEEETRI(FEARKNBESE L) -
(PEARKFMBELBHARE)  (PEARKM
BARFARESL) (FEIERETHE) LR
RIEGIDZF RS TER AR - BEEAEA
METHRHIST - HARMETREHS TR
LEARARE - TRE A AL S MSBEERBAE
E - RERTFEEEZEIRSR  HALKRHR
i BREAGTEPEHE  KAm18ARAER
BEEA  ABIBRESESHIAMS A
EETR X mE TIEKS - REEEZRATEMF
BE - ARZERTFSBERNEMLE - B
EEMEHMEFE  WREEIHER - R
IR RBBZERIERNITR - ARE AR
FHRE - BEREEMET - WRERAA
AT HEZE -

REHRE - AEEY EHRETEREAEE
BEAFEND 1LE TRRH2 THREEERR
RIS

Re
:

Online HR System
B FHRER &K

In 2022, the Group successfully completed the smooth launch of the HR system and achieved the integrated
management of business information such as recruitment, employee relations, leave, salary, training and
learning, and employees’ daily information inquiries, automatic check-in, online learning, etc. On the premise of
standardizing human resources management, a shared personnel information data platform will be established
to improve the efficiency of information feedback and provide effective data support for company decision-
making. At the same time, the process of using stamps for 7 offline forms and 9 transfer-in and transfer-out
forms was optimized.

720224 - ANEBEIRTTK THREGHIEN LAR - BIRTHRE - ETRE REY - HFM  BIRBEEXRBE
E—R(LERE BETHEEREN BT ERBBFFHVRBBHMTK  EREANEREIETIED
AR BUHZEMABGEREEBTE  REGEEAREBENNE - RARIRRREEMEIEE - AR - BLT
HT7TEARE I NERARRENAERRE -
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Job Position Optimization

A A B 1L

135N ' IRFERBEIFIEINS2A ©

L emmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmemmm————————

In 2022, based on the principle of “simplification and high efficiency”, we promoted the optimization
of job positioning, precise recruitment, and a total of 83 people were covered in the annual positioning
optimization.135 people were added, with a net increase of 52 people during the Reporting Period.

20224 - REERE - 2RUNRA - RFAEEELARELTIE  HERE  FERBE(LHETEIA - 14

ey

Equal Opportunities and Diversity

The Group adheres to diversified employment policies, promotes
the diversification and rationalization of talent teams, and is
committed to providing a fair and equitable workplace where
all individuals are treated equally in every aspect of their work or
employment. Candidates and employees have equal opportunities
for employment, remuneration and promotion. We will not conduct
or tolerate discrimination or harassment against individuals on the
basis of age, gender, race, marital status, religion, healthy status
or any legally protected ground or on any other ground which we
consider inappropriate and unacceptable.

We also place a high value on female employees’ career
development by ensuring that they have the same promotion
opportunities as male staff. We also comply with the requirements
of the Law on the Protection of Women's Rights and Interests
of the People’s Republic of China (" % A R MBI IR 2 25 1R
FE5%"), which stipulates that female employees are entitled to a
basic salary and their employment contracts will not be released or
terminated, without cause, during their pregnancy, maternity leave
or breastfeeding period.

Dismissal Policy

With regard to the policy on the dismissal of employees, the
dismissal procedure must be in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. The reasons for the dismissal will be conveyed to the
employee clearly. Enough notice would be delivered to employee,
while resigning interview and hand-over procedure should be
completed before leaving the Company to protect the employee’s
rights. If an employee has committed serious misconduct and fails
to improve in spite of repeated warnings, his/her supervisor and the
senior management of the Company will have a thorough internal
discussion and allow the employee to answer and explain before the
dismissal is announced.

FE#RRZTIE
AEBERFLZIT(CWBIRE - REATHLZ
THEEREIE(ED M - BUHRE QT R FENTIE
SFT - BB ARER TESERN S FEET
FHEF - KBERRBREHRETFFNIE - FHK
BT E - P TEAFER - 1hl - Bk - B
AR - RERBRETADERRENIEHK
EREMRFPIRBATEE R AIE b 4E
NEFTERR - BERXRBABER

HARSEERZEE THRERR - BRIEES
THEHEFUETEENHE  WBI(PEAR
HNBRZERRER)ER  ZEETAER
B2 ER - WIS RERESRR RS
B RLREEEFERNGFERER

FEIEE R

BEMBRE T CBRME - MERERFIMAR
BEMEG FER - HAIHBREREARE TS
BEE - B RS REMHIZATRA - IR
AR ABEREA M AENREEE - U
REETHHER - ME T 2T RBREXRE MAR
ZREERDABRE  EXBERARFSRE
EEAETEANARN R - YRS hREZ
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Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has formulated the Employee
Attendance Management Measures and
Salary Management System, which define
the rights and obligations of employees’
working hours, rest, holidays and leave,
compensation and benefits, and effectively protect the legitimate
rights and interests of employees. We strictly follow the laws,
regulations and policies of the place of operation, pay labour
insurance and “five social insurances and one housing fund”? ( [ #
% —% | ) in accordance with the law, pay wages in full and on time
every month. Employees are entitled to paid marriage leave, funeral
leave, maternity leave, breastfeeding leave, parental leave and other
holidays in accordance with the law, and enjoy the holiday and
other welfare expenses issued by the Company in accordance with
regulations.

.........................

S,
/

Social Security
Coverage Rate

100%

.........................

L emmmmmm————
eTTTToTooone

o
.

We always respect, recognize and treat every employee kindly,
create a healthy and safe working environment, create a warm
working atmosphere, provide a platform for talents to grow and
develop, so that all employees can grow and develop with us
together.

The Group continues to improve the salary management system
and establish a scientific, reasonable and orderly salary distribution
relationship. We strive to offer reasonable and competitive salaries
and employee benefits to employees, benchmarked with the
comparison of salary levels in the same industry and the relevant
positions. Employees are awarded a salary adjustment and
promotion based on their job performance as well as progress
achievement and the results of performance appraisal. Salaries are
paid on time every month.

In terms of welfare, we provide dormitories for our staff, also
provide family dormitories for families where both spouses are
our employees, which are equipped with free Wi-Fi, dormitory
necessities and a parcel pick up machine. We provide timely
replacement or maintenance of air conditioners. We also provide
continuous improvement of employee accommodation conditions
were achieved, such as automatic water dispensers for employee
apartment buildings, and the use of mobile phones to recharge
water bills at any time.

3 Five social insurances, including pension, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, maternity insurance, and work injury insurance, as well as a housing
provident fund.
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Care for Employees

The Company actively balances the work and life of employees,
organizes and carries out various activities to enrich the lives of
employees, and enhances their happiness and sense of gain. Festival
welfare and staff welfare have also been granted to staff, such as
free haircuts by professional hairdressers for employees and their
families, providing employee shuttle bus services for employees to
commute, and we also provide employees with living and other
subsidies.

RE HEREBHRS

BTH%

NEERFEHE T TFEATE - AEBRARSIAE
BASEETAR  RABIEZRENESR -
BMAE T OB EREN - RHSERE - 'H
REMERBESHEETHT  BEEXERE
MARTIRREREBREES -

Subsidy included:
=341 T

Allowance for working in high temperature; Front-line staff subsidies; Team leader allowance; Skills allowance;
Technician subsidies; and Certificate safety engineer certificate subsidy.
mORERL ~ —ARWEB) - M ROERL - RRAEERL - BRADEAL - RE2THMANE R

We also organize regular staff activities to enhance interaction and
enhance their sense of belonging. During the Reporting Period,
in order to enrich the lives of employees, we organized a series of
activities such as “Celebration 4th May Speech Contest”, Parent-
child Series Activities, Parent-child Relationship Seminar, Women'’s
Day Activity, Qixi Joy Festival, 24th Anniversary Factory Celebration
and so on.

BT ERERE TEHANBRE T ZENE
8 WRMEMNRER - ERESHE - ATE
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BE -~ RARERE)  EH B 24 AFHMES —
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At the same time, in 2022, the general Party branch carried out
a general election, and a new general Party branch team was
established. We organized Party-building activities such as screening
of the Party’s movies, singing songs for the Party were carried out
successively. We also collectively organized the group study of the
Report to the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of
China and promoted the normalization of the three basic works with
the theme of “standardized work” and “improvement of the ability
of operation leaders and team leaders”.

R - 2022 RAESCETT THERR - — &
RSO FREZR  RFIERFARTABEY -
REBXHEL—REEY  SRAEMSETEN
RS ATREEE]  TEER - A
RENEIT I RTEEH =ETIEERIL -

Employee Communication

We appreciate the significance of communication with and care for
our employees. We believe that maintaining a close communication
with our staff allows us to better understand their needs. Thus,
the Company pay close attention and listens to our employees
about their daily work condition, working environment and
personal career development, and replies one by one, with a view
to properly adjusting our internal resources and policies. Besides
employee orientation with the introduction of the corporate
system, culture, environmental health and safety training, position
skills, work procedures, privacy protection, employee welfare and
benefits, catering meals, staff dormitory information, we also
organized a satisfaction survey about canteen meals every quarter
to continuously improve the quality of catering services. At the same
time, we regularly organize symposiums for college students and
employees to care for employees’ work, life, and other aspects.

Health and Safety

Enterprise Safety — Safety First. Prevention is Crucial. Fully
Mobilized. Caring for Life: (1) People-oriented, security is more
important than development. Firmly establish the concept of safe
development, adhere to the policy of safety first, prevention first,
and comprehensive management. (2) There are no blind spots
in safety management; It is better to do more than enough to
prevent the incident happen. (3) Establish and implement the
safety production responsibility system for all employees, and each
employee should be the first responsible person. Starting from
me, we should put an end to the “three violations” and cultivate
good behaviour habits. (4) Build a safety culture atmosphere with
Company characteristics.
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We manage the safety of our employees and production areas
in accordance with relevant occupational health and safety laws
and regulations, and are committed to ensuring a good and safe
working environment for our employees to prevent injury and illness.
The Group complies with laws and regulations including but not
limited to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety
((PEARZMBALZ 24 EL) ), the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Infectious Diseases ( {#
= NREMBEREAE) ), the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases ( (¥
= ARLMEEEMRIA%) ). During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not violate the relevant laws and regulations in providing
a safe working environment and preventing employees’ work
injuries that have a significant impact on the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no severe safety
incidents or fatalities. However, there were 828 lost days (2021: 627
days), mainly due to minor injuries caused by improper operation
of machinery and equipment failure. The statistics for the last three
years were as follows:

RE HEREBHRS
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Statistical indicators Unit 2022 2021 2020
BEtER By 20225 20214 20204
Number of work-related fatalities person 0 0 0
B T T A B A

Rate of work-related fatalities percentage 0 0 0
TR ® Btk
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Work safety

THELZE

By considering all possible preventive measures, we formulate safety  #i@E%E E— ) r]gEFAM A - TRPIGIE L 2R
governance plans, including work plans for Safety Production Risk ~ F% @ BiEZ2EER SIS ESHEEESHE S
Identification, Management, Inspection and Control for Hazards, 2T {EFHZE - BEREEEEMHES © J15kET
On-site Environmental Management Implementation Plan, etc., and Y REZ2EREFEERMELELEH 2581

A

strive to establish standards and measures for the highest safety and ~ BY% 2 EH - NETEINTIERE - 815 :
health performance, to enhance the safety awareness of employees
for achieving zero accident in our working environments, including:

Occupational Health &
Safety Management System

BR@EZ 2 BRG]

Safety & Health Inspection
ZERERR

Improved the construction of occupational health and safety
management system, implemented occupational health
and safety management responsibilities, and improved the
occupational health and safety management system.
TEBERRLIEBERBARR  REBERRLZERAMET
REBERELZERNE -

Equipped with on-site safety management staff, arranged third-
party operators to uniformly assemble and wear standardized
labour protection equipment and implemented unified
management by the local units.

RERSZEERAR  HE=JTEXAEBR—FTERERE
BB ERm - BB RETR—EIE

Comprehensively improved the occupational health examination
work of employees, conducted occupational health inspection
for 677 employees in relevant positions, and the “Notification
of Occupational Health Examination Results” was signed by the
employees, established employee occupational health monitoring
management files, with 100% establishment rate.
PHREAETIREREERIE - ARc778EMELE TH#T
BEERER AR IARAARKBEREREERSHRHE)
B TRXEFEEREI100% °



Safety Inspection
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Safety Awareness Cultivation
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Promoted the sampling verification of joint inspection of safety
management, carried out monthly safety risk assessment, installed
“Ruisenyun” (3#%2) safety informatics platform during
the Reporting Period, actualizing risk assessment automation,
effectively increased the safety management efficiency.
HEZZEREBAREHMERE  SAULE2RBETHE &
BEARITE ImRE 22T A ERREHEAME A
BIRE R 2 EIRE -

Regular inspection of special equipment, accessories, and
firefighting equipment, and newly built firefight controlling
system with fire report automation.

EEDRERTIE AR - B BB AR - ERTERIED BB AN GRE
P R

100% Special equipment inspection rate

HERHERBRAEEE100(%)

100% Safety accessories inspection rate
2 M RERZE100(%)

Cultivated a safety culture, set up safety publicity walls and
exhibition boards, conducted publicity and training, established
reward mechanisms for accident or incident reporting, continued
to carry out safety team construction, hold emergency drills,
carried out 100-Day Safety Production Award and “Safety
Month” activities, such as learning of “Accident Warning Cases”,
Dual-Control Knowledge Reading, carried out slogan collection,
“21-Day Safe Behavior Development”, etc.

BEREX(  REXZEEE R - BETSEEI - FHE
SRS FERRERDITARR  BRESER - F
BRLzHEEBRE  [Z2 A8 0 BB FHEREN"
SIAE - ARIEEESE NN RLRTREXNE -

Organized training on occupational health, drill of accident
emergency response plans at all levels, emergency rescue
competition etc. The training were completed at a rate of 100%
on schedule, conducted one-on-one safety education and training
for employees before work.

FRSERZEE  SRFHESEEBRE) - BRLR
Z ORI E100%  HET FRAET —H—%2HE

5ol o
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Safety Drill

ERHE

Also, the Group has obtained GB/T24001-2016 Environmental
Management Systems Certification, GB/T45001-2020 Occupational
Health and Safety Management Systems Certification, Q/SY1002.1-
2013 CNPC Health, Safety and Environmental Management System
Certification, AQ/T 9005-2008 Assessment Standards of Enterprise
Safety Culture Developing, Work Safety Standardization Il-Grade
Enterprise Certificate, Provincial Safety Cultural Demonstrating
Corporate and other occupational health and safety-related
qualifications. Employees should attend formal operations, regular
training, safety checks and testing before work. At the same
time, we have formulated more than 30 health and safety-related
management systems, including but not limited to:

Regulations on the management of safety education and
training;

e Occupational health and safety operating procedures;

e Regulations on the management of safety production risk
management and control;

e Occupational health management regulations;
e  Fire safety management regulations;
e On-site environmental management implementation plan; and

e Measures for the management of labour protection equipment,
etc.

Safety Warning Education
ZEER 7R

Safety Competition
ZER

[ - REEJRBE T GB/T24001-20163R5E 58

ZRFE - GB/T45001-2020 2B EL 2 E .
B2 Z R - Q/SY1002.1-2013 4l HSE 5% %32

B (P EREEERITEZERD(AQT 9005-
2008) « BEEEZREL_FOEEFE AREK
X ERECEERERFETEHBANER -
i 8 TAIEVRIERT - BETEHE - 22K
BWBBBIH o R - HMIHIE T 308 HEE
M2 HETESNE - BEETRRY

o REHEFEIEEBRTE

s BERRLZETEF

s REAERBREREEMT

o WEBEREEME
o B LEEEMTE
o WGRIREEIWE K

o YEIFEAMEEINES -



Annual Report 2022 F &3k

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

For on-site noise control measures, we have implemented
optimization work, including but not limited to low-noise
equipment, such as high power dust removal fan, water pump
etc. We also adopted basic vibration reduction and noise reduction
measures, such as adding the muffler to dust removal exhaust,
soft connection for the continuous caster fan and the flue, setting
cushioning material at the roller and bench to reduce collision
noise in the oil tube, using the non-noise material bucket. In the
meantime, we adopted sound insulation in the wall of plants to
reduce the noise effect on the surroundings.

In addition, we have set up a green channel in the plant to
distinguish the operation area from the non-operation area. The
green channel can be used as a safe passage for non-workers
and outsiders as well as an escape route in emergency situations.
In addition, we configure professional earplugs for employees to
minimize the impact of noise, configure noise detectors in the
workshop to regularly monitor the noise level and implement control
measures in a timely manner.

Pandemic Prevention and Control

The Group adopted a series of prevention and control measures in
accordance with the requirements of the Government, including
providing masks for employees and setting up disposable masks
garbage bins, comprehensively disinfecting the factory building,
disinfecting office areas and residential premises on a daily basis,
requiring employees to sit diagonally during meals in the canteen,
and setting up security guards at the gate 24-hourly to supervise
mask wearing, health codes presentation, body temperature
checking and registration for employees and visitors. We also set
up medical observation rooms and purchase pandemic prevention
materials, provide food and water delivery and other services for
employees during the quarantine period.

Development and Training

The Group recognizes the importance of training for the
development of our employees as well as our Group. The Group has
established Monthly Training Planning to conduct periodic training
for our employees regarding the requirements of their job duties.
We formulated the Regulations on the Management of Employee
Training and the Code of Work for The Implementation of Training
Organizations. All employees must comply with the codes and
policies and obtain the required knowledge and techniques for their
positions by passing the examinations after the training.
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The Group has established a talent training management system,
in order to carry out talent development and management more
scientifically and improve talent development and management
level. In 2022, the Company formulated a talent management work
plan, through the management personnel ability improvement
project, talent inventory project, learning organization co-creation
project and management system training project to build three
integrated management talent training frameworks, as well as
carried out capacity improvement and talent echelon construction.

After the launch of the HR training platform, the Group has created
rich, flexible and diversified training courses for employees to help
them develop their careers. At the same time, in order to familiarize
new employees with the Group’s working environment as soon as
possible, we provide new employees with various training including
corporate culture, rules and regulations, confidentiality awareness,
welfare benefits, environmental health and safety, job skills,
management and operation procedures, etc. In 2022, the Group
completed a total of 411 training programs.
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Learning Organization Establishment
SRAE/ER

Every Week” and “One Question A Day”.
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According to the IDP Self-development Plan of the talent training project “Deep Blue Plan 2022 (& =t£12022), IDP
learning and sharing community activities were carried out. The activities lasted for more than 9 months, with
a total of more than 2,000 learning and sharing times, fully creating an environment of independent learning,
mutual learning, and a joint learning atmosphere. After nearly a year of operation, the construction of learning
organizations in the Company’s 14 units has basically taken shape, and 4 types of learning organization models
have emerged, such as learning organizations that focus on learning, sharing, reflection, and review in various
functional departments, and learning organization with problem-solving/topic research as the main focus. A
learning organization that transforms downwards with IDP tools establishes a personal IDP self-development
plan, and regularly organizes internal review and sharing; uses HR system learning modules to learn online
courses, exam answering, and other functions are a learning organization built through activities such as “Learning
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Talent Inventory Project
AT BHIER

In 2022, the situation of middle-level and management high-potential personnel was systematically reviewed and
evaluated. First, through the investigation of the middle-level, we illustrated the Company’s middle-level and high-
potential talents from 4 dimensions of experience, potential, ability, and achievement, and provided a standard basis
for the training and selection of subsequent talents. Second, we organized the psychological assessment and 360
evaluation for the middle-level and management high-potential personnel, including 40 middle-level management
personnel and 21 management high-potential personnel, and 59 evaluated personnel participated in the 360
evaluation. At the same time, debriefing and talent calibration was carried out. Compared with the 2021 assessment
data, the ability improvement situation in 2022 was analyzed, and the ability improvement direction for 2023 will be
issued.
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Training Case Study

TPM Equipment Management Improvement Project

We organized the equipment management personnel of each unit
of the Company to carry out the “TPM Production and Maintenance
Training for All Employees”. Through the introduction of the concept
of TPM, the introduction of the comprehensive efficiency index of
OEE equipment, the teaching of AM independent maintenance
and PM planned maintenance methods, and the implementation of
initial cleaning activities, the participated equipment management
personnel have deeply experienced that there are still many problems
in the Company’s equipment management work. From the overall
efficiency index of equipment to independent maintenance, planned
maintenance process methods, and then to the initial cleaning
activities of equipment in the coupling section on the spot, it
effectively improves equipment management personnel’s awareness
of equipment management and equipment management skills,
laying the foundation for subsequent TPM equipment management
consulting projects.
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TPM Equipment Management Improvement Project
TPMER 1 E R E A

“Deep Blue Plan 2022" Training

Establish an IDP self-development plan for 39 middle-level based
on their personal ability shortcomings, and establish a high-level
mentoring system for 19 key middle-level staff. At the same time,
establish a mentoring commitment letter, standardize the mentoring
mechanism, and continuously and systematically conduct training
for middle-level.
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“Light Blue Plan 2022 "Training

First, according to the role orientation of management high-potential
personnel, take independent learning as the main line, participate
in the construction of learning organizations in various units, and
improve their own management and professionalism through
continuous independent learning, knowledge sharing, reading
sharing and group collective learning ability. Second, design relevant
training courses from the perspectives of role change, system
thinking and efficient execution to accelerate the transformation
of managing high-potential personnel from managing business to
managing people and leading the team.

RE HEREBHRS
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“Light Blue Plan 2022 "Training
[BEF#/2022) 13

Enterprise Management Sandbox

In the third quarter, two “Enterprise Management Sandbox”
simulation training were organized for Deep Blue and Light Blue
Plan. Through the close-to-real simulation of enterprise operation
and management, managers can personally experience the
complexity and competitiveness of enterprise operations and
improve the management thinking of managers. And “finance as
the core” management awareness.
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Enterprise Management Sandbox
IERELEIHE
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Intellectual Property Rights Thematic Training

In 2022, the quality management system knowledge training was
carried out. At the same time, the professional knowledge for
recording and filling according to the requirements will be publicized
through Dalipal’s enterprise WeChat. For general requirements,
video courseware was recorded and uploaded through the HR
platform for those who need to learn. At the same time, external
organizations were invited to conduct training on APl Q1 quality
management system specifications for manufacturing enterprises in
the oil and gas industry, and focused on explaining weak links such as
Company procurement and equipment management.

We established a learning organization for technical talents,
established four technical groups for billet casting, tube rolling, heat
treatment, and tube processing, formulated the “Operation Plan
for Elite Study Classes for Product Process Technicians”, and solved
key technical problems through experience sharing and professional
discussions.

During the Reporting Period, a total of 1,777 employees attended
the training by the Group, with a total of 18,290 times of
participation, for a total of 70,574 hours. The following are the
training statistics of employees:
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MIEBENEAFRETEER - BERERER
BGEERIF - BEBHRF & LEHTEARETSR
B o FREGHINEIEEEAP Q1AM RARITE
ECFEEEEBAREMETIE - HRFK
B RBEESENREOET T EHER -

FRAZEM A BEREBVER - BT - BE - &
B3R - BN T AR AR - BIECE R T B
MABRBRBBNWELZTR)  BELBHAZER
BRI S NBARR B RI;MEERE -

REHBER - AEESZIIABIEF1,777A - H
118,290 AR 2 MEZFI - B ZFIEEA70,574
N o AR BB TSR

Average
training hours
per employee

BEER

Percentage of
employees trained

Training situation ZIER FZIhtE FIZINRE
By gender 4 Bl &l 5

Male ES 100% 40
Female 18 100% 38
By employment category ZREBERE D

Senior management SREREAE 100% 212
Middle management RREIEAR 100% 109
Others HiwAE 100% 37
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Supply Chain Management

As part of our commitment to environmental protection, product
quality and social responsibility, we recognized the great importance
of supply chain management and formulated internal policies and
guidelines and selection of external suppliers. The Group has a
stringent supplier selection process and management approach, such
as Procurement Control Procedures and the Supplier Management
Policy. The Group works closely with its suppliers who are committed
to high quality, environmental, health and safety standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 103 major
qualified suppliers (2021: 101), all of which were located in
Mainland China, and all key suppliers were assessed during the
Reporting Period, including supply quality, delivery time and service
quality.

The Group established the supplier stock-in and stock-out
mechanism. We continue to adopt a purchase system to enhance
the communication and monitoring of suppliers. Every contract
with suppliers should be approved by the Operation Management
Department before signing to clarify and improve the material
classification, evaluation requirements and some key ESG indications
in the supplier quality assurance system, including but not limited
to product quality, labour standards, environmental and quality
management, and ethical business ethics.

RE HEREBHRS
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(202145 : 101R) » AR FEIAHE - 37 H
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BEGIREHEFHERNEE - ETHRE
ALLEFERARMEER - BHERENENIOFR
RBELEIERNERE T ETRE - IS
HBMTE TWENE  EERERZFELES
DEARESGHEEMAHEHTERR - £FET
RREMEE - STHEA - RIENESEEAR
BIREEERT -

Supplier Stock-in, Assessment, Review and Exit
HERREA - B TE - BREEREEH

Strict screening of new suppliers, review their qualifications, credits, etc., and regularly check their qualifications.

Supplier Stock-in
HEREA

el

Supplier Assessment

HEEEL
el

Supplier Review

HrEmsHE

el

Supplier Exit
HERR L

JHIT - BERE M NER S EIERT

EAEEREATECURRY - WEETEE  FR%RE - WEHEHEERER

Strengthen the dynamic management of suppliers, continuously optimize supplier access conditions, require suppliers to sign the “Compliance
Commitment” before signing contracts, and the materials supplied must comply with national and local safety, environmental protection, fire
protection, occupational health and intellectual property rights management regulations;

IEREEREBIREETE - TR CHVERAART  ERHUERREARAEE (AREH) - MEENMARTARREA RS  &]’IR -

Classify suppliers according to the supply materials (key suppliers, non-critical suppliers) and require special qualification/license documents.
RBHEWEHHERETORER (BiRfty - JFRIRMES) ERIRMUTRED/ oz
For key suppliers, according to the quality and safety requirements of the purchased products, investigate the suppliers, select the suppliers with
better conditions as the primary selection suppliers, and fill in the “supplier capacity inspection form”;
YRRy - RERBERNRENRZ2ER - BHUTEITRD - EREIBINERTIER - BR [ hERR] ¢
For non-critical suppliers, on-site evaluation or product trial evaluation can be selected to confirm their scope of supply.

HIRRABGL)T - APRERGTHESER S AHENFES N - ERANEEE -

Evaluate suppliers every year based on their performance in terms of quality, environment and society, and compile a list of qualified suppliers;
FE/HAHERERE RN HESHENEEBREERFRRTE - FHARHETRE

Advocate and gradually require important suppliers to certify quality, environmental and energy systems.
ERWESEREEHEETRE  BENERERRE -

Suppliers who do not perform or cannot perform the contract, fail to meet the requirements of quality, safety and environmental
protection, anti-fraud, etc., violate laws and regulations, and the rating results do not meet the requirements will be eliminated after

approval.

YN TEITRTEEITAR - TREMERE - R2RIR - REXFER - @RERURIRBRARZZRGUER - &4t

FERIE T IR ©
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Supplier ESG Management

While actively practicing the ESG concept, from the perspective of
supplier evaluation, the Company encourages suppliers to participate
in the establishment and certification of standards such as energy,
environment and quality management systems, and actively guides
and promotes the ESG concept.

The Company incorporates corporate social responsibility guidelines
into supplier access and evaluation standards. In 2022, the Company
revised the “Integrity Agreement” to “Compliance Commitment”,
formally incorporated ESG requirements into supplier commitments,
and integrated its business ethics, environmental management,
and green emission reduction, clean production, labour standards,
product quality and other ESG indicators in its commitment and
evaluation system. During the Reporting Period, ESG basic training
was carried out for suppliers to publicize ESG concepts. About
60 suppliers completed the training, and a total of 323 people
participated.

Product Responsibility

Enterprise Quality — The pieces are the user, the pieces are the
market, and each pieces create the brand. One pipe, one well, one
tube, one market.
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The Group strives to create value for customers, adhering to the
entrepreneurial spirit of advancing with the times, thinking for
new changes, and overcoming difficulties, to have the courage
to pursue excellence, genuine and demanding standards of high
quality, achieving quality standard management. We always focus
on product quality management and improvement, set leading
indicators, and strive for high quality and high goals. Promote total
quality management, refine management actions to all elements of
product quality and the entire process of product realization, and
realize closed-loop quality management throughout the process to
achieve continuous improvement of product quality.

Quality Assurance

The Group endeavours to offer high-quality products and services.
We are committed to improving our product quality, attracting
new customers and strengthening the relationship with existing
customers. We have established a comprehensive quality assurance
system. The Group has set up a competent comprehensive quality
control department, which implements product quality standards
in strict compliance with customers’ requirements. During the
Reporting Period, the Group had no violation record on relevant
laws and regulations relating to quality assurance issues.
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Product Responsibility
We place importance on the quality standard of our products and
services, and ensuring customer satisfaction with our products and
services is a priority for the Group to achieve sustainable growth of
our business. We are committed to ensuring compliance with laws
and regulations on product health and safety, labelling and privacy
matters, including the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic
of China ( {(REARHEMBIEMZEEX) ), the Civil Code of the
People’s Republic of China ( {(FFZFEARLFBEREH) ) and the
Hong Kong Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance ( (& EAE R
(FLEZ) 1&41) ) etc. Policies regarding product quality and safety,
as well as compliance with laws and regulations, have been clearly
stated to employees and suppliers. During the Reporting Period,
there was no incident of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations on product health and safety, advertising, labeling and
privacy matters relating to our products provided. A sound quality
management system has been formulated, including raw material
procurement, product manufacturing, product testing and other
links. During the Reporting Period, the Company passed the external
system certification of quality management.
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We also provide customers with services such as the “Product User
Manual”. During the Reporting Period, the Company has finished
two non-API casting products corporate standards, Dalipal won
the honour of “Quality Partner” of China Petroleum Technology
and Development Corporation, was admitted to the list of qualified
manufacturers of the Kuwait Oil Company, obtained the EPEC
credit evaluation certificate with an evaluation level of AA, rated as
Excellent in the Evaluation of Hebei Provincial Enterprise Technology
Center in 2022 to recognize our effort in product safety and health.
During the Reporting Period, we had no violation record on relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to product responsibility issues.
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Safeguarding Measures

The Group adheres to technological innovation and promotes
quality progress. Through manufacturing technology innovation
and process progress, a number of seamless steel pipe products
and manufacturing technologies with independent intellectual
property rights have been formed to ensure product quality and
enhance the Company’s brand value. During the Reporting Period,
26 technological innovations were completed and 32 quality
improvements were completed, an increase of 37.8% over 2021,
which enriched the product structure, improved efficiency, reduced
costs and increased quality significantly. A total of 438 technical
rationalization proposals were made and implemented throughout
the year, an increase of 6.8% over 2021.

We steadily and continuously source high-quality raw materials
in order to achieve a continuous supply of high-quality products.
Adhering to the principles of openness, fairness and transparency,
we actively promote supply chain management, and have a
comprehensive supplier access, evaluation and assessment system
to achieve quality control throughout the process; continue to
strengthen the procurement management of raw and auxiliary
materials, promote quality early warning, information sharing, real-
time tracking and supervision, and improve the quality of raw and
auxiliary materials through an effective management system.
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Quality Management System

The Group continues to improve the quality management system,
strengthen product quality supervision and control, enhance the
quality awareness of all employees, and promote the construction of
quality standardization.

We established an enterprise standard quality control system,
focused on the characteristics of the Company’s product structure,
and released “Technical Specifications for High-strength and High-
toughness Oil Casing and Tubing Part | Casing for Deep and Ultra-
deep Wells (standard number: Q/DLP 102-2022)" and “High Gas
Seal Special Thread DLP-T4 Size Parameters and Performance
Specifications for Oil Casing (standard number: Q/DLP 101-2022)",
and formulated 5 internal control standards. System management
personnel and professional and technical personnel jointly promoted
“position standardization inspection”, constantly improved position
operation standards, and promoted all employees to establish quality
system management thinking, so that the quality system can be
effectively operated.

We revised 56 internal technical quality management documents,
clearly detailed the relevant business and management processes of
multi-base management, deepened multi-base collaboration, and
continuously improved multi-base manufacturing capabilities.

Quality management through full participation, in quality activities,
enhances the quality awareness of employees. 52 online quality
quiz activities were carried out, and 1,328 people were trained in
technical quality.

Quality inspection and daily assurance were implemented. Daily
quality system process operation inspection formed a system
inspection monthly report. In 2022, a total of 44 inspections, 11
joint inspections, 118 inspection items, and 23 problems were
found, all of which have been rectified as required.

Strengthening quality supervision and rectification were also carried
out. Accepted customer complaints with an open mind, faced the
typical quality problems, carried out quality analysis, organized
rectification, controlled key quality problems, steadily improved
quality under the condition of continuous guarantee of output
breakthroughs.

RE HEREBHRS

EEETERR

FEFERETEEEEERER  MREREER
BEE RAZEEEES  HWELSRELE
E& o

BUNREEEEZRS  BEAFEREHERE
2 Bh 5RESIERREE TR RITR
HE DRI RBEFREE FERY :
DLP 102-2022) |E[ JHEE e A% I
DLP-TAR ST 28U A REAR B (IZER/SE - /
DLP 101-2022) |MIB S ¥IE % « FIEBEAE
IZAESTH - X EIE A BRI FERIITA B £R
[ MUEERE] - TEH TERMUEREE
£ REZERVEESBAEETE  FEEE
RIS BRGETT ©

HFMERTS6TAN BRI E 8 EE XM - AR
b7 22N EREMRREGMERRRE - RMZ
Eib iR - &R SR M BLERE N -

LEEHE  2R2H  BBESRYHR B
BETEEER FRGLEEHRTEHS2R

o J: F
T Es &1E1,328 AKX ©

LEKE BERE BPEERRXBRET
BE - EKERGRE AR - 2022F HitteE 44
Ko BEREINR  BEEE 11818 - BIRME
2378 - HER B KGR T W -

RICEEEENEN - EUEIXEPIEF  BEE
FHENADEEME  HREE0T  AEE
N EREHEERE  EREREEERN
BT HE0RIRET -

149



1 5 O Dalipal Holdings Limited 3 ) 2% A R 2 &)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - HERERHRE

Case Study: Green Economical High-toughness 110V Products
P #eKBERNSERI1I0VER

In 2022, the price of alloys in the steel industry remained high. After a large number of literature research and field
data analysis, the Group broke the traditional thinking of using high-cost Cr-Mo steel composition systems for high-
strength and high-toughness oil casings and changed to adding economic alloy that combines strengthening elements
and a special heat treatment process used to produce high-strength and tough oil casing products. The amount of
alloy added in the same high-strength and tough products is reduced by 5%, which effectively reduces the use of
alloy resources. During the Reporting Period, the delivery and use exceeded 4,600 tons, effectively reducing the energy
consumption of each link in the national alloy mineral development process, and at the same time, reducing the
natural gas consumption and electricity consumption in the smelting process after the composition adjustment, and
contribute to the sustainable development of the country.

2022FMEACEBREERETT » LBREXBER AR LRSEELTT - AEBITRESRSRIHEE —
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Case Study The First Launch of Rare Earth Corrosion-resistant Oil Casing

R HiMBRREEEERER

Rare earth is known as “industrial vitamins”. Adding trace amounts of rare earth to steel
can significantly improve the ductility, wear resistance, heat resistance, and corrosion
resistance of steel. However, rare earth is reactive and difficult to add to the production
process. The Group has cooperated with a well-known domestic university through
industry-university-research cooperation. After nearly three years of joint research, in
November 2022, the rare earth corrosion-resistant oil casing was first launched in China.
Compared with conventional oil and casing products, rare earth corrosion-resistant oil and
casing can improve the corrosion resistance by more than 50% without increasing the
cost, which can greatly increase the life of oil and gas wells, reduce production costs, and
improve the safety of petroleum engineering.
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Case Study: Heat-free Treatment of High-toughness Oil Casing Products
P RRARESIMHREEER

In order to improve the safety of oil and gas drilling and production, customers have
higher requirements for the impact toughness of oil and casing, which can no longer
meet the requirements according to the general API standards. To meet the customer’s
requirements, according to the traditional process method, J55 and K55 steel-grade oil
casings need to be produced by online normalization or offline full-length normalizing
heat treatment, which has a long process flow and high energy consumption. As to
meet the purpose of green research and development, the Group formed an R&D team,
conducted a large number of tests from the alloy composition design of the material
and the temperature control and deformation control of the rolling process, and finally
successfully developed high-toughness J55 and K55 oil casings without heat treatment.
The performance of the products has reached the production level of traditional online
normalization or offline full-length normalizing heat treatment, which reduces carbon emissions by 25% compared
with conventional production processes. In 2022, a total of heat-free high-toughness J55 and K55 oil casing products
were sold to more than 5,000 tons.

RTRAMRERNZDN  TREOEENEEIEERERES - RRBANAPIREZE KB LT T
FR o BREEFPHENR  RBEHMWIEFG L - )55 - KSSHRMBEERRATET LB EERIEANR
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RETA KB HIBIZHREERIRBIATHHET T RENHER - ZEKINFE L RRRIBHNSEEISS5 - KS5HE
EEMm  SAMEEENTERERBCIBRERENNARIENEREKT - BEREETEMEHEE25%
BREEAR - 2022 F HIHE R AR IS5 - K55HEE Em5, 000870

Enterprise Service — Think about what customers want and what
customers need. Customer demand is our goal. Persist in create
value-added services.

Complaint Handling

In order to effectively control product quality, we have formulated
the Quality Emergency Plan Control Procedure ((E £ 2TBERIE
HIF2F) ), which clearly stipulates the management of unexpected
events related to product delivery, such as post-evaluation and recall
procedures. We are pleased to listen to consumers’ opinions. To
this end, the Group has developed Customer Complaint Handling
Mechanism to investigate and handle complaints promptly as well
as feedback to the clients. Customers can express their opinions
by verbal form, telephone, mail, fax, visiting or other form to the
Group. During the Reporting Period, we achieved 97.46 points for
the overall customer satisfaction score, and there is no products and
services related complaints received and there is no product recall
for health and safety problems.
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External customer complaint handling rate 100%
SRR P IRER, ARERRE100%

Overall customer satisfaction score 97.46
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After receiving complaints from customers, the Sales Department would share relevant information

with the Technical Department, senior management and general manager.

BHRLRBIRGE - BEREEREEEERER

NERMERAB

The Technical Department would lead a handling team to conduct an onsite investigation. After

investigation, a proposal would be raised.

HEESERD R EEEZRE/ N - ETRISRELKEEL R

The handling team conducts quality assessment, prevention measures, implementation and verifica-

tion towards specific complaints.

R/ MUETEEREM R EEREIE - Btk

The final proposals are reviewed and approved by senior management.

BRASREBEASHAE -

The Sales Department is responsible for communicating with the customers on the proposal and
ensuring customers’ opinion is properly handled and recall the relevant products if necessary.
EHEPOBERTPER  MREFNERBEERE - TARERDWERER -

Privacy Protection

The Group takes privacy issues of our customers, internal employees,
data, any external partners and suppliers very seriously. We have
established Confidentiality Management Policy ( {({R% & 12 Hl|
fE)) and the Management Rules of Confidential Personnel (%
TABEELHA])), clarifying the list of confidential matters, the
list of key confidentiality parts and the list of key confidentiality
personnel, and stipulating that customers’ information should not
be revealed to anyone other than staff who are in the normal course
of conducting duties and responsibilities. Disclosure of customers’
confidential information to unauthorized personnel is prohibited and
could result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination
of employment. We launched a special article on “confidentiality”
in the Company’s WeChat Magazine to enhance employees’
awareness of confidentiality. In the meantime, we show the Group's
commitment to uphold privacy protection through the following
measures:

e Identify confidential information and adopt confidentiality
labelling when presenting and transmitting documents in the

business system;

e Publish electronic exercises to employees about the education of
privacy protection knowledge;

e Conduct IP background checks on employees;
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e Require new employee to sign non-disclosure and non-
competition agreements;

e Require business partners to sign non-disclosure agreements,
while outsourcing staff must attend confidentiality training
before entering the factory;

e Post confidentiality labels in confidentiality-sensitive areas,
where outsourcing staff must enter or exit with approval and
documentation; equipment with functions such as audio
recording, video recording, photography, and information
access are prohibited for all outsourcing staff;

e Strictly control the scope of confidentiality and avoid public
access; and

e Enquiry in relation to the Company’s business confidential
information shall not be answered or presented arbitrarily.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group understands that the effective operation of the
intellectual property management system protects the intellectual
property rights of the Group’s products and ensures that we do
not infringe the intellectual property rights of others. Therefore,
the Group is committed to obtaining certification and establishing
intellectual property management policies to safeguard and protect
our intellectual property rights. We have established policies such
as the Intellectual Property Rights Management Control Procedures
(CABERESEEHEF) and the Intellectual Property Rights
Operation Control Procedures ((HEEREETTIESIIEF) ), and the
intellectual property protection clause is included in the contract to
ensure that both parties to the contract apply the same standard in
protecting intellectual property.

During the Reporting Period, the Group systematically sorted out
and benchmarked intellectual property management documents,
improved the intellectual property declaration, examination,
review and award processes and standards, issued the Intellectual
Property Rights Management Control Procedures, and completed
the classification of all authorized valid patents. As of December 31
2022, the Company has obtained a total of 89 authorized patents
(2021: 73). During the Reporting Period, the Group has applied
for 24 patents, increased 380% compared to 2021, there were
13 invention patents among all. We were assessed by the Hebei
Province Enterprise Technology Center and were awarded the
“Excellent” title by the Hebei Province Development and Reform
Commission.
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Innovation incentives

Adhering to the concept of “innovation is the source of development
and the main theme of enterprise development”, the Group is
open and sharing, keeps pace with the times, takes the initiative
to change, and adapts to changes. Continuously improvement in
the innovation system, vigorously collect and promote innovative
measures at the technical, management and other levels, increase
investment in innovation incentives, and continue to create
an innovative atmosphere with full participation, helping the
Company to innovate and develop new motivation, and lead future
development with scientific and technological innovation.

Independent research and development of innovation
incubation platform to drive the participation of all employee
In order to publicize innovative ideas, improve innovation awareness,
encourage and improve the ability of all employees to identify
problems and active problem solving, and effectively collect and
feedback employee suggestions, the Company independently
developed and operated the “innovation incubation platform”,
established a smooth and feasible incubation platform process,
successfully built a feedback channel, and obtained a computer
software copyright registration certificate. Since its launch in May
2022, a total of 375 recommendations have been received by the
end of 2022, and 136 recommendations have been completed and
implemented.
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EEA SRS ERIF R - ARIFER
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feedback
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Innovative
incubation

RIFTE

Problem-
solving
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' Encourage and enhance the
ability of all employees to identify
problems and active problem solving
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I TR AB R B Y BE D




Annual Report 2022 F &3k

155

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

We also establish the “Innovation Liaison Working Group”, actively
carried out management innovation work, smoothened docking
channels with the heads of various units and innovation liaison
officers, encouraged innovation liaison officers to play an active role,
and guided department employees to explore ideas and actively
innovate. In 2022, all units submitted a total of 174 management
rationalization suggestions and 21 management improvement
projects.

Independently developed and built the Songbo System 2.0
The Group independently developed the Songbo System, optimized
it during the Reporting Period, developed visual statistical charts,
optimized the database query speed (increased from 30s to 0.5s),
incorporated the regular inspection of the information system into
the scope of the system, updated the equipment file information
in a timely manner through the information method, automatically
generated management reports and analysis curves, greatly saved
the time and manpower of statistical analysis work, and provided a
“sharp tool” for the realization of the whole process and life cycle
management of equipment.

Automatic grinding black leather device

Based on the basis of on-site equipment, we installed automatic
grinding black leather devices for oil jacket pipeline inspection posts,
add ball bearing linear modules that can be driven by servo motors,
independently designed electrical systems, set grinding parameters
to automatically complete black leather grinding, greatly improved
grinding efficiency, and reduced the number of inspection personnel
by 6, which can save labour costs by RMB $560,000 per year.

Coupling automatic inkjet equipment

We purchased two automatic coupling inkjet printers, after
debugging coupling inkjet coding automation equipment to achieve
automatic positioning, the printing rate is controllable, the position
is unified, and the printing content and printing effect are neat and
beautiful.
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Intelligent Manufacturing

The Company attaches great importance to innovation-driven
development, upholds high-quality development. Adhering to
intelligence, informatization, digitization, and greenization, we will
continue accumulating brand competitive advantages. On the basis
of “industrial interconnection + energy interconnection”, a “Green
Factory” construction leading group with the goals of energy saving,
consumption reduction, pollution reduction, efficiency increase and
green development was established. Under the direct leadership
of the general manager, a green manufacturing with the system
as the main body, an intelligent factory composed of intelligent
equipment such as robots, CNC machine tools, logistics and storage
equipment, testing equipment, and automated production lines has
been created, and a refined, automated, informatized, and green
production model has been achieved, establishing as a”specialized
and special “full industry chain intelligent manufacturing enterprise.

EreslE
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HL - ST AEIRERRE - FEFE - RIS - 1B
HREBRFESN IR ERAE M - X
BPERES BV TURERERT B
B 4TE T hEERA - BUERK RERE
B BRE - BEMCEERFEREEAKD
ReeTR BHR TR B8t BRI &
BIENEEEN  ERRA—RXAOHERER
EIMEREFRBELESETIH -

o
o

mandrels;
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RIFEAT

and production data information of all production lines;

BBIRER L

BEEABBUE -

seamless steel pipes in China;

various robots for automatic processing; and
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e Data command centre: production scheduling command centre, real-time control of the operation status

HEAEREEDE  AISERMELEERNETREREEZIRER
¢ Intelligent automatic manufacturing: functions such as automatic calculation of process parameters of the
whole line, distribution and execution, recording and storage;

PRIB2HETHE - TEHT  SBREFREEFIE
e Intelligent turnover library: the first unmanned intelligent library for large-scale new energy pipes and special

D AEE - BAEAIALMERBE M REENEEATERE

e Automatic processing units of each production line: each processing and production unit is equipped with

BEERADNTER : SNTEEETRAESERSA  EEFCNT ¢

e MES system: conduct identification, information collection and statistical analysis for the whole process of oil
and gas pipe processing, and provide support for production and operation management.
FHARAARAENIEBRRETHNER - EMRENST O - REELEERIRM S -

S,

Y
Y
'

e Innovate the manufacturing process of oil and gas pipes: the short-process production of corrosion-resistant
and pressure-resistant oil casing steel technology and the automatic detection technology of rolling pipe
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Intelligent Turnaround Library

The Group completed and put into operation the first oil pipe
intelligent turnover library in Asia. The first phase of construction
covers an area of about 10,000 square meters, with a total of 3,544
storage locations, responsible for the turnover and warehousing
management of upstream and downstream raw materials and
finished products. Equipped with steel pipe transfer and stacking
robots, using advanced warehouse management system and
intelligent scheduling algorithms, according to the operation plan,
automatically perform warehousing operations, for hot rolling, pipe
end thickening, heat treatment, pipe processing line production
line to provide the required pipe materials, allowing steel pipe
information tracking branch by branch.

The whole warehouse only needs 2 operators and maintenance
personnel per shift, replacing 12 original overhead cranes and about
120 operators.
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Intelligent Manufacturing Unit

In 2019, 4 sets of coupling threading units were built and put into
operation. Each set of the units includes 2 sets of high-strength
coupling wire cutting machines, 2 sets of coupling loading and
unloading robots, coding, magnetic particle flaw detection and other
equipment, which can perform 2 7/8"-13 3/8" mm specification
APl and non-API standard oil sleeve coupling threading (including
automatic flaw detection).

w . (IO WFTRTONC T
ITTE TRC O e I
WO e

Oil Casing Intelligent Processing Production Line

Coupling screwing process: industrial robots are used for coupling-
feed and pre-tightening. Through the MES system and RFID chip
transmission, the coupling information can be automatically entered,
matched with the pipe body number, and uploaded to the L2/MES
system together. The whole process in fully automation.

At the same time, the oil casing intelligent processing production
line is equipped with the first piece-by-piece tracking system in
China, which actualizes the information tracking of the whole
process from steel pipe to finished oil casing manufacturing, cancels
the manual recording, statistics and transmission of the whole
process information, and ensures that the information is complete,
accurate and timely.
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Community Investment

Put Community Charity into Practice

The Group believes in giving back to the community and considers
contributing to society as one of our sustainable development
strategies. We strive to contribute to projects that promote
community development by setting the Annual Activity Master Plan
2022. During the Reporting Period, the Group donated 186,000
RMB in total. We believe that effective community investment
can lead to a socially responsible corporate culture and practices.
During the Reporting Period, we planned activities related to
environmental and social responsibility according to the advice from
our sustainability consultants.

The goodness of dripping water gathers into the sea. The Company
actively participated in”99 Charity Day”, donated 20,000 RMB to
the “Caring for People in Distress in Huanghua” project, helping the
local people in need to get rid of poverty.

We sent representatives to pay tribute to the “Most Honored
Firefighters” with sincere heart to repay society and deep friendship
and sent them coolness in the summer.

The Company organized the “Mutual Assistance One-Day Donation
for Employees” two times with Cangzhou Bohai New Area
Federation of Trade Unions this year, raised 110,000 RMB in total,
2,647 employees participated.
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Blood Donation

On the occasion of the 19th World Blood Donor Day, Dalipal
organized a voluntary blood donation on 15 June 2022. More than
110 employees participated in this donation activity, and the amount
of whole blood collected was about 30,000 mL.

Voluntary blood donation, what you donate is compassion but
what you help is human life. The employees showed their own
compassion through voluntary blood donation, which not only
reflected the good social conduct of “selfless dedication, friendship
and mutual assistance”, but also a concrete manifestation of
Dalipal’s benefit to the society and fulfillment of corporate social
responsibility.

#Emm
F19REEREME R 2B - #EHERFRR2022
FeA1SHAKAR T EERIES - NXEE
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Responsibility for the Epidemic
During the Reporting Period, the employees of the Group were on
duty for 3,576 hours at the expressway for epidemic prevention
and control, and the volunteers for nucleic acid testing for epidemic
prevention worked for 913 hours.

Donated anti-epidemic materials worth 50,000 RMB to support the
prevention and control of the COVID-19 epidemic.
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M1 EERIRER

wE

Category
=5l

KPI
B

2022
20224

Corporate

Governance
ATRE

Board Diversity
Exez it

Independent Executive Director (%)
JEE FH (%)

333

Independent Non-Executive Director (%)

BB RIEL(%)

66.7

Gender (%)
1% 51(%)

— Male

-5

77.8

- Female

-zt

22.2

Compliance Management and Anti-corruption

EREBRREH

Anti-corruption Training Coverage (%)
RESEIIEER(%)

100

Concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices (Case)
B AARMEREAE (1)

Penalty (ten thousands RMB)
BEieE(BT)

Environmental
RiE

Pollutants

SR

Air Emissions

BESRBEBR

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (ton)
BEALYINOX) (HE)

14.9

Sulfur oxides (SOx) (ton)
&AL Y(SOX) (HE)

0.2

Particulate matter (PM) (ton)
TR (ME)

37.9

Sewage Emissions

BEAKBER

Sewage (cubic meter)

E/KE (SLT7K)

2,505.75
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Category KPI 2022
5l EBE 20224
Environmental Waste
RiE BEEY
Total hazardous waste (ton) 9,011.19
BEEEDE=E ()
Hazardous waste intensity (ton/revenue in million RMB) 2.13
EEEEYRE (W, BETARERE)
Total non-hazardous waste (solid waste) (ton) 65,813.94
mEREYeS (BEBEY) (BE)
Non-hazardous waste intensity (ton/revenue in million RMB) 15.57
EmEEEYTE (M, BT ARERS)

Water Resources

KEIR

Total water consumption (cubic meter) 659,980.00
FREGLFAK)

Intensity (cubic meter/revenue in million RMB) 156.10
BE(GIHAK/ BETARERE)

Energy Consumption

REREE

Total energy consumption (GWh) 1,026.46
gelR EFEE 2 (FELR)

Intensity (GWh/revenue in million RMB) 0.24
TR (FRE /B8 TARERE)

Total natural gas consumption (GWh) 515.32
KARBRERE(FRR)

Total gasoline consumption (GWh) 0.29
FURHEEE (F )

Total diesel fuel consumption (GWh) 1.55
SHERERS(FRE)

Total liquefied petrol gas consumption (GWh) 0.04
Bt BR(EFEE)

Total purchased electricity consumption (GWh) 509.26
INEBE N ERAE(ERE)
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Category
Lzl

KPI
B

2022
20224

Environmental
RiE

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BERE

Direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) (ton)
BEEAEREHNE(SE)(HE)

103,589.58

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) (ton)

BEREREDNE (FE2) (W)

295,878.97

Total (ton)
42 (WR)

399,468.55

Intensity (ton/revenue in million RMB)
=g (e, BExikes)

94.49

Social

HE

Employee Composition
ET&8%

Total number of employees

BTHABIAN)

1,777

— Mainland China
— A

1,770

— Hong Kong region

— &S

Employment Type
ETEREER

Full-time (number of employees)

ZHETAZ(A)

1,777

Part-time (number of employees)

FBMETAZ(AN)

- By Gender
—BIMEE D

Male (number of employees)

SHETAZIA)

1,456

Female (number of employees)

ZHEETAE(A)

321
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Category
Lzl

KPI
BE

2022
20225

Social

e

— By Age Group
—BTHRED

18-30 (number of employees)
18-303%(A)

519

31-40 (number of employees)

31-405%(A)

705

41-50 (number of employees)
41-508%(A)

414

51 or above (number of employees)
518REA E(A)

139

Employee Turnover Rate
BTIRAZR

Total turnover rate (%)
1R (%)

10

- By Geographical Region
- ETEHES

— Mainland China (%)
— N E T (%)

10

- Hong Kong region (%)
—BABEIL(%)

- By Gender
—BEIH4RED

— Male (%)
—EHEE T (%)

— Female (%)

— BT (%)

16

— By Age Group
—BIFRED

—18-30 (%)
—18-305%(%)

18

—31-40 (%)
—31-405%(%)

- 41-50 (%)
—41-505%(%)

— 51 or above (%)

=515 A (%)

Employees returning to work and retaining jobs after maternity/paternity
leave rate (%)

ER/TRERZLIE TIEMRE TIENE THHI(%)

100
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Category KPI 2022
5l EE 2022F
Social Occupational Health
HeE iR
Employee occupational health inspection rate (%) 100
B TR FERIRE(%)
Employee occupational health monitoring management files establishment 100
rate (%)
B TR REEERET E(%)
Occupational hazards in the workplace detection rate (%) 100
TEX 5 P ERE = E ER0RIE(%)
Employee social security coverage rate (%) 100
B THERREEE(%)
Employee Training
8 T3
Total training hours (hour) 70,574
=HIFEESS N
Average training hours (hour) 40
AP R (/K )
— Senior management training hours (hour) 212
—BREBABEIRRCNE)
— Middle management training hours (hour) 109
—HREBRABEIRRCNE)
— Other employee training hours (hour) 37
— BEA B R (1)
— Male employee training hours (hour) 40
—BUHEITHEIRR(IE)
— Female employee training hours (hour) 38
— M B TIFFIRR ()
Total number of trained employees 1,777
EIBAB(A)
Employee training rate (%) 100
8 THE5IE(%)
— Senior management training rate (%) 100
—=REBRABEIIE(%)
— Middle management training rate (%) 100
—FRREIRANEIETIE(%)
— Other employee training rate (%) 100
—EEABFIIE(%)
— Male employee training rate (%) 100
— B4 B TR (%)
— Female employee training rate (%) 100
— B THEHIR (%)
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Category
Lzl

KPI
BE

2022
20225

Social

e

Health and Safety
BRERZ2

Work-related fatalities (number of people)
EITBILTAZ(A)

Work-related fatalities rate (%)
A TEIT L E(%)

Lost days due to work injury (days)
HATEHBEATIIERE(X)

828

Licensed operators rate (%)
EX A B EE(%)

100

Special equipment inspection passing rate (%)

BRI A 1EE(%)

100

Special accessories inspection rate (%)
22 2 MR ER 2 (%)

100

Supply Chain Management
HEEEE

Number of suppliers

HrEREE (X)

103

Number of suppliers by relevant geographical region

ERES S NHEREE (R)

— Foreign country

—BI5p

— Mainland China
—BA

103

Supplier ESG training (number of participants)
HEREESGHEAIN(AR)

323

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons (%)
PRl 22 2 B 7 R ] 00 (K A 2 e 2R (%)

Customer complaint rate (%)
B PR FRRIE(%)

100

Customer satisfactory rate (score)

EFREE (D)

97.46
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Category KPI 2022
5l EE 2022F
Social Innovative Development
e RIFTER
Annual patent authorization (number) 16
FEZNEER(H)
Annual patent application (number) 24
FEEMPHFEE)

Community Contribution
HEE R
Tax paid (ten thousand RMB) 14,503

e —

MBiER(B7T)

Poverty alleviation (ten thousands RMB) 18.59
KEER(ET)
Volunteer hours (hour) 4,489
ETRH(NE)
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited EBBEXEMARATCERE -~ #
Environmental, Social and Governance SRERBERSD
Reporting Guide
Subject Area Content Section
FTEHR RE =4
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements
RERERE
Governance A statement from the board containing the following elements: Sustainability Governance
Structure AFEERER
ESRERE i. adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;
ii. the board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including
the process used to evaluate, prioritize, and manage material
ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and
iii. how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals
and targets with an explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses
HEFSELNER  ETEHA THIRE
() HEREFSHRR HERERFTENEE
(i) BEFHNRE  HGREREETHNKRR - NG - BR
EWIJ&%EEEE’J%?‘ HEREMEREE(BREBITAX
BevRER) B BIR
(i) EFGUEIEIRE %ié\&%iéifﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ CWERET
FIanfrIEE 3517 AR TE R BAE
Reporting A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the Reporting Principles
Principles Reporting Principles (Materiality, Quantitative and Consistency) in the A
E R A preparation of the ESG report.
HASRBEERBRE e RERERNAERAERRI(EE
- EEFR—EIE) o
Reporting A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and | About this Report
Boundary describing the process used to identify which entities or operations R AR S
EmEE are included in the ESG report.
REIRE e NESRENERSDE - R bE LB i
BRARE - g RERMEHMAIE o
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Subject Area Content Section
FESR AEN E=x:0]
"Comply or explain” Provisions
[ FEFRAER R
A. Environment
AR
Aspect A1: Emissions
ATEERRYD
General Information on: Emissions
Disclosure 23187
—RIFE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
FHABERIREREHN - kR THHEES - BEREEEEYD
BEEF
(@) BE: Rk
(b) BFHBETABERZENEBEZNARDINER -
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
HERURE S AR R BER R - HER
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Emissions
emissions and, where appropriate, intensity. P
BERBSHNERTE -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. Emissions
PELAEREEMRERTE - HER)
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, Emissions
intensity. PER)
PELBEEREENMRERTE
A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. | Emissions and Use of
ARSI BE IR E B R R R iE R iE L B ZFT R 22 B o Resources
PR - BIREA
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Emissions
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken | HFH¥)

to achieve them
B EEREEREYNAE  RIBAFIVHREEERA
ER|E L BAZPTIRENA R o
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Subject Area Content Section
FTEHR RE =6
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
A2E R fE
General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and | Use of Resources
Disclosure other raw materials. BIREERA
—RIRE BREREROBE -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and Use of Resources
intensity. BIRERA
RERE DN EE LA ERERERERTE -
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Use of Resources
RFEKEREE o BIREA
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to Use of Resources
achieve them. BIRERA
P RT SV AL IR AR B IR R ARE R AE L B R PR EREREV T 5% -
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit Use of Resources
for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | &JR{FFH
them.
HHCSKEGE R KR E R B ERBRE - ARG S A AR B IR R
RHEDEL B IZFTERRE SR o
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products, and if applicable, | Due to the nature of the
with reference to per unit produced. Group s business, the
BN MATAREMENRERGEESEMNEE packaging used in the
finished products is not
applicable.
HRAREENEBILE
REBRKMABNBE
B o

Aspect A3: The

Environment and Natural Resources

and natural resources and actions taken to manage them.
HAEBRHHRRENIRRERNEATERCRKNEREFATE
BiTH -

AZRBERRRER

General Policies on minimising the issuer s significant impact on the The Environment and
Disclosure environment and natural resources. Natural Resources
—RIRE BIREITAHRERRAEREKERTZENEER - BRELARAER

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment | Emissions, Use of Resources

and The Environment and
Natural Resources

et - BERERRIRR
RRRER
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B HEREAES

Subject Area Content Section
FTEHR RE =8
Aspect A4: Climate Change
AARREL
General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related | Combating Climatic
Disclosure issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. | Change
—RIRE HETAEETENEARBGHEBEENBE S RIRE b
AdA1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Combating Climatic
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer and the actions Change
taken to manage them. FEETRIRE b
R AR AT e @ H BT AEEXENEARGEREE - LEHTT
@J o
B. Social
B.ALE
Employment and Labour Practices
BREREIER
Aspect B1: Employment
B1{EfE
General Information on: Employment
Disclosure =
—RIFE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
EREHH R BEREA  TENHR - &Y FSEE 2T
1t~ RIEARA R H 538 RABFEY
(@ B &k
(b) BTHETAGEAZENHEERZNROINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Employment
geographical region. =
R EAER - FRERI B RS B -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Employment
region. B

RIER - FlERI LRSI DHEERIRALLE -
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RE HEREEHRS

Subject Area Content Section

FTEHR RE =6

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

B2EHEZE

General Information on: Health and Safety

Disclosure (EIE Y E e

—RIEE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
BRRf L2 TERENRERESBEBE BTN
(@) B &k
(b) BTFTHETABERZENHAEEZEROINER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the Health and Safety
past three years including the reporting year. REREZE
BE=F(RREERFE)BFRAITHROABKRLE -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
AIGEATIERS - RERZD

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Health and Safety
how they are implemented and monitored. REREZE

R PTERARBREF R 21806 - ARMBRARITRERIDEA -

Aspect B3: Development and Training

B3 /R R 1E 3

General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging | Development and Training

Disclosure duties at work. Description of training activities. R RIE

—RIRE BRI E B BT TIERE A MR RE BV BUR - #itEFIES -

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Development and Training
category. R RE
R R EESRANESHXIIEEB L -

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Development and Training

employee category.

BRI MEEERIE D - BREETKZIINFIREE -

R NI
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RE HEREBHRS

Subject Area Content Section
FTEHR RE =8
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
B4% T %8|
General Information on: Employment
Disclosure =
—RIEE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BN IEE Tasa g5 TH)
(@ BE: &k
(b) BFHEITABERZENEBEZNRDINER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid Employment
child and forced labour. =
R BB BRI B AR 2 E T K& H|4 T o
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate child and forced labour Employment
practices when discovered. 1Ei%

R IRE R BN HRR B RIS ST EREREY 2288 -

Operating Practices

EEEH
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
B5fHESEE TR
General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply Supply Chain Management
Disclosure chain. g E R
—RIRE ERHEENRE I ERBEE -
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management
mibE D HEEEE - HrEEER
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of Supply Chain Management
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are HERER
implemented and monitored.
G IS R ERONES - mERITAEAENINHERSE AR
BRABOINMITREERTE -
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social Supply Chain Management
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and HrERER
monitored.
R G BB R ERENRE Mt G ERAIED] - LA
BITREREITE -
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable Supply Chain Management

products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R BRE R R (2 2 AIRRE m KRG HIED] - A KRB
TTMEERITE »

HrEsEE g
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RIE - HERERHRE

Subject Area Content Section
FTEHR RE =6
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
B6EME(E
General Information on: Product Responsibility
Disclosure EmEE
—RIEE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.
BRAMREHERMBREOERELZS BE  BERABFEEUR
ROTER
(@ B Kk
(b) BFHBETABERTENEBERENADINER
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for Product Responsibility
safety and health reasons. EmaE
PENEEXERAHTEL R EERIZAMARKNE DL
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how | Product Responsibility
they are dealt with. EmEE
BN Em M RGO IR BB AR EE T -
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Product Responsibility
intellectual property rights. R ERE
ot 6 4 O ARPT AN EE R B AR B -
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Product Responsibility
S S8 E B2 R E mEIIERT o EmafE
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how Product Responsibility
they are implemented and monitored. EmEE
HIUEBEERURE RFLBEBOR - ARARARITRER T
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RE HEREBHRS

Subject Area Content Section
FTEHR RE =8
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BIRES
General Information on: Anti-corruption
Disclosure RES
—RIEE (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BEAD LB - $R - BGFROEREN
(@ BE: &k
(b) BFHEITABERZENEBEZNRDINER -
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought | Anti-corruption
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and RES
the outcomes of the cases.
RERPAH T ASHEEREY D EENE SHARMNHAE
SEEN S
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, Anti-corruption
how they are implemented and monitored. RESF
P e R R WAR T - ARABRAIT RER A -
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. | Anti-corruption
Rt mERR B TRHNRE)5E RES
Community
#HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
B8t EIRE
General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community Investment
Disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities ol g
—RIRE takes into consideration communities’ interests.
Bt E2ERBREEMEHREFTENRRAEKIDHEER
R MR -
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community Investment
BT AR - ol g
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas. Community Investment

EEIHREABAER

HRRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BN 2B ENR S

KPMIG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Dalipal Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dalipal
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 185 to 267, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

DAL AR R 9B M A B AT R

BEHBERARA T
(KBS HBEMA LY HRAF])
=R

BMEBZENEERBRAR(EAR D RE
WBAR([ESE)ENFE185EFE267H 2 ix
BB HE - AP BEER2022F12A31H 248
BYEHRK BEZBALFEZEEBERE
HEEKER GEEZEHRIGARERE
FUARGET BRI ZHFT - BIEERGFTBER
e -

BMRE  ZEGRAUBREERERBRSTE
AEEe((REesEEEe B2 R
RS EL (BRI EER D EEMmMT S
R EEER2022912 A31 HRGEA B
MUREZEZ B ILFENGAVERBEREAIR
SHRE WEBEBEREBAEHIZHEERZA
B -

RRER

BHMEREEEEFHMAS([EEEHIAE])
Bm BB R ER ([ FEFER ) ETHE
it e RMEZFEANTAENEETCEARS
[ B i R iR R B A ER B (F | — £
RYEE— R - RIBBBSAMASHKER
21 A& E TR 7RI VA R AT AR S 3 A9 45 8
SHEHAMBHREANETRENBEESR R
PBs R E5E - W BITZEERKLTHF
MEAMBREL - TAEE - RPOESNETR
ERETT R LA E RPN ER B R ER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Timing of revenue recognition
W 3 R B R

The Key Audit Matter
BREESEE

BB ()

BREEITEE

REHZMINERAE - FRETFELSRMYEA
R AMBRRNBARAEZNER - BLF
HHERPIEABBREUHBBRR IO ATRE
HEITRE - MBRATEHELEREHEBNE
EI o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMEFS P OEE

The Group’s revenue is principally generated from the
manufacture and sale of oil and gas pipes, new energy pipes and
special seamless steel pipes and other products.

The Group's sales contracts with customers have a variety of
terms relating to goods acceptance. Such terms may affect the
timing of the recognition of revenue with these customers.
Management evaluates the terms of each contract in determining
the appropriate timing of revenue recognition.

BEREMEaET EEL ARENEERRRARAE - FERA
BRI BN E R EMER

ERERE ST 2 AR A SRR E R 2
o IR A SR B S B M2 2 VTR B - R
BAERTE 1A B KO TR BB A S A KO AR -

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of
revenue recognition included the following:

e Obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the Group’s
key internal controls in relation to revenue
recognition;

e Inspecting customers’ sales contracts,
on a sample basis, to identify terms and
conditions relating to goods acceptance
and assessing the Group’s revenue
recognition policies with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

BARH A RES ER R B R 81

o TERYFHE BREHUETER TR
HIRASE M ERIR B I ARGT - B SIRE
BRI

o ZERTEHERNZRE  MEBEERP
H3H & B #) ATEE BN B i WOz IRk &
fRfr - WAL BRER WS ERBER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS ()

Key audit matters (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition
W 3 B R

The Key Audit Matter
HRESEE

FRETSEE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAEF P OIEE

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because revenue is a key performance indicator of the
Group which increases the risk that revenue may be manipulated
to meet financial expectations or targets.

BRI RS R ARRETFR  RAAKET) E5HE

MBS AR TEIR - < Uan AT BEARIR AL DAUE 2 B BT Sk B R AR
B b7t -

Comparing, on a sample basis, sales
transactions recorded before and after the
financial year end date with underlying
documentation, which included goods
acceptance notes, to assess whether the
relevant revenue had been recognised in
accordance with the terms of the sales
contracts and in the appropriate financial
year;

Inspecting underlying documentation for
manual journal entries relating to revenue
which were recorded during the year and
which met specific risk-based criteria; and

Confirming, on a sample basis, the value
of sales transactions for the year ended 31
December 2022 directly with customers
and inspecting underlying documentation
relating to the reconciliation of differences
between the transaction amounts
confirmed by customers and the Group's
accounting records to assess whether the
related revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate financial year; for unreturned
confirmations, performing alternative
procedures by comparing details with
underlying documentations.

I RA IR AR 4 B AT IR SRS RO S E X 5 B4R
B (B E mBR e ) E TR L
UFHEERBE SRR B ERIBHE A MK
REREE B B E NRERR

BEERFANESATERERBREEDN
W BN FRRRBEXT &

HEEREE2022F12A3MBLEFEER
FHRPETHHEXSNER @ UitE
FERERNRZoE 2 BEEEEKAR
o MR REZRE X - AT
BEREREENEENIBEEANER
R BRTERENRTEMES - 81
LEE AR R SR EES ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of inventories

KM

BB ()

FERENSEHE)

Refer to Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(j).

B E B ISR ML 13 R I 2()r) 2 71 B -
The Key Audit Matter
BREESEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMESE P EE

At 31 December 2022, inventories of the Group comprised raw
materials, work in progress and finished goods. The carrying
amount of the Group’s inventories at 31 December 2022
amounted to RMB753,917,000 which represented 18% of the
Group's total assets.

The Group’s inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The net realisable value is determined by
management on an individual item basis by taking into account
the estimated selling prices of the Group’s pipe products,
the estimated costs of completion of work in progress at the
reporting date and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

R2022%F 128318 - BEEENEERERME - B X
Rm e EBEEEFER2022F12A3BNEEEAARE
753,917,0007C * 1 EEBEBEEMN18% °

SEGFERKRAEN SR FEMEPOREEGE - A 2#RF
EEE BEEELRE BEXEEMERNMGEE  NHE B HTK
R MmO AR RIEL I E AR IR MAAR - RERTHAEE

ﬁ_‘io

Our audit procedures to assess valuation of
inventories included the following:

e Obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s
key internal controls over inventory
management;

e Obtaining an understanding of
management’s basis of estimating the net
realisable value;

e Performing a retrospective review of
the historical accuracy of the prior year
estimates, discussing any significant
variances with management and
considering whether there was any
indication of management bias;

BPIARFEFEHENETEFERATS
18

s THRINMEEEHFEEENERAMN
EHIRE - BiESETARIE -

o THREEEMFAERFENEE
s WELHFMEHWELERMEETENER

A EHERENWENEAZR  UEE
REGFEIAERERENNR ;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS ()

Key audit matters (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

FRETSEE)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMEF P RE

The selling prices of the Group’s pipe products are mostly
affected by the price volatility of raw materials and commodities
caused by economic environment. Management assesses the level
of provisions for inventories required at each reporting date after
considering the raw materials prices. This assessment involves
significant management judgement and estimation.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
because of its significance to the Group’s total assets, and
because determining the net realisable value involves significant
management judgement and estimation, which can be inherently
subjective and increase the risk of error or potential management
bias.

BEXEEEMERNEBE T EXKQERFERRY M mERK
FNFE - EEEEERREMHERE - SFHERSRE B
FHNFEREKF - ZHEFREREEEHIE Rt -

BB FERERESBRETEH RASKEY BEXEREE
EMBRN - UREEAERHESNEANEEEHE LG
&S HE R EAAE LAt B X8 MY - AMEMN T LiEsE
EEEERRAER

Evaluating, on a sample basis, the
reasonableness of the estimated selling
prices of pipe products, with reference to
selling prices as indicated in sales order or
sales invoices subsequent to the reporting
date for the finished goods or market prices
for raw materials and work in progress,
and the reasonableness of the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated
selling costs with reference to historical
information; and

Re-performing the calculations made
by management in arriving at the net
realisable values of the inventories, on a
sample basis.

MR EVERBAEENAEL(KS
ZRHEAPREKMHER EIHE
BENEE - IRV HRERRITE) A
Kfbat T TRA R S ER ARSI 1T
(R2ESERELEM) &

MEENETEREEABHEENA &R
FEMEHAGTE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

BB ()

e M ERR R R BET®RE U
HVE R

EFAHEMENAR - HER SR TIENEF
BAKABER - T ERERE M EHRE MM
FRULFE H X BB R o

BAEGEEPHRENERL TREEMER
BB BRI AR ER S

A
‘o am ©

REPIEERE M BRI ETERIME - BAIWE
TREEBEMER - FEUBRET  EEEMER
LR A M B RAKHMERHBRETETN
BEHFEEAT TR EFEEABRRML -

AERBMEATOH I - IRBEMIRSEMBER
FHREAFRRL - ROIFEREXZE - &
HE - BYRBERNFEEREHEE

EERAREMBRRARENEE

EXARARRBER S EAEESRMIOBRK
MHmE R REBARRAINNEZREER
BEMTE 2 FEMBRE - YHERSRERS
TSR BB T E AR ke R MG Y
BERBRRAUTOAMEZEE -

ERERAMBHmRE EEAARNE B8
B EKENES  ERBRL T HREREL
LEMNERANRERFEE LSRR K
FEFEAER BEEEBRIURILEZ  HHE
HWERMEA SR -

EREEEHHEFRITEE BRENIIEHE
&

Vi *%E’UEE%TE °

181



1 82 Dalipal Holdings Limited 3 ] {22 f% 5 FR A &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

BB BT R AU ERRARSRE
MBI

BN BB AHRAN S RREERTIFE TS
RN E R M BN EAERAREA
BIRE - WHABERMERNERBEARE - &
JEEMEBRTRE - BN - RMOBE
TA BRI - RIETRABRENNRY
FEfEL M AL 5 B AT B A -

BIEFRE/BNKENRE - ETEREREEE
B ERE TR BT BRI M B AR
PRt o SEERPRAL A KRR SERRR S AE - INRAIE
TE R Y5 ok [E AR SR AT BE R B AR B M TS R (£ 18
FIRFEM SRR EERTE - BB R
AR AT AR E X ©

ERRIBEEBETERETET N — 8D - 2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

BB ()

BB S ET RS M BRREAERE
M EE ()
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HEERAFELL ST ERMNGE EIEL
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B RS ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chu Man Wai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEmkHMEREINGR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) #; 22022412 31H (LA R ([ A RH])ZIF)

2022 2021
20225 20214F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FiaE ARET T ARBFIT
Revenue U 4 4,227,802 3,762,629
Cost of sales $HE RN (3,616,874) (3,345,114)
Gross profit EX 4(b) 610,928 417,515
Other income HipUg A 5 33,209 21,232
Selling expenses SHERY (186,864) (98,518)
Administrative expenses TR (171,499) (121,635)
Profit from operations Feg =gyl 6(a) 285,774 218,594
Finance costs & Ak 2N (108,828) (118,839)
Profit before taxation BiAIFE 6 176,946 99,755
Income tax PS8 7 (25,362) (16,816)
Profit for the year attributable to equity 27 F)#EX R REL
shareholders of the Company FERER 151,584 82,939
Other comprehensive income for FRHEHMSERE (BR) -
the year (after tax):
Item that may be reclassified subsequently — B & A6 E# 7 A8 2 1875 47
to profit or loss: HA -
— Exchange differences on translation —BRERENEED
into presentation currency lER =% (5,090) (1,555)
Total comprehensive income for EARERRREGER
the year attributable to equity 2EKSAEE
shareholders of the Company 146,494 81,384
Earnings per share SREF 10
Basic (RMB) HEAR(ARE) 0.10 0.06
Diluted (RMB) EHEARE) 0.10 0.06

The notes on pages 191 to 267 form part of these financial F191&267B0M TBRKZSHBHRERL 50
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of %3 o JER AR BIAESAL AR B 2 15 E A M 5
the Company are set out in Note 23(d). 23(d) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e ISR R

At 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB)  }20224E12 A31 8 (WA REZT)

2022 2021
202245 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
5T AR¥T T AREEF T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE KRB 11 1,831,450 1,873,900
1,831,450 1,873,900
Current assets REEE
Derivative financial instruments TESRMITA 3,639 -
Inventories T8 13 753,917 779,594
Trade and bills receivables B S RWHIBERENER 14 1,095,685 1,518,690
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - Re REM
other receivables FEW FR 1B 15 36,797 27,690
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBEEEEY 16 464,892 551,612
2,354,930 2,877,586
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables B RNFEBERENER 17 560,730 693,313
Other payables and accruals Hib RS HIBRIESTER 18 234,952 223,357
Interest-bearing borrowings SERER 19(a) 1,176,756 1,816,926
Lease liabilities HEEE 3,203 962
Current taxation BIHARE 18 21(a) 12,448 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,988,089 2,734,558
_Netcurrentassets =~ #RBEEFHE G 366,841 143,028
_Total assets less current liabilities =~ HEAEARBAMK 2,198,291 . 2,016,928
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Interest-bearing borrowings FHEMERK 19(b) 762,300 650,300
Lease liabilities HEaE 6,711 241
Deferred tax liabilities RLEFIEBAE 21(b) 12,438 5,723
Deferred income EEUA 22 12,542 14,125
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 793,991 670,389
NET ASSETS EERE 1,404,300 1,346,539
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B #iE 23
Share capital P& 134,140 134,362
Reserves HE 1,270,160 1,212,177
TOTAL EQUITY FEREEE 1,404,300 1,346,539

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21

March 2023.

2023F3 A21 BEESSHEE MIRHETE -

Meng Fanyong Gan Shuya
=NE Tt 25
Chairman Director
1 EF

The notes on pages 191 to 267 form part of these financial 1915267 B MM T RKZSHERE LN — 5
AN

statements. o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

e EmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB) & F20224 12531 H 1146 Z (A R ESIR)

Share Share Capital Other  Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserve TeServes reserve profits equity
BE o RhEE  BREE EpRE  ERBE RENE s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Note 23(b)  Note 23(c)i) Note 23(c)ii) Note 23(c)iv) Note 23(c)(v)
) WE2300 M6 WEEM B30
Balance at 1 January 2021 RMOANEIR1BHES 134,263 159,130 5,866 534,108 (118) 429332 1,262,581
Changes in equity for 2021: RONENBEED
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 82,939 82,939
Other comprehensive income Hi2mEls - - - - (1,555) - (1,555)
Total comprehensive income PEbRLEE - - - - (1,555) 82,939 81,384
Shares issuied under share option scheme BEERETZBIHRA 9 1,204 (854) - - - 469
Equity settled share-based transactions NEREENRN BERNLS
(Note 20) (Wi20) - - 2,105 - - - 2,105
Appropriation to reserves EETEE - - - 9,774 - (9,774) -
. SR 124 151 S O 2L i),
Balance at 31 December 2021 R021E12831 B s 134,362 160,354 117 543 832 (1,673) 502497 1,346,539

The notes on pages 191 to 267 form part of these financial

statements.

o

F1912267 AR MEBKZE M FRE N — &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

HReERSER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB) & F20224 12531 A 1146 E (A R ESIR)

Share Share  Treasury Capital Other  Exchange  Retained Total
capital  premium shares reserve reserves reserve profits equity
Bx  ROEE ERRMEE EARE  HERE  EXRFE  RERE  RREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBTT ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR
Note 23(b) Note 23(c)(i) Note 23(c)(ii) Note23(c)(iii) Note23(c)iv) Note 23(c)(v)
MEE30)  HE(0)  WEBO6  HE36  KES(M  KEBOW
Balance at 1 January 2022 R0RF1R1BHER 134362 160,354 - M1 543882 (1673) 502497 1,346,539
Changes in equity for 2022; R0RFHEEES
Profitfor the year EfEf - - - - - - 151584 151584
Other comprehensive income Hih2EkE - - - - - (5,090) - (5,090)
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE - - - - - (5000) 151,584 146,494
Shares issued under share option scheme REBRIETRTHRA 104 134 - (981) - = - 464
Dividends approved in respect of SEEERENRS B30
the previous year (Note 23(cl)i) - (36,584) - - - - - (36,584)
Equity settled share-based transactions NEREENRNAERNRS
(Note 20) (H#20) - - - 2,875 - - - 2,815
Shares held for share award plans (Note 20(b) 5 BB BB B R 2200 - - (921 - - - - (9213
Purchase of own shares (Note 23(c)i) BEaERAI2300) - - (6,275) - - - - (6.275)
Cancellation of treasury shares (Note 23(C)i) ~ SHEBRRA(A231/) (326) (5.949) 6,275 - = = - =
Appropriation to reserves BRERA - - - - 16,236 - (1623) -
ey @) (S213) 18 636 T (66) (88733
Balance at 31 December 2022 ROR2FNANBHER 134,140 119,162 (49,213) 9,01 560,118 (6,763) 637,845 1,404,300

The notes on pages 191 to 267 form part of these financial

statements.

Paray
£
)

1912267 B M EE @A E M MR — &
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

MERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB) &, ZE20224 12431 8 1FF/Z (A E#FIR)

Annual Report 2022 F &3k

2022 2021
20225 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
MaE ARET T ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELERERE
Profit before taxation Ea-IRINES 176,946 99,755
Adjustments for: AT SIBEHAZ
Depreciation expenses ERX 6(c) 128,867 124,122
Finance costs BhE Ak AR 6(a) 108,828 118,839
Interest income FLBHA 5 (3,359) (2,097)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME  BWENMEHEN
plant and equipment (W) B85 5 (174) 308
Amortisation of deferred income IRAEW A 5 22 (1,583) (1,717)
Equity-settled share-based payments LARE RS 4 B AR A L
EOYN BN 6(b) 2,875 2,105
Change in fair value of derivative financial ~ $T4A& BT A2 AFE
instruments # 5 (3,639) -
Net gain on disposal of subsidiary HEB AR F5E 5 (89) -
Changes in working capital: LEESEY)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERLEm) 25,677 (284,643)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 FEURGROA M R I R IR
bills receivables E(18hn) 423,005 (765,995)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERFRIE -~ ke REME
other receivables WCRIEE i (9,545) (635)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B SN RIERENER
bills payables w, () (132,583) 374,067
Increase in other payables and accruals H e FOE K FEET B A
byl 12,776 68,171
Net decrease/(increase) in SRR EITFFOR L, (3E0n)
restricted deposits FEE 16(a) 42,336 (17,471)
Cash generated from operations REmBRE 770,338 (285,191)
Income tax paid EATFTS 21(a) (6,199) (1,115)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBFRE(FIABRS
operating activities FE 764,139 (286,306)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELRSRE
Payments for acquisitions of property, WEEHIZE BB MR B
plant and equipment (NN (82,944) (84,664)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE -« BELRED
plant and equipment FriS kI8 485 56,239
Interest received BHFIE 3,359 2,097
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFABSEE (79,100) (26,328)

The notes on pages 191 to 267 form part of these financial

statements.

5 e
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(%)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
:‘/T/\Iﬁzﬁl}lbi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in RMB) & 22022412 531 H 1 F/Z (UA R EEZIR)

2022 2021
20225 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
MaE ARET T AREFTT
Cash flows from financing activities METBHELERERE
Proceeds from bank and other HRITREMET BERK
interest-bearing borrowings FriSs08 16(b) 1,017,385 2,225,064
Repayment of bank and other BRRITREMFTEER
interest-bearing borrowings 16(b) (1,545,555) (1,680,090)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BITIRDFTS5RIE 23(b) 464 469
Payment for shares held for share AR 7 SRt IR A Y
award plans auXREN 20(b) (49,213) -
Payment for purchase of own shares BEABERGD 2R 23(c)(ii) (6,275) -
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEESNERL S 16(b) (1,067) (792)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENHEEESNF B 16(b) (88) (55)
Interest paid ERFE 16(b) (113,827) (113,092)
Dividends paid BIRE (36,584) -
Placement of restricted deposits IR EITFER 16(a) (4,746) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (), FERE
___financing activities & S S (739,506) 431,504
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRRSZSENCRD),
cash equivalents b yiipezdoc] (54,467) 118,870
Effect of exchange rate changes on EXSEHHRERAE
cash and cash equivalents ZEYNSE 5,337 (902)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FOREREASEEY
beginning of the year 16(a) 430,188 312,220
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FERESREASEEY
of the year 16(a) 381,058 430,188

The notes on pages 191 to 267 form part of these financial
statements.

)

o

F191E267 EMMERBAZFM B HmRN—B



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R IR AR M EE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B:5G:74859) YA EEZIR)

1

Corporate Information

Dalipal Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 28 August 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 8 November 2019 (the “Listing Date”).
The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the development, manufacture and sale
of oil and gas pipes (previously known as oil country tubular
goods), new energy pipes and special seamless steel pipes
(previously known as special seamless steel pipes) and other
products (previously known as pipe billets).

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
("IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these financial statements.

1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI RAR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2 EXE5BER(E)
(b) M MRmBESE

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
derivative financial instruments are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out in Note 2(e).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period to
the Group:

e Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment:
Proceeds before intended use

e Amendments to IAS 37, Provisions, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets: Onerous contracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group's results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI RAR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2 EAEHEE (&)
(G NCIVSE 2230336 )

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 2(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(e) Derivative financial instruments

()

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognized immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedges of net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

2(0)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(u)).

[tems may be produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. The proceeds from selling any
such items and the related costs are recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B BRI AR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

2 EAEEBER(E)
() W3 - M= KRR ()

WE - BELRRERBOTERENAT
15.#7@?@%3)%WME%RP&W%%&K
(R EMAHRIREENE))FE

Estimated useful lives

RSk
Plant and buildings 20-40 years
s K igF 2052 40F
Machinery and equipment 3-15 years
Heas M2t 3E15%F
Vehicles and other equipment 3-8 years
EYSE TR 3E8F
Right-of-use assets Over the term of lease
EREEE HEHA

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the Group has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR MR AR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 BERESFEK(E)
(h) HEEZE(E)
(i) As alessee (i) 1EBRBA

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Leased assets (Continued)

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Notes 2(f) and 2(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI RAR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2 EAEHEE (&)

(h) Leased assets (Continued) (h) HEEBZE(E)
(i) As a lessee (Continued) (i) 1EEEBEAE)
The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is REHAEIRSHNIBATFETIZ
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets AR AN IR K AT E N ESE
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to HFREAENetHFRESHAEEED
investments in debt securities carried at amortised cost B 1) BR ( &M 5E20s)Gi) B2 2(3)(0) ) © 1%
(see Notes 2(s)(ii) and 2()(i)). Any difference between EHVBAFELAZEEECH
the initial fair value and the nominal value of the B {E (A = 25 EAFEINEER KT
deposits is accounted for as additional lease payments B Wit AFREEEM -

made and is included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change BRI F R S| BRRFAE
in future lease payments arising from a change in HNEE) S AEETBHREFSE
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's BEREMOEETSEHREL -
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under NEHT LA EREEEAEETE
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising 1THEEE « B FREEMm L
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be Rk B|EFHFEHEAE - 1%
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension ERANEFTERHEAGEN <
or termination option. When the lease liability is AR EENEEREELIEIES
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is B NRGAEESENERED S
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, WEZ  BIFABRHNSEET AR
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of 5o

the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a EHESNEXSSLIBESNR
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for W EBEETNHERBRLEE L
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease ([BEBT]) - BR1EAEEHNE
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted EARE AN EZEHHEEEE
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability TEHFHE EWBRT  HES
is remeasured based on the revised lease payments BRERKIEITNHEENZ LEERS
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the [E o FAHSEBETMEIR REEBEE
date of the modification. The only exceptions are HEHE - E—f4M5 R AR
rent concessions that occurred as direct consequence AT ARIT I BB E Wy
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions HEeR%  BFASBRERHERS
set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such MR 165 EF 46BER FTE B 1K
cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical o EEZZFRT  KEFEFNBA
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions TEHe RS AHEENK I
are lease modifications, and recognised the change NI AES R R 2 B & E
in consideration as negative variable lease payments A ERNERERREBESH LB
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or A SR ERR -

condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR MR AR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 EAFEBER(A)
(h) BEEE ()
() 1EBRBEAHE)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

(ii) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(s)ii).

(i)

EHRAMBIRRART - REEER
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(il R,

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets and lease (i) SERXEEERENRERBEER
receivables hiz]

() ZATEHEERKXRENHEES

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease

receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables) and lease receivables.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE TSR AR MIEE (4E)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2 EAEF B (&)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets and lease (i) EEELEEERERERAER
receivables (Continued) 5 (&)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease () 2HRTENGEERLXREKHEESH

receivables (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR MR AR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)
() FERXREEREREYWEER

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets and lease

receivables (Continued) 15 (#8)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease (i) 2ERTANEEEAREKNHEES
receivables (Continued) H(E)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease
receivables are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an

TR BB X ea1 2 ()
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amount equal to lifetime ECLs. HEHEEBASHEE -
Significant increases in credit risk 1EE R A NG L

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held). The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ISR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets and lease

receivables (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease

receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments on their contractually
due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR MR AR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)
2 EREFEK(E)

() EERAREEREREREER
5 (&)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note
2(s)(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on
the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and lease (i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI RAR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease
receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including right-of
use assets and

— investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets and lease
receivables (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit). A portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (for example, head
office building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to the smallest
group of cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B BRI AR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

()]

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see Note 2(s)(i)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(i)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see Note 2(1)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(k) Contract assets and contract liabilities

)

(Continued)

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see Note 2(s)(i)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
Note 2(1)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see Note 2(s)(i)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset (see Note 2(k)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction
price. Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method and including an allowance for credit losses
(see Note 2(i)(i)).

Insurance reimbursement is recognised and measured in
accordance with Note 2(r).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI RAR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

(o)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs
in accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(i)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expenses is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note 2(u)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions

to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR MR AR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)
2 Ejtﬁf“l'ft&%( &)

(i) UBRHGBEBRITF

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(p) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the share options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair value of the
share options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the share options will
vest.

The fair value of shares granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date, taking account into
the terms and conditions upon which the shares were
granted. If the shares granted do not vest until the
completion of services for a period, the total estimated
fair value of the shares is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the
shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of equity
instruments that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of equity instruments that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the share option is
exercised or the shares are released (when it is included
in the amount recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the share option or share expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI RAR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2 EAEHEE (&)
(p) EERF (&)
(iii) BEBAEF

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

(g) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(g) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided that they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI RAR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2 EAEHEE (&)
(q) FRBH (&)

(g) Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods or the use by others of the Group’s
asset under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product is
transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI RAR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

(ii) Revenue from other resources and other income

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(i)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
other income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are recognised as deferred
income and subsequently recognised as other
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii) Revenue from other resources and other income

(Continued)

—  Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(t) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB,
the Group’s presentation currency, at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

2 EAFEBER(A)
(s) Wuas R AU (4D
(i) RMERYAREMYA ()

BEHE T A

REEETHRKRESKRAR
HERENHRAREFE D H
RiBas R - A L E e
RERERAEEERSOF
SR EELRSN - ER
HEEENERER - ERE
YA B 1 K05 B8 48 B0 4B AT

7 e

(t) ShismE
FRINERZ IR 5 ARERRE © LA
SNEHEMNEREER A BIRREHMR
MERIBE o [ 5 Wk R EBRR BT

WS RANASNE ST EMIFEREER
BERARZENEXRE - X5 AH]
REEENGERZEFIEREELRA
BE B -

SRR L R RAR X HE BRBA
EXMESAEENZ2INEEARE -
BATEARR R IA B 3RS B RO HIR [E X
BEOSARE - MEHMESZENE
b2 E W R X S ITHEE ST RIE
B R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI RAR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(v) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

2 EAEEBER(E)
(u) EERBLA

B  RRALEFTEAERHEITA
BRARTERGIHENEEERBBN
fERRAE N RZEERN DA
HAB B AR EEE IS -

ERAAREEELEFX - EEERK
ALREHEERARTERGHLEMNT
HRBETTE - BN/ EREEN
HMOKAE - EERBHEEEREERA
B R sk h & H AR B AR L B
SkTERKET - BIE R R LE AT L AR K
RERAE

(v) B@ER

(a) MBUTAL BIRALTHZAL
AT 3B 5 5 R ¢

() FEHISRAREHAEEE
(i) HAKBEEERZENE &

(i) SAKREXAEEFRARNE

ZEMASR o

(b) HEEBAA TINEMEGEE - A%
®

() ZEREASEBR—SEH
4= NI
(i) ZEREASEBR —SEZ

RERAR(BIBZEAR - B
EEESG NG AR

) o
(i) MREEHAR—F=ZFANE
BEE -
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e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

2 ERETTEHEE)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

(v)

(w)

22}y
(b) MEBEFATY Mimm-“r AllzZ

BRREXEBGHEE  (B)

vy " REEBAF=ZFBEEMNEE
¥ mME—EBEAZE=H
EREMNBEAANT) -

(v) ZEBEEAANEENEREFRS
BN EEHES NIRRT
BEBL R AR FRTEI o

(i) ZEBEZ@)FATATEHE
H R o

vi) @QUFTREATHZEREE
RE B NNBLZEE (B
MESRAFRMEEEEAS -

(viii) 7% B 58 2 E P JE 5 B A (E AT A
EUNSIDES SEE S-S SN
AR E2ER ABRE -

RALTHTRIETR A EZ AT EZ
ERXHNREKE - R ALTEZ
ERRHTENFTEKE °

REDHNFEMBRRAZMOZD
MEA TR DREAIEERTAS
BB EES MRS R EEREM
EHRETASESSETREEAR
MM IS ERETE -

AMBmEMS - BERERLLEDET
SAVETE - RIFERAOMERBLE
ERBAREREE - £AERFME
BEPELSER - DHEEMERABNIE
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rEDEN e B RROIRAE - BIF T
S BFETE -
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AR B BRI AR ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

3 Accounting Judgement and Estimates

Notes 20 and 24(e) contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of share options
granted and fair value of financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Expected credit losses for receivables

The credit losses for trade and other receivables are
based on assumptions about the expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, which
are based on the Group’s past collection history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions and inputs used, see Note 24(a). Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
result of the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional loss allowances in future periods.

(b) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, after taking into account the estimated residual
values. The management of the Group reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values, if any, of the
property, plant and equipment regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expenses to be
recorded during any reporting period. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values, if any, are based
on historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated changes on how such assets are to
be deployed. The depreciation expense for future periods
is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

(c) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on current market conditions and historical
experience of distributing and selling products of a similar
nature. They could change significantly as a result of
changes in market conditions. Management reassess the
estimations at each end of the reporting period.

3 EErHET R
AHCHEEEBREN SR T ANFENBR
FEERAZNE RS FE20 % 24() °
EEF T EERENEMEZRIRAOT ¢

(a) ERFEFEHIEERXL
B 5 REMBUGRENEEEETIZE
B EENREEL - AEEREBEARE
BERAMNBRES - BT RERE
ﬁ%%imﬁWﬁm# ERAAEED
ZEBI LR EFTEREN S ASUE -
BEMRANBERER e ABE
15 B2EME24() - ZERER REET
m“ETﬁéﬁﬁﬁ ERIERERNTE
Al RE R B2 AR R AR s R BN ES 18 5
%o

(b) #E
WME - BERREREENGAER
FHA - EEFREFRISBEERRER
ENE - AEBEERETHRAME
BRBS Ko -2 R0 st AT 2 AR AF A R IR fE
B(E) - UBESMEMREHAA
RHTERX SR - I EAFHERG
EBEA)ENEUEENAELRY
mé%%QFMEEimﬁ%mE%
RS AIERT R EEREE - QAR
*%%ﬁ%%%ﬁi

() FENTEEFE
FEMAIEIRFERER —REKBIED
Mt EER G T TRAREERX
BHDHE - RFHFTVRBERTHRA
Ro#HREHERUTEERNBELR
fEH - HAJREEmRE B LB AR
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e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

4 Revenue and Segment Reporting
(a) Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the development,
manufacture and sale of oil and gas pipes, new energy
pipes and special seamless steel pipes and other products.
All of the revenue of the Group is recognised at a point in
time. The customers obtain control of the products when
they are delivered to and have been accepted at premises
determined by the customers. Acceptance notes are
generated and revenue is recognised at that point in time.

4 WHRDEHHRE
(a) Wz

AEETERZME  RERHEEOH
RARME - FAEIR A E SR IR 5% 0
EUAREMER - ARBMAERENE
—RHEHER - EEMNEEETPETE
BB P IE OB P SR - B P RERTS
HEHHE - BREBRNZEREMBES -
U et IR 7% B FEI B R o

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers RTIBERIDHNEL A LI EERRA LN
by major products is as follows: T

2022 2021

20225 20214F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Sales of oil and gas pipes HEAHRARAE 2,635,098 1,674,047

Sales of new energy pipes and HEFERAE X

special seamless steel pipes FER AR E 1,567,886 1,896,426

Sales of other products SHEHME S 24,818 192,156

4,227,802 3,762,629

No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s
total revenue was derived from sales to a single customer
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Revenue from customers with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue for the year ended
31 December 2021 is as follows:

HZE2022F12A3181LEE - mME—
BRSNS SR EE AR EE B
THAI10%E A ko

HE2021FE12A31RILEE - BHER
SIEREEWABBI0%NELELN
WzsE 7T

2021
20214
RMB’000
ARETIT

Customer A ZEA
Customer B ZFB

483,588
472,524

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from the
Group's customers are set out in Note 24(a).

EfAAEEREFPNEEETRBFE
KT EE24() °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
eI RAR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

4 Revenue and Segment Reporting

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by products. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

e Oil and gas pipes: this segment includes primarily the
manufacture and sale of oil and gas pipes.

e New energy pipes and special seamless steel pipes: this
segment includes primarily the manufacture and sale of
new energy pipes and special seamless steel pipes.

e Other products: this segment includes primarily the
manufacture and sale of other products.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
during normal operations. The measure used for
reporting segment result is gross profit, but excluded
depreciation expenses, staff costs and utilities expenses
incurred during the suspension of production as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic. No inter-segment
sales have occurred for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021. Assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets and technical
know-how, is not measured.

The Group’s other operating income and expenses,
such as other income and selling and administrative
expenses, and assets and liabilities are not measured
under individual segments. Accordingly, neither
information on segment assets and liabilities nor
information concerning capital expenditure, interest
income and interest expenses is presented.

4 WHEKDEBHRE(E)

(b) 7&K E
AEBEREMERERR - REBAR
ARAEERSTREREABRERD
Fo RV EETAFREN T X2
AT=Er 2/D 0 - MEASHLED
BRAKERC T BRI 25 #6

o AMRARME ﬁ%ﬁi%@%
%L&iﬁEE/Hﬂ%%’:

o HELRAE MEHRELENE o
HBErERRERENMEETLRAE
NSRRI E o

e HEMER: USHEERERER
ﬁél:./\'ﬁﬂFDD °
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BTHMIHERBRESESH 2
BER AEBE&ZaRATHER
ABRUTEEERKAEZ2RD
O E

W EAS T2 ERETEE
HEZESPTEENHEEENZ
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WoEh - AIRMOIELEFTAN
FEAERN  BETBERFEX
MITMAEFERMZEENITER
Y BIRAKRKERS  -#HZE
2022@&2021&12%3@&@*
WD BEMEE - WETE—
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MeAY BREEESMEE
&QLW&M X EBBEN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

4 Revenue and Segment Reporting 4 WamkoImE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 7 EBERE (&)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) DEpsE EEREE(E)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments MO EBERETES I RIEMmMME
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive AEBRSRTHREREABIRMHE
management for the purposes of resource allocation BEANEBE 220229 X% 2021
and assessment of segment performance for the years F12A31HIEFERMA 2RO IE
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is set out below. BEF| T o

2022
20224

New energy

pipes and

special

Oil and seamless Other

gas pipes  steel pipes products Total

HERAE

vap: RASH
ARRAE EREE HitEm st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARBTR ARET:R

Revenue from external customers SR UGS 2,635,098 1,567,886 24,818 4,227,802
Reportable segment gross profit AZWALEF 442,159 169,849 328 612,336
2021
20214
New energy
pipes and
special
Oiland seamless Other
gas pipes steel pipes products Total
TRAE
vayii REH
AARAE mAEE HivEm @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETR ARETr ARET:

Revenue from external customers INPER P Uz 1,674,047 1,896,426 192,156 3,762,629
Reportable segment gross profit A2HHHEF 251,308 167,500 7,595 426,403
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

4 Revenue and Segment Reporting 4 WRERDIBHE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) D EPRE (&)

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment gross profit

(ii) 7 Z2#H 7 EBEFRIE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AE¥ETTT
Reportable segment gross profit a] 235 EBEFI (I FE4(0)))
(Note 4(b)(i)) 612,336 426,403
Depreciation expenses, staff costs and  EHTE A 71T M= 2 2R
utilities incurred during production FIEAEMTERS
suspension period as a result of BT ARKERZ
the COVID-19 pandemic (1,408) (8,888)
Reportable segment gross profit REREEINEE P
derived from the Group's external A2/ HEH
customers 610,928 417,515
(iii) Geographic information (iii) HEEF

The following table set out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s revenue from
external customers. The geographical information
about the revenue prepared by location at which the
goods were delivered is as follows:

TREEBAKEINBE P Wat
FIMIZM B E R o RS dn it B
REABREIZERINT

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Mainland China R A 3,077,736 3,401,670
Overseas: RSLINE

The Middle East e 663,745 43,261

Africa JEM 278,034 31,204

Southeast Asia Y 117,268 245,263

Others Hip 91,019 41,231

_____________________________________________________________________________ 1,150,066 360,959

4,227,802 3,762,629

All of the Group’s non-current assets are located in
the PRC. Accordingly, no segment analysis based on
geographical location of the assets is provided.

AEBEMERBEEDURH
o Bt - WRRHIREEMIEM
EEHMA DO -
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5 Other Income 5 Hflg A
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

Government grants (including amortisation 1B fiF 1 B (‘B FR IR AE UL A4S )

of deferred income) (Note 22) (FFzE22) 6,885 5,175
Interest income FEUA 3,359 2,097
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of other HEEMYE - BEMKRED

property, plant and equipment Iz, (E518) F 5 174 (308)
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) bE R (B8 ) F 5 7,619 277)
Net gains on sale of scraps raw materials  $4% B8 RATE 9 U 25 F 58 8,712 15,110
Rental income AEUA 2,826 -
Change in fair value of derivative financial #$T4 €& T A2 AFEE

instruments 3,639 -
Others Eith (5) (565)

33,209 21,232
6 Profit Before Taxation 6 BiRIRHE
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BATFIE MR (G A) ToEERSE
o
(a) Finance costs (a) ”E A
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T AREEFTT
Interest expenses on borrowings EZHEEY 90,756 98,427
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEMNEMET 88 55
Others HAith 17,984 20,357
108,828 118,839
(b) Staff costs* (b) B I KA
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBTFT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENEMEF] 216,714 178,820
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan TE R TR IRGT B IR 11,811 10,513
Equity-settled share-based payment LARE R 45 E LARR (D R AR
expenses (Note 20) TR sz (M95120) 2,875 2,105

231,400 191,438
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

6 Profit Before Taxation (Continued) 6
(b) Staff costs* (Continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong SAR) participate in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan managed
by the local government authority. Employees of these
subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits, calculated
based on a percentage of the defined salaries level in
the PRC (excluding Hong Kong SAR), from the above-
mentioned retirement plan at their normal retirement age.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$") 30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately.

The Group has no further material obligation for
payment of other retirement benefits beyond the above

contributions.

(c) Other items

Bt A0 FHE (&)

(b) ET A ()
AEEETE(MEEREBHITRE)
P SZ H Y B B 2 B )5 IR B FT
ERMEREIRAKENEE - ZFH
BARNEEZIE LERAFRES
BFA L RAKE SR RAKBER (2F
B(TeREBRITRE) FEFH DK
FHBEDLRHE) ©

REBRB(CEBRBIE B E
O BRIBCEERBIEDDAEIEE
ERERNESEFERBIMEAESTE
([aEerTEl]) - BESFETIABIL
ZREANEERTEEEFGRRGTE - BRI
wiESE R BEERHEEEBHEAERRE
BEBUWARSY% RFFEIELER -
HFABFBWA LR A30,000%8 T (178
To]) o SRS HIRENE R o

B _EALERON - ANERE I R ST B AR
REEFEE — P ERER

() HATEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREETF T
Depreciation expenses* (Note 11) ERZH (M)
— owned property, plant and equipment — BEY  BEMERE 121,771 117,522
- right-of-use assets — (L E 7,096 6,600
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) B2,/ (#[El)E 5 eI IR
on trade receivables (Note 14(b)) BEREE (F3E14(0)) 1,759 (1,746)
Impairment losses on prepayments and BT ERIE Ko H i e U Z IR (E
other receivables (Note 15) Bt (f3E15) 66 106
Auditors’ remuneration 1% R 2 B
— audit services — T AR 2,200 2,200
— non-audit services — IERFT R 1,025 800
Research and development costs R AR 39,792 25,223
Cost of inventories? (Note 13(b)) FERA(FI5E13(b)) 3,615,466 3,336,226

# Cost of inventories include RMB232,860,000 (2021: RMB207,623,000)
relating to staff costs and depreciation expenses, which amounts are
also included in the respective amounts disclosed separately above or
in Note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.

t FERABRERETIRAARNTENZAE
B A R % 232,860,000 7T (2021 F + AR
207,623,0007T) * ZE BN R ZESHE
RIE RSt A BB EEN S B ER M
FF6(b)A °
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Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement 7
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income

melEakAEtEEKERPH
Frig®t

(a) A EERHMAZEKBERTHH
i -

represents:
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREFT
Current taxation (Note 21(a)): BIEABE 18 (FiEE21(a)) :
— Provision for the year —F AR 18,647 200
— Over-provision in respect of — BT FEBEEE
prior years - (8,361)
18,647 (8,161)
Deferred taxation (Note 21(b)): IEFERIE (BfsE21(b)) -
— Origination and reversal of —EERBOERER
temporary differences 6,715 23,136
— Withholding tax in connection —EAREE-FENEAF
with the retained profits to be 14T 2 IR ER &
distributed by a subsidiary of FERARITEIORE
the Group - 1,841
6,715 24,977

25,362
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7

Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement 7 SZA4EZEREMEZEWEZRDH
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Fri8%i (&)
Income (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BIEXHERBERARETFE 2R
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: EFIEER
2022 2021
2022 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Profit before taxation AT A 176,946 99,755
Expected tax on profit before taxation, — FHATFEAYFEEATE -
calculated at the rates applicable to REBEAEEREAR
profits in the jurisdictions concerned EANETRGE
(Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) (BFEGD) ~ (i) Riii)) 46,112 26,384
Tax effect on preferential tax rate BEME BB E (19,506) (3,055)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses — “NAJHIFE ISz 7 BifE S & 2,206 2,065
Tax effect on bonus deduction of B A INEHRIN 2 s &
research and development costs (3,450) (2,058)
Over-provision in respect of prior years B F/E FBEE R - (8,361)
Tax effect of the withholding tax in ZIKEI*FEJ WEA R T
connection with the retained profits DIRIRER i Y
to be distributed by a subsidiary BN GTE
of the Group = 1,841
Actual tax expense BRI 25,362 16,816

Notes:

@i

(ii)

(iii)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") are not subject to
any income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of their respective
countries of incorporation.

The Company and the Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries of the
Group are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax, which is calculated at
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits are
taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was
calculated at the same basis in 2021.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC (excluding Hong
Kong SAR) are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25%
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 25%). One of the
subsidiaries was qualified as a High and New Technology Enterprise’
and is entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15% for the three
calendar years ended/ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023.

T

(ii)

(i)

RIBEE B MK AAAEBRORA KR -

AARRAEENASRENABERRE
S EBHEARES DEMRIZINHEATR
EARMNERPRER -

ARNRRAEEREBZMAZOMEA
A RAFE A ERT G FH)16.5% (2021
F16.5%)5 8 BRFSHMAGETEE
BARMAEE —HEHEAEIN o

ST AR S + B 2,000,000 7T FE R
i F128.25% ML R HF - Mer T IERB A
FSi F1216.5% B F L EH - B AR
BB BEIRE2021 FAARMEETHE -

HZE2022F12A31HIEFE - AEERFE
(TRIFEBEARFAITHIE) KK E A RE
1#225% (20214F : 25%) B RN BB ZFT
B - HP—HMBRARFA BF it
¥ B RELE20214F ~ 20224 220234
12A31BIE=EABFZH15%NEEMRE -
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8 Directors’ Emoluments 8 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) BIEBEBRNANEHIE3IBMNIER AT (HE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the EEFEERDEME2NBENEESME
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors' and benefits- Discretionary scheme payments 2022
fees in-kind honuses contributions  Sub-Total  (Note 20) Total
WA
B4 28 EffirE ERHNR W0E

EShe  RRURH  BERAL 5 N HE) it
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB000
ABMTR  ARWTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTr  ARBTn  AREIR

Executive directors Yz

M. Meng Fanyong (Chairman) ZNEREZE) - m = 17 489 = 489
Mr. Zhang Hongyao RTEEAE - 2828 - 75 2903 808 371
Ms. Xu Wenhong Gy - 1,19 - 13 1,209 - 1,209
Mr. Meng Yuxiang FiEa ks - 1,014 - 46 1,060 - 1,060
Ms. Gan Shuya Filgat - 1,200 - 34 1,234 541 1,781
M. Yin Zhisiang (Note) Bl i) - 210 - 4 214 - 214
Non-Executive director FeEs

Mr. Yin Zhixiang (Note) Rt d) - 512 - b 518 - 518

Independent non-executive directors ~~ BiHHES

Mr. Guo Kaig IR 258 - - - 258 - 258
Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing TEREE 258 - - - 258 - 258
Mr. Cheng Haitao WERRE 258 - - - 258 - 258

14 1432 - 195 8,401 1355 9,756
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eI RAR M ()
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8 Directors’ Emoluments (Continued) 8 EEME(E)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ ~ and benefits- ~ Discretionary scheme payments 2001
fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Sub-Total (Note 20) Total
R &
g2 G ERIAH WE

B30 REMEN  BERL f5 Nt hE) it
RVBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTR ARETT ARETRL ARETR ARETR

Executive directors il

NI Meng Fanyong (Chairman) ENERE(FE) - 481 - bi] 509 - 509
Mr. Zhang Hongyao RBRE - 1969 - 60 2009 864 2893
Ms. Xu Wenhong Gy eIy - 741 - 1 753 - 753
Mr. Meng Yuxiang ZFIRE - 650 - 4 694 - 604
Ms. Gan Shuya gkt - 785 - ) 87 592 1419
Mr. Yin Zhixiang BEHEE - 629 - 12 641 - 641

Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTEES

Mr. Guo Kaig DRiExE 25 - - - U5 - 25
Mr. Wong Jovi Chi Wing f i3 25 - - - U5 - 25
M. Cheng Haitao REEEE 25 - - - U5 - 25
7% 5255 - 1% 6% 1,456 7644
Note: Ff5E
Mr. Yin Zhixiang was re-designated from executive director to non-executive BREFEENR202F4A4ARBRITESHERIERTE
director on 4 April 2022. EFzo
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors AEBEWERNESI NS - EARSIEMN
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AREE S IMAE R B BB E - T
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement EEHERBE LR E R EMETMA
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any M o

remuneration during the year.
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9 BmEHAL
EE&EHFALT  EME(20215F - M

B)ES HWNESHEBERM TS - Ep=%
(2Q021F : ZF) ATHBE@REIT ¢

9 Individuals with Highest Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments two (2021:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2021: three) individuals are as follows:

2022 2021

20224F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Salaries and other emoluments e kEMmME 17.714 2,811
Share-based payments (Note 20) VARR 1 i ERE e SR (H320) 836 579
Retirement scheme contributions IRPRETEIHESR 46 66
18,596 3,456

AEBREARRHALTTLIFEZHALH
e FIATEHER -

The emoluments of the individuals who are not directors and
who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group
are within the following bands:

2022 2021

202245 20214F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

N AH

HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T2 1,000,000 7T = 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 L21,500,000/8 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T22,000,00078 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T %=2,500,0007 7T 1 -
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 9,500,001/ T2 10,000,000/ 7T 2 -
3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the above
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

REE I E (R A A A - 1EATSI
H DA B SR 2R Sk BB 1S
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10 Earnings Per Share 10 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF
The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 HZ22022F128A31HIEFEN

December 2022 is calculated based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB151,584,000 (2021: RMB82,939,000) and the
weighted average of 1,494,269,000 (2021: 1,500,273,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary
shares is as follows:

BERBFTZFERARD B EZRZR
B OJE {5 % A A R ¥ 151,584,000 7T
(20214 + AR ¥82,939,0007T) &
2 3 17 1,494,269,000 A% ( 2021 4F :
1,500,273,000/% ) & 18 A% & hn#E S 15 £4
AT -

BB BUR I TR E

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
‘000 ‘000
T T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M ATEMBERITE B 1,501,200 1,500,000
Shares issued under share option scheme 1R 4% AL E T 21251 THIALD 766 273
Effect of shares repurchased 2B E ARG 89528 (I 5E23(0)i))
(Note 23(c)(ii)) (2,752) -
Effect of shares held for share award TR BT EIF A AR D A
plans (Note 20(b)) F2 (MiEE20(b)) (4,945) -
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A31H K& @A A1
shares at 31 December g 1,494,269 1,500,273
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREBERR

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB151,584,000 (2021: RMB82,939,000) and the
weighted average 1,503,200,000 (2021: 1,500,487,000)
ordinary shares (diluted).

Calculation of weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted) is as follows:

HE2022F12 831 B It FEMN S E
SE &P TH IR AR A R HE 5 AR B R AL s A
AR # 151,584,000 T (20214 + AR
#& 82,939,000 7t ) X 1,503,200,000 f%
(20214F : 1,500,487,0000% ) E3@A% (B
BE )R EETE -

Hx(E%/%) INREF G BRI T 5

imﬂ mH

2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
‘000 ‘000
T T
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A31 B &% @A N
shares at 31 December FE 1,494,269 1,500,273
Effect of deemed issue of shares under 1R {EIRIE AN B BERREEST 21381 T
the Company'’s share option scheme f& 17 By 522 (BT5E20)
(Note 20) 8,931 214
Weighted average number of ordinary 12 A31BHEEIR(E#E)
shares (diluted) at 31 December JnkETF9 8 1,503,200 1,500,487




Annual Report 2022 F%F3& 2 3 1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R M RR M ()
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11 Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

1M Y% BERRE

(a) MREIEY R

Machinery Vehicles
Plant and and  andother Construction  Right-of-use
buildings ~ equipment  equipment in progress assets Total
RERET  HHRRE RERAMRE W ARIE  EREEE Eh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  MB¥TT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
Cost: BE:
At 1 January 2021 R0NE1A1H 976,622 1,302,025 23,55 92,391 264,312 2,658,906
Additions AE 11,264 16,484 3438 4339 1,844 76,422
Transfer infout) B)/(&1) 26,753 38,664 284 (65,701) - -
Disposals HE (1,274 (535) (1,148) - - (2.957)
At 31 December 2021 RONENANE 1,013,365 1,356,638 26,130 70,082 266,156 2,732,311
Additions HE - 6,666 1961 57,523 20,578 86,728
Transfer infout) #)/(8h) 14624 43810 - (88434) - -
Disposals = (16) B) (2,64) - - (2663)
At 31 December 2022 025128318 1,057,973 1407111 15447 39,17 286,734 2,816,436
Accumulated depreciation; ZithE
At 1 January 2021 RONEIRE (206,644) (468752) (12,590) - 48327) (736,313)
Charge for the year Erzi (31,439) (83,561) (252 - (66000 (12412
Written back on disposals HEREE 368 513 1,083 - - 1,964
At 31 December 2021 RONENANE (237,715) (551,800) (14,029) - (54927) (858,471)
Charge for the year Erzi (32527) (86,468) (2776) - (70%  (18867)
Written back on disposals HERAD 6 1 2345 - - 2352
ADecemberdi2  ROMEWARE oope BN (440 S 1V I
Cartying amount; BHE:
At 31 December 2022 025128318 181,131 768,844 10987 39,17 241 1831450
At 31 December 2021 R01E128318 775,650 804,838 12,101 70,082 21,229 1,873,900
Notes: B &E
(i)  The Group's property, plant and equipment are located in the PRC. The (i) AERENWE - BERRBLATE - tA
land use rights included in “Right-of-use assets” represent premiums [EREEE |t REREREERLR
paid by the Group for land situated in the PRC. The lease terms of B T H TS A BB o FRE b A
these land use rights ranged from 37 to 50 years. FEHIN T 372506 ©
(i) At 31 December 2022, property, plant and equipment of the (i) M202FNRANAH AEEREBEARYE
Group with carrying amounts of RMB1,193,511,000 (2021: 1,193,511,0007C (20214 = A ¥ 1,103,556,000
RMB1,103,556,000) have been pledged as collateral for the Group’s TOEIE - R KRR EEEREASERER
interest-bearing borrowings (see Note 19). FTEREERR(RMEE19) o
@iy At 31 December 2022, the Group is in the process of applying (i)  F2022F12A318 » AEBIEERBERE

for registration of the ownership certificates for certain properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB11,870,000 (2021:
RMB12,352,000). The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group is entitled to lawfully occupy and use these properties.

TEREAE A AR 11,870,0007T (20214 -
AR#12,352,0007T) 2 MIEB TG HEFE -
AAREERE  ANEBAREGHEARE
RS -
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11 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 11 1% - BERZRE (&)

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EREEE

The analysis of the net book values of right-of-use assets by FRAEEERBEEERERY RER

class of underlying assets is as follows: SFEOTIT
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AE¥ETTT

Properties leased for own use, BREEME -
carried at depreciated cost: BITERAFIER

— Land use rights — T A 215,122 210,085
— Office premises —MAEYE 9,589 1,144
224,711 211,229
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases E REIAEMNRERZIER ST in

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: N
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use R EERERYIRE
assets by class of underlying assets FEREEE
(Note 6(c)): WERSZ (M6
— Land use rights — T AR 5,763 5,763
- Office premises VNS ES 1,333 837
7,096 6,600

MERRHERENEERESIHER
DITHIREIE 2 B ERBTRE16(c) ©

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Note 16(c),
respectively.



Annual Report 2022 %43 2 3 3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR MR AR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)
12 R A RMNIRE

UTIIREFAEEIRZZEREERE -
BEXBEBENHBEARFSE -

12 Investments in Subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.
Proportion of ownership interest
RERERLD
Place of
establishment/
incorporation/ Particulars of
operation and date registered/  The Group's Held by
of establishment/ issued and effective the Held by Principal
Company name incorporation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries activities
RI/2MEL/ it/
BEHIRAL/ BER REEW HE
AR AMRIAS HRRARHE EREE  R0ANE DaKE IEED
Dalipal Pipe Company Limited The PRC RIMB600,000,000 100% - 100% Design, manufacture
("Dalipal Pipe”) 18 September 1998 ARE and sale of ofl and
ENERRZREARAT HE 600,000,007 43S pipes, new energy
(Notes (i) and (ii)) 19989 718H pipes and special
ENERAEREARAA seamless steel pipes
([ENEERE)) and other products
(WK i) Rat HERHEEDM
RRRAE  WERER
IRERE I REER
Agile Rise Global Limited BV United States 100% 100% - Investment holding
26 April 2018 Dolar ("US§")1, RERRK
ABRNEE 1 share of US$1 each
20184268 (ESHETDE
REHEEETHRA
Dalipal Hong Kong Company Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100% Sale of il and gas pipes,
ENEEEERAT 19 September 2018 1RER new energy pipes and
B special seamless steel pipes
2018597198 HERBARERE
FRRRE RERERNE
Dalipal (Cangzhou) Industrial Company The PRC RIMB420,000,000 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited (“Dalipal Industrial”) 14 November 2018 ARH REER
(Notes (i) and (i) hE 420,000,007
ENE(eM EXARAA 2018511 A 148

(Entex))
(ki)
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12 Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued) 12 RIFB A RIMIRE ()
Notes: Bff3E
(i) This entity is registered as limited liability companies under the laws and () ZEERETFEAEASETSAGREEIAT -
regulations in the PRC.
(i)  This entity was registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the (i) ZBEREDEEEAEEEAINIEBEDNE -
laws and regulations in the PRC.
(i)~ The English translation of the names are for identification only. The official (i) BEMETEZEHBIIEE ZSEENET S
names of these entities are in Chinese. AR .
13 Inventories 13 FE&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEMBRRRPTNEECEUT
financial position comprise: £IF .
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Raw materials R 152,312 153,959
Work in progress b T 329,704 254,002
Finished goods B2IPK 273,823 372,357
755,839 780,318
Less: write-down of inventories B FEHUR (1,922) (724)
753,917 779,594
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) ERAAMIAFAGEEBERN
recognised as expense and included in the FESHEINWT @
consolidated statement of profit or loss is as
follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Carrying amount of inventories sold B HEFEMREEE 3,614,268 3,345,825
Recognition/(reversal) of FEMRTER, (BE)
write-down of inventories 1,198 (9,599)

3,615,466 3,336,226
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14 EFRBFHERERERE

14 Trade and Bills Receivables

2022 2021

202245 20214

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T AREEFTT

Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE 501,730 335,993
Less: loss allowance (Note 14(b)) W SRR (M EE14(0)) (5,851) (4,092)
495,879 331,901

Bills receivable TENEE 599,806 1,186,789
1,095,685 1,518,690

All of the trade and bills receivables, net of loss allowance, are

expected to be recovered within one year.

The balance of bills receivable represents bank and trade
acceptance notes received from customers with maturity dates

of less than one year.

(a) Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, of the Group is as

P A B 5 FE W R S R MR 1R (FNRR B 1R
) BRI —FAURE -

RUWREREHEE TP I EIEA DR —
FHRITREZGEHRE -

(a) BRER AT

AREBERER BB NNREREED
B S RYGRIRRE DTN T

follows:
2022 2021
202245 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Less than 1 month D 11E A 231,423 160,062
1 to 3 months 1 =318 A 208,117 129,647
3 to 6 months 3 £6fEA 53,695 39,642
Over 6 months Z 7 61E A 2,644 2,550
495,879 331,901

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in

Note 24(a).

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables

BERAARBEEREERRNEZFIEH
PR EE24(a) ©

(b) EZBUFHEREBERREAME

The movements in the loss allowance account are as EERERNZEEHNT -
follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTIT
At 1 January W1A1H 4,092 5,838
Recognition/(reversal) of credit losses 2/ (BE)EEEE
(Note 6(c)) (KizE6(0) 1,759 (1,746)
At 31 December ®12H31H 5,851 4,092
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14 Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Transfer of financial assets

The Group has discounted certain of the bank acceptance
notes it received from customers at banks and endorsed
certain of the bank acceptance notes it received from
customers to its suppliers and other creditors for settlement
of the Group’s trade and other payables on a full recourse
basis. Upon the above discounting or endorsement, the
Group has derecognised the bills receivables in their
entirety. These derecognised bank acceptance notes have
maturity dates of less than six months from the end of
the reporting period. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of these notes and has
discharged its obligation of the payables to its suppliers
and other creditors. The Group considered the issuing
banks of these notes are reputable banks in China and
of good credit quality therefore non-settlement of these
notes by the issuing banks on maturity is highly unlikely.
At 31 December 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure
to loss and undiscounted cash outflow should the issuing
banks fail to settle the bills on maturity dates amounted to
RMB242,349,000 (2021: RMB146,913,000).

Bills receivable includes bank acceptance notes discounted
at banks or endorsed to suppliers with recourse totaling
RMB144,784,000 (2021: RMB192,075,000) and trade
acceptance notes discounted at banks or endorsed to
suppliers with recourse totaling RMB149,781,000 (2021:
RMB273,054,000) at 31 December 2022, which were not
derecognised as the Group remains to have significant
exposure to the credit risk of these bills receivables. The
aggregate carrying amount of the associated bank loans
and trade payables amounted to RMB294,565,000 (2021:
RMB465,129,000) at 31 December 2022.

At 31 December 2022, trade and bills receivables with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB430,804,000 (2021:
RMB428,563,000) have been pledged for the Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings (see Note 19).

14 B BRFERERRE
() BHLMEE

AEBERTHES THEZTFWEAER
TTARGEEEIT TR - WHHEER
LREMERAESESE THAEEPIEN
RITRKES  UIRT2BRELEL
BARSENE ZENFIEREMERK
TH o fFUA LR BRIR s S £ - ANEE
BRERIEREWNEE - Z2FEHK
IEERRIRITA N ZBNE A B WS
KRB TRAMEA - RAFREER
B ASBECRERZEEENMEED
BRIADRB KRB WEBITHHEE
P REMEEANNREE - AEER
AZEZENRAERTATREERYT
WIRTTEABRIFEEEZ - RN
RRRIRITTNEEZSERBEM ] ER
1 o 7202212 A31H » MFEZRTT
REHBRELEERE - AIAEENS
REBRREARMAR ST HREREIEREA
AR®242,349,00070(20214F + AR
146,913,0007T) ©

EWEEBIEERITMIR S E THE
FE S ERENRTRLZEASEA
R #144,784,0007C (20214 «+ AR
192,075,0007T ) R AR T BA IR sk A1 it
NBEEABBRENHEALZREH
AR #149,781,0007C (20214 « AR
#273,054,0007T) + ZFRREEI K
BIERER - AXSENHZSRKEE
EEEREERR o 112022912 A31
B EEEZEMNFENRARESA
R #294,565,0007C (20214 : AR
465,129,0007T) ©

(d) R2022F12A31H » BEEBLEAA

R #430,804,0007C (20214 : AR
428,563,0007T ) K & 5 FE W 3k 18 K i Uk
EROMAEENE EEREER(R
Mf3E19) ©
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15 Prepayments, Deposits and Other

15 BARIE » RERHMWEWRFRIEA

Receivables

2022 2021

20225 20214F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT

Prepayments for purchase of raw materials B2 R #IHTE( 7RI 17,093 15,043

Prepayments for transportation and Ei R AR A

other miscellaneous expenses TERTFIR 14,358 9,780
Value-added-tax recoverable ARSI E R 654 1,181
Advance payments TERTRK 844 2,285
Lease receivables FEU R & FIH 2,832 -
Others EHith 4,171 2,490
39,952 30,779
Less: loss allowance W SRR (3,155) (3,089)
36,797 27,690

All of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within one

PIETANTIR » e R EMREGIREFAERR
—FRKERER R

year.

The movements in the loss allowance account are as follows: EiEREERNEE T
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
At 1 January M HATH 3,089 2,983
Recognition of credit losses (Note 6(c)) WRIEEEBERAF6() 66 106
At 31 December M12A31H 3,155 3,089
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16 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash 16 & RESZEYUREMIRS

Flow Information REER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated (a) REMBMRRRANBRITRFER
statement of financial position comprise: £aIE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AE¥ETTT
Cash at bank IR1TIR® 460,120 551,599
Deposits with other financial R EAD S BT
institution 4,746 -
Cash on hand FoERS 26 13
Cash and cash equivalents included s+ A4ZAPBERREKZIRE
in the consolidated statement of FMIREEED
financial position 464,892 551,612
Less: restricted deposits (Note (i) W ZBREFER(A ) (83,834) (121,424)
Cash and cash equivalents included st AGARERERCES
in the consolidated cash flow FIReEEY
statement 381,058 430,188

The Group’s operations in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong
SAR) conducted its business in RMB. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong SAR) is subject to the exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Note:

() Restricted deposits mainly represent deposits placed at banks as
collaterals for interest-bearing bank borrowings of (see Note 19), bank
acceptance notes issued by (see Note 17) the Group and guaranteed
deposit for letters of credit.

AEBNHE(TEEEEFIITTHR)
EBEUAAREES - \REAATBEHE
% BESHEELPBEBEINTABEE
ABRRIITIR ) B - B BIBUT e 0
HISNERR BIFTESE

GEX

@)

ZBEFREBRBAREERRRITERF
SRITER(RMEE19) - FIBEHRITARLE
H(RME7) 2 ER RO FRREBRERE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash
Flow Information (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing activities.

16 BERVEFEWUAREMRES
REER(E)
(b) MEFHELNABEHR

TRHANAEEREEHAELREZ
e BRRELIFREH - BER
BRELRERRSRECD (HAKN
RenEfe) NAEEGARERE

ROBERBMERDELZREREZR

& e
Interest-
bearing Interest Lease
borrowings payables liabilities Total
SRR A HERE st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR®ETT AR%®TT ARETR
(Note 19) (Note 18)
(Hiz£19) (Hiit18)

At 1 January 2021 RW2021E1818 1,922,252 3,517 151 1,925,920
Changes from financing MERESRELE

cash flows:
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank R EFERITREAMERZ

and other borrowings TS 7UE 2,225,064 - - 2,225,064
Repayment of interest-bearing bank ~ {Ei8 5t 8R1T REAME R

and other borrowings (1,680,090) - - (1,680,090)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ ERHAERELHERES - - (792) (792)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 HERE KL - - (55) (55)
Interest paid ERFIE - (113,092) - (113,092)
Total changes from financing RERSREEL  EDEH

cash flows 544,974 (113,092) (847) 431,035
Other changes: Hih#g
New leases entered into during FRETIAFMEE

the year (Note 11(a)) (H£11(a) - - 1,844 1,844
Interest expenses (Note 6(a)) FERS(Hit6) - 118,784 55 118,839

Totalotherchanges  AtEE@es - lise4 1899 120,683

At 31 December 2021 20215128310 2,467,226 9,209 1,203 2,477,638
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash

Flow Information (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

REER(E)
(b) MEFBEENEEHIR(E)

16 RERBEEEYURE MRS

Interest-
bearing Interest  Dividends Lease
borrowings payables payables liabilities Total
FTEEH A HIE EffRE HEAE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 19) (Note 18)
(#i19) (#i18)
At 1 January 2022 ®2022%1A81A 2,467,226 9,209 - 1,203 2,477,638
Changes from financing HERENESD:
cash flows:
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank B ERITREMET 218
and other borrowings HA 1,017,385 - - - 1,017,385
Repayment of interest-bearing bank B3t 81T REMER
and other borrowings (1,545,555) - - - (1,545,555)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 AEEHSHELRDH - - - (1,067) (1,067)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 A EH LS - - - (88) (88)
Dividends paid EfRE - - (36,584) - (36,584)
Interest paid RARRI! - (113,827) - - (113,827)
Total changes from financing cash flows BEH & FEE L 7 £ 8185 (528,170)  (113,827) (36,584) (1,155)  (679,736)
Other changes: Etng
New leases entered into during the year 3] 7E)3TTHE
(Note 11(a)) (hrt11@) - - - 9,778 9,778
Interest expenses (Note 6(a)) FERS(HH66) - 108,740 - 88 108,828
Dividends approved in respect of SRTEEHANRS
the previous year (Note 23(d)) (W23(0) - - 36,584 - 36,584
Totalotherchanges  AwE®EE® s losra0 36584 9866 155190
At 31 December 2022 R2022%128318 1,939,056 4122 - 9,914 1,953,092
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e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash
Flow Information (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement
for leases comprise the following:

16 RERBEEEYURE RS

REER(E)
() MERSHEAE

HAGARSRBRNAERAREN
TER -

2022 2021

20225 20214F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Within operating cash flows BRIEERSMEN 518 -
Within investing cash flows BRRELREREN 10,800 -
Within financing cash flows BRBERSREN 1,155 847
12,473 847

17 Trade and Bills Payables

17 EZRAREBERENRE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBFT

Trade payables B S ENFE 545,263 693,313
Bills payable ANt 15,467 -
560,730 693,313

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

PIEE B RNFENENEERER/N —F
NAER - HARERERE -

REZREH2INESRNFKARENR
EHERER DOMTAAT ¢

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T AREFIT

Less than 1 month DA 1E A 336,780 460,570
1 to 3 months 1&231E A 140,912 216,620
3 to 6 months 3%61EA 53,326 8,591
Over 6 months 6fE A E 29,712 7,532

560,730 693,313
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

18 Other Payables and Accruals

18 Hit B RIBER BT EA

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Payables for construction of property,

EERME - BE KR

plant and equipment e F0E 64,771 62,166
Payables for transportation and g MKEFEZH
utilities expenses FERTFIR 45,269 28,394
Payables for other taxes H A A IR ) FE N FRIE 19,873 28,178
Payables for staff related costs 8 TR AR FET FRIE 14,733 4,730
Interest payables FERHF B 4,122 9,209
Others EHi 9,324 7,355
Financial liabilities measured at LABESHRCANET E 8Y
amortised cost SRBE 158,092 140,032
Receipts in advance SEIETe ] 76,860 83,325
234,952 223,357
All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled FrB B MR FIA R ERT B AR R —F
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on NEEBHIER BN - K BRERKERER -

demand.

19 Interest-bearing Borrowings

19 STEER

(a) The Group’s short-term borrowings comprise: (a) *EENEHERERE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARKEFT
Bank loans: RITEN

— Secured by the Group's property, —UXREEYE - BER

plant and equipment R IEE A 261,800 289,680

— Secured by the Group's trade and
bills receivables and/or restricted

— AR EE 5 U E &
FEWEIE &SRR ITF R

deposits YEH AR 415,116 556,440
- Unguaranteed and unsecured — YR MK 303,840 618,906
980,756 1,465,026

Add: current portion of long-term
borrowings (Note 19(b))

o0 REME T2 BNERER
(HizE19(b)) 196,000 351,900

1,176,756 1,816,926
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19 Interest-bearing Borrowings (Continued) 19 ST EMBR(E)
(b) The Group’s long-term borrowings comprise: (b) XEEHNRAEREERE :
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETTT
Bank loans: RITER
— Secured by the Group's property, —UREEYE - BER
plant and equipment R AR 478,500 592,900
— Secured by the Group's inventories  — LAZRE BlF E{EHK 148,000 150,000
— Unguaranteed and unsecured — SR UMK T 240,000 190,000
866,500 932,900
Borrowings from a related party B — BT
(Note 26(b)): {EFR(Hiat26(b) -
- Unguaranteed and unsecured — PRIV IR 91,800 69,300
958,300 1,002,200
Less: current portion of long-term B REMEF BIERER Y
borrowings (Note 19(a)) (Mt 19(a)) (196,000) (351,900)
762,300 650,300
(c) The Group's long-term borrowings are repayable (c) XEBRIAMERENRUT HABERER :
as follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AEETTT
Within 1 year 1R 196,000 351,900
After 1 year but within 2 years 1A FE2F AR 488,300 260,300
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA EESFEA 274,000 390,000

958,300 1,002,200
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B-SB855) U RESIT)

19 Interest-bearing Borrowings (Continued) 19 sTEER(E)
(d) Certain of the Group’s borrowings are secured d) XEEBETEFAETEE N HEE
by the following assets of the Group: YEIRFR :
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Property, plant and equipment W - WENEE
(Note 11(a)(ii)) (BFaE11(a)i) 1,193,511 1,103,556
Inventories 78 250,000 250,000
Trade and bills receivables B S RUGRIE R W EE
(Note 14(d)) (Btat14(a)) 430,804 428,563
Cash at bank and on hand - BITRFERE —
restricted deposits IR B 50 79,089 66,369
1,953,404 1,848,488
(e) Certain of the Group's bank loans are subject to the (e) AEEBEFTIRITERAERN  RIELE
fulfilment of covenants commonly found in the lending REELZHT R ARE - HMAEEE
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group REBRYE  ERERABEREREE -
were to breach the covenants, the loans would become AEETHEREETZEZENS
repayable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its e BEAEEEERBESRRNE
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Z B E BT 7E24(0) © FR20224F 12 A
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 318 - BiEEREE SRITERNRZ
24(b). At 31 December 2022, none of the covenants B (20214F « ) -

relating to the interest-bearing bank borrowings had been
breached. (2021: None).
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20 UEREEURNDAERNRKS
(a) B HESTE
R2019F6 8198 » RAGEFEME XA

20 Equity Settled Share-based Transactions
(a) Share option schemes
On 19 June 2019, the Company has adopted pre-IPO

share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
certain directors and senior management of the Group, to
take up share options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company.

A consideration of HK$1 had been paid by each grantee on
acceptance of the share options granted. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(i) The details of the share options granted are as

FEERBRET S ([BERAFEER

fBRERT &I )) MRt 8 ([ e higat
g ]) - RIBBRAFMESAERES
g ARRIEFEEENBEEGASH
ETEERSREEBEABIRENAR
BARAEEK o

B A D RER AR PT  IE AE  s
REVET - BNBERES THAEAR

NRBE—BARRBE B - WA
S -

() CRLHBREFENT -

follows:
Contractual
Number of life of
share options  Vesting Conditions share options
BREHE BEGH BRESQHIR
Share options granted to directors:
RTESNBRE:
- 0On 8 October 2019 27,000,000  Both performance and service period 6-7 years
conditions apply (Note ()
—#R2019%10A8H R R IR R R ER (7)) 6-7F
Share options granted to senior
management:
RYefEEBNBRE
-0n 8 October 2019 15,000,000  Both performance and service period 6 years
conditions apply (Note ()
~12019%10A8H R R RIS G R @A (A7) 65
- 0On 8 October 2019 3,000,000  service period conditions apply (Note (i) 6 years
—142019%10A8H PR R A (i) 65
- 0On 10 December 2021 4,000,000  service period conditions apply (Note (iii)) 9.97 years
—2021%12R108 PR Rt @A (B2t i) 9.97F
Total share options 49,000,000

FRICEEE
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20 Equity Settled Share-based Transactions
(Continued)

(a) Share option schemes (Continued)

(i) The details of the share options granted are as

follows: (Continued)

Share options may be granted under vesting conditions
with reference to financial performance of the Group
(the “Financial KPIs”) and/or service periods (the
“Service Periods”). The commencement date of the
vesting conditions varies and is separately determined
for each share option granted upon the grant date (the
“Vesting Conditions Commencement Date”).

Notes:

(U]

(ii)

(iii)

For these share options granted on 8 October 2019 which
became effective upon the Listing Date, 20% of the total share
options granted will vest at the end of each of the first to fifth
year from the Vesting Conditions Commencement Date and
upon the achievement of the respective year’s Financial KPIs
and/or Service Periods. Partial achievement on the Financial
KPIs will result in the reduction in the number of share options
being vested, calculated in accordance with the pre-determined
formulae at the date of grant. Vested share options are
exercisable within contractual life of 6 to 7 years.

For these share options granted on 8 October 2019 which
became effective upon the Listing Date, 20% of the total share
options granted will vest at the end of each of the first to fifth
year from the Vesting Conditions Commencement Date and
upon the achievement of Service Periods.

For these share options granted on 10 December 2021 which
became effective immediately, 25% of the total share options
granted will vest at the end of each of the second to fifth year
from the Vesting Conditions Commencement Date and upon the
achievement of Service Periods.

20 LESFEHEURODBERNIRS

(%)

(a) MBARAESHEI ()

()

ERUBREFEUT - (&)

BREARESEAKEMBERS
(T BRASERUEIR ) & KBRS
HAR (T RS AR J) B0 55 8 5k 1 1 1%
he BEERENRGEEREET
[ - 3 B BB &5 AR
BRESREE ([ BBIRTFRSAA
Hi1) e

Wi

() FEULZH2019F10AAXE MM L
AHIRRAERERENS - FIRLER
TEABZIM20% 15 70 55 BB (5 1 B oa A H AR
AE-EERFHTFR - WHEDIE
BEENMHRRESUEER SKRH
HM%ERE - oD IERBRE SIS
EHERERERENSBRD &
ERELABREAETNARGE - &
EEERERETFNANIRAN T
M -

(i) FLULZER2019F10A8BFEE MR L
BAHIRAERRERENS - TR LER
TE LB BE20% 5 7 55 B 6 G 46 A HA e
HE-EERFNEFAR  WEESE
AFENRGHRERE -

(i) FLULERR 2021412 A108 % i BV EF
EREBRAET S - TR L EREEHK
HI25% 50 B B IR 1F A 46 B BB R S —
EERFHEFAR - W EEFIBEAF
ERRGHEERE -
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20 Equity Settled Share-based Transactions 20 URERZEURDAERNRZS
(Continued) (#&)
(a) Share option schemes (Continued) (a) BBRESTEI(E)
(i) The number and weighted average exercise price (ii) BBIRFERE B R INEFIG1TEE W
of share options are as follows: T
2022 2021
2022 20215
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price Options  exercise price Options
MEFATHEE BRESE mETHTeE BREE
Outstanding at 1 January M ATREATR HKS0.72 34,900,000 HK$0477 42,300,000
07287 04778 T
Exercised during the year FRETR HK$0.477 (1,200,000) HK$0.477 (1,200,000)
047787 047778
Granted during the year FRERE - - HK$2.56 4,000,000
256787
Forfeited during the year FRERK HK$0.477 (4,200,000) HK$0.477  (10,200,000)
04778 T 047757
Outstanding at 31 December M2 A3 BEFHE HK$0.76 29,500,000 HK$0.72 34,900,000
047687 07237
Exercisable at 31 December M2A3BA T HK$0.477 HK$0.477

047787 5,700,000 0477 T 2,700,000

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2022612 A31 B EATEER
2022 had a weighted exercise price of HK$0.76 R INRETTEE 50.76/8 7T (2021
(2021: HK$0.72) and a weighted average remaining F:0.7287T) - METARBREL

contractual life of 4.04 years (2021: 4.9 years). HAPR A34.044E (20214 : 4.9%) -
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20 Equity Settled Share-based Transactions
(Continued)

(b) Share award plans

On 31 May 2022, the Company adopted share award plans
(the “Share Award Plans”). Pursuant to the Share Award
Plans, the Share Incentive Committee of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to make award of the
Company’s shares to any of eligible participants the Group.
The Share Award Plans will be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing from 31 May 2022.

Up to 31 December 2022, for the purpose of Share Award
Plans, the Company repurchased 21,153,000 ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange, details are set out in Note
23(c)(ii).

No share award was granted under the Share Award Plans as
at 31 December 2022.

21 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement

of financial position represents:

20 UEREEURNDAERNKS

(%)

(b) B A7 2B+
202258318 » AR AEFEMI ) 2
BhatEI ([ B 82EhETEl ) - BRI D 82
BEtEl  ARRIRDBEZ E 2R E
BISRALEBE (A ERSEER TR
NEIIED o B SZENET B R 820224F
5A31 BT 10OFHE A ER -

HZE2022F12A31H - k)&
BrtElims A2aRERATEE
21,153,0000% E /A% - BT ISENHT
5F23(c)ii) °

R2022%12A318 @ BERER G, E
Byt &5 BRI AR 2/ -

21 ZEMBIRR R P EHR

(a) REMBMR R PR E B AL -

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Income tax payable at 1 January M ATBRERETER - 9,276

Provision for the year FNEE 18,647 200

Over-provision in respect of prior years &1 & tAZE R - (8,361)

Income tax paid ERATEH (6,199) (1,115)
Balance of income tax payable at K12 A31 B ER TSI &

31 December

12,448 -
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21 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement 21 42 BB RERDHWAER (&)
of Financial Position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) CREREEREEERERE
(i) Movements of each component of deferred tax (i) BEHELSEREBELZSTEE
assets and liabilities
The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the e A B SRR 3= P IR A IR E R
consolidated statement of financial position and the BEE/ (BE)REANES N
movements during the year are as follows: T
Assets Liabilities
gE 8f
Accelerated
Credit tax
losses Retained allowance
ontrade  Write- Unrealized profits for
Unused andother ~ downof  Deferred gain tobe depreciation
Deferred tax arising from: ~ BETHIBEZERAE: taxlosses receivables inventories  income  orloss Sub-total distributed expenses  Subtotal Net
BAREH b5
AER By #ERNE AR WEH

BEBE GEER  FEMM  EDW. 9B Mt OREEN RERE it #E
RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARET ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETTL ARETH ARETR
At 1 January 2021 RONEIA1E 22,091 1322 1548 2376 - 03 - (8083) (8083 19254
Credited/(charged) to the MrakeR
consolidated statement of HA/(HB)

profit orloss (Note 7) Wi#7) (17.769) (245) (1,440) (259) 788 (18923) (1.841) (4213 (6,054 (24.977)
At31December 2021and 1 52021F128318R
January 2022 00E1R18 433 1077 108 218 8 8414 (1841)  (12296) (14,137 (5723)

Credited/(charged) to the MFRERE
consoldated statement of A/ %)

profit orloss (Note 7) (W) 33 274 180 (234) (624)  (4727) - 198y (1988 (6,715)
At 31 December 2022 022512318 - 1351 288 1884 164 3,687 (1841)  (14284) (16,125 (12,438
(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (i) HEBM T L R
financial position
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR T ARETTT

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R45a BTGk R = R B
in the consolidated statement of R IR B EFRE
financial position (12,438) (5,723)
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of Financial Position (Continued)
(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (0)

Except for deferred tax liabilities already recognised in Note
21(b), taxable temporary differences relating to the retained
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong SAR) amounted to RMB542,623,000
(2021: RMB431,449,000), where deferred tax liabilities
in respect of the PRC withholding tax that would be
payable on the distributions of these profits, have not been
recognised as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it
is probable that such profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

S P BAR R R P AVFRES ()

21 Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement 21 &4

RERZIELEREEE

BRI F210) P M EBRELCHES
BN BAEBERFE(TBEEES
FERIATIRE ) A BB B A Rl MR B8
mFAEMEREBREZEAAR
#& 542,623,000 7T (2021 F : AR
431,449,0007T) ' MERHIRZ S &
F EA &R BFE R R TR TE A
&+ BAAREIEHZEN B AR
B BEEEZE G EEE
BAREDIK °

22 Deferred income 22 EIEW A
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
At 1 January ®1A1R 14,125 15,842
Credited to the consolidated STAGREERREM
statement of profit or loss and FHEREER
other comprehensive income (1,583) 1,717)
At 31 December »W12A31H 12,542 14,125

Deferred income represents government grants received to
compensate the Group’s cost of construction of property, plant
and equipment. The grants are amortised over the useful lives
of the related property, plant and equipment.

BB AEERAREYR - BE &
AR RS 3 SR B AN O 488 18 T URCER B R AT B
8 - MR EEME - BERRIEBHE
FEHIR#EH -
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23 Capital, Reserves and Distributions/ 23 EX - RERRE
Dividends
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) RO NEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBGAERS IO EAY) R HRE
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated HY R ARG AR SR - NN FEE
equity are set out in the consolidated statement of changes RIS EEFIEEHN T X

in equity. Details of the changes of the Company’s
individual components of equity are set out below:

Share Share Treasury Capital  Exchange Retained Total
capital premium shares reserve reserve profits equity
(BitEE)/

Rkx  RMEE  ERRG 0 ERE  EXRE  RERE BRER

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

MEETT  ARETT ARETR ARMTR ABETn ABETR ABETR
Note 23(b) ~ Note 23(i) ~ Note 23(c)i) ~ Note 23(c)ii) ~ Note 23(clf)
Fi7e (7 7 o 7% o 70

Balance at 1 January 2021 RUONE1R1R KSR 134,263 159,130 - 5,866 (14,681) 81,635 366,213
Changes in equity for the year ended BEANENANALEEN
31 December 2021; B&%E:
Loss for the year EhEE - - - - - (6.227) (6:221)
Other comprehensive income Eh2ENS - - - - (10,736) - (10,736)
Total comprehensive incorme for the year ER2ENEEE - - - - (10,736) (6,227) (16963)
Dividends approved in respect of the previous year  FEEAEEH EERE 9 124 - (854) - - 469
Equity settled share-based transactions (Note 20)  IERSE WK BERNRZME ) - - - 2,105 - - 2,10
. S WA o W T o L3
Balance at 31 December 2021 and RUNENABR
1 January 2022 WNEIR1ANES 134,362 160,354 - 117 (25,417) 75,408 351,824
Changes in equity for the year ended HEANENANALEEN
31 December 2022; s B
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (5,46) (5,446)
Other comprehensive income ApzEhs - - - - 28,261 - 28,261
Total comprehensive incorne for the year ER2ENREE = = = = 28,261 (5,446) 2815
Shares issued under share option scheme REERETETNRN 104 1341 = (981) s = 464
Dividends approved in respect of SEEERREORS W20
the previous year (Note 23(c)i) - (36,584) - - - - (36,584)
Equity settled share-hased transactions (Note 20) ~ MEREEMR BEENR5(220) - - - 2875 - - 2875
Shares held for share award plans (Note 200 ERG R B ARG ME7200) - - (49,213) - - - (49,213)
Purchase of own shares (Note 23(c)(i)) BEEAERG A0 - - (6.275) - - - (6,275)
Cancelation of treasury shares (Note 3()fi) ~ SEBRRAAE31) (326) (5,949) 6,275 - - - -
22 (1,192) (49,213) 1,89 - - (88,733)

Balance at 31 December 2022 H0nE1R31ARER 134,140 119,162 (49,213) 9,011 2,844 69,962 285,906
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eI RAR M ()
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23 Capital, Reserves and Distributions/
Dividends (Continued)

23 B ~

RERDIKBRE (&)

(b) Share capital (b) B
2022 2021
20225 20215
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHEE k2 DL e
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR TR Tk FAT
Authorised share capital (Note (i) EERARMH) 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000
2022 2021
20225 20216
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
KRB k2 R EE e
RMB000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AEETT
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: ERTRAZLER :
At 1 January ®1A1A 1,501,200,000 134,362 1,500,000,000 134,263
Shares issued under REBRES TN
share option scheme (Note (ii)) B EL 1,200,000 104 1,200,000 99
Cancellation of treasury shares (Note (c)(ii)  sTH5EZIM (H5#()i) (3,932,000) (326) - -
At 31 December #128318 1,498,468,000 134,140  1,501,200,000 134,362
Notes: PFtsE -

(i) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 28 August 2018. Its initial authorised
share capital was HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares with a
par value of HK$0.1 per share. On 19 June 2019 and 8 October 2019,
the equity shareholders of the Company resolved to increase the
authorised share capital of the Company from HK$380,000 divided
into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.1 each to HK$2,000,000,000 divided
into 20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each.

(i) On 13 May 2022, share options were exercised at HK$0.477 per
share to subscribe for 1,200,000 ordinary shares in the Company at
a total consideration of HK$572,000 (equivalent to RMB464,000).
RMB104,000 and RMB360,000 were credited in the Company’s share
capital and share premium account respectively. RMB981,000 was
transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium account in
accordance with policy set out in Note 2(p)(ii).

On 30 September 2021 and 9 November 2021, share options were
exercised at HK$0.477 per share to subscribe for 600,000 ordinary
shares respectively, in the Company respectively at a total consideration
of HK$572,000 (equivalent to RMB469,000). RMB99,000 and
RMB370,000 were credited in the Company’s share capital and share
premium account respectively. RMB854,000 was transferred from the
capital reserve to the share premium account in accordance with policy
set out in Note 2(p)(ii).

@)

RNATR201848 A28 AN S B B iEMAk
N RBERRARAR - HVBEERANE
380,000/ 7T * 9 43,800,000 &AL E1EO.1
HITTHIRE - K20194F6 4198 2019410
A8H » ARARIESIREREAE AR RLETE R
19 £2380,0007% 7T, ( 5 43,800,000 A% FF AR E 1B
0.1/ LM %17 ) #5 2 2,000,000,0007 7T (5 &
20,000,000,000/% G AREI(EO. 178 TTHIAR19) ©

2022454138 - BRIENER0.4773 T
771E + DARREE1,200,00008 AN E)E @AY - 42
B /572,0007% 7T (FE A A R % 464,000
7)) © AR#E104,0007T & A R #360,0007T5
BIEFARRBIRA RIS R ERR o RIRH
2(p)iFrEL A ELSR - AR#981,0007T H & A
HEEBEERDHER -

20219 A308 K% 2021411 A998 - B
R EAR0.4778 AT AR B R (B 572,000
BT (HHER AR A469,0007T ) REE AR 7
600,000% @A - AR%99,0007T &k AR
370,0007T 5 RIRAZAR R B AR AN K2 A% 19 V4 (B AR
AR o ARE854,0007T J5 4R 1 i 5E2(p)(i) B
BAEEESERDRER -
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23 X~ RERDIKRE (F)

23 Capital, Reserves and Distributions/
Dividends (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time.

() EENEERED
() RtpiEE

Bt s ERERX RS EHEED
E228RNANE(1961FE35 AN -
RIRE RIEFT) B3R (B TEE
7] AR ARMIT A EBORE -

(i) Treasury shares (i) EFRG
Treasury shares for the purpose of share award plans R EE 2% B B8 [E 77 %
Shares held
Number Highest Lowest for share
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate award
Year repurchased per share per share price paid plans
£t BERHBE CSASKRBREE SASRREE BNAE  ARORE
HKS HKS RMB'000 it &5 MRS
B BT AREBTR
2022 21,153,000 3.02 2.16 49,213 21,153,000
Treasury shares for the purpose of cancellation R B BRI E 7 AR
During the year, the Company repurchased its own FR - RARERBRATIZUA T
shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: fEhl g F&xn :
Number Highest Lowest Number Number
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate of shares of treasury
Year repurchased per share per share price paid cancelled shares
&) BORGBE EANERESE ZABRBEER BfAE HHROUA EFREE
HKS HK$ RMB'000
B BT ARET T
2022 3,932,000 2.10 1.59 6,275 (3,932,000) -

The total amount paid for the repurchased shares was
paid wholly out of share premium.

B R AR MR RREEE K
I (ER ST
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23 Capital, Reserves and Distributions/
Dividends (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the portion of the grant date
fair value of unexercised share options granted to the
directors of the Company and the employees of the
Group that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
Note 2(p)(ii).

(iv) Other reserves

(v)

The other reserve at 31 December 2021 and 2022
comprised (i) the difference between the net assets of
Dalipal Pipe and the consideration of RMB27,902,000
received from the reorganisation; and (i) the statutory
reserve of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and
regulations, the Company's subsidiaries established
in Mainland China are required to transfer 10% of
its net profit to the statutory reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the respective subsidiaries’
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before distributions to equity holders. This
reserve can be utilised in setting off accumulated losses
or increase capital of the respective subsidiaries and is
non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into RMB. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in Note 2(t).

23 X~ RERDIK RS (F)

() EENHEEREHGE)
(i) BEX1#E

BARBBERTARAEERAE
BEEMERTEERENRTA
HARNFERD - SAREHE200)i)
ARG BEBON KRR S
BURTER °

(iv) Rttt

R2021F K%2022412 A31HME
HEEERONENEEAENEE
FEHEASEHEMEBNREARE
27,902,000 0 2 BRI Z58 + R(i)A
EEF BB R RAETERHE ©

RIBEBREDAR AR - ANRF]
T F R P 3 P S7 ) Y BB R R R B
TEEEEEANNI10%  BEEM
BAEREDI S HE QR EME AR
50% ° A% ik R BRI A R an 4
BADIKAMEL s/ E AT ARE
HEMBLRMNRFBRIEER
BRIERIM AT DK ©

) EZEE

BE 4 fok fh B 4B A A SN R A ) B 75
RBE/ARERELNINEE
B - MEREME20ME gt
HRBEIE



Annual Report 2022 5% 2 5 5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR MR AR M ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

23 X~ RERDIKRE (F)

23 Capital, Reserves and Distributions/
Dividends (Continued)

(d) Dividends (d) RE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FERAEMNERGERREHRE

(ii)

Company attributable to the year

2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETTT
Final dividend proposed after HE B S R 1A R R R R
the end of the reporting of % SRR B R AK0.0478 7T
HK$0.04 per ordinary share (20214 : 0.0377T)
(2021: HK$0.03) 53,541 36,821

The final dividend proposed after the end of the

reporting period has not been recognised as a liability

at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

REBE R ZZORABRER R
EHRE A ARER SRR -

(i) BHEFEEGRFACHEREIR

TTHIEN A 2 Al 2 IR R R 2

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Final dividend in respect of RE Wﬁt)&&iﬁﬂ’]ﬁ’\i—ﬁﬁ
the previous financial year, BREEHNRKRE SR E
approved and paid during f%0.037% 7T (20214 - ﬁ)
the year of HK$0.03 per
ordinary share (2021: Nil) 36,584 -
The Group’s primary objectives when managing FAEBEEREAZIEENREBR

capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholders returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

BEmNIRTEE] E R b K AR
MBS R ARIRAE A A IRA A BNS At
B REAEEARIFELE
MR RFER RO R - WEK
Hib Rz rgraE -

AEETHEMEHLERLER
BE - UWEERSBREHRBERT
FIREFFIE 2 B 8 BT B AR R 1Y
BN KEEE 22 2 A AL
5 - WRRE BT E(CY
BARRBIEHHE -
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
of Financial Instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. The Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents, bills
receivables and derivative financial assets is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
a high credit standing assigned by the management of the
Group, for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

Trade receivables

The Group'’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period, 16.9% (2021: 13.3%)
and 55.7% (2021: 54.4%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
Group's five largest trade debtors, respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are generally due immediately and up to
90 days from the date of billings. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix.

24 I EREEREMIAEATRE

K%IEEI EEBBREVTHEHRER  RBE
MR R EERR

AEEHBENZFRR LA RBRARNEEZ
2 ez 0 B 95 L B T R IER SR % 1B 0 380 2t 4
To

(a) EER
EERBEHF I TRTANEEME
HASEAZMBERNER - AEH
MEERRETZREE S MEAMEYKK
B AEEMAZKRERE MREEHE
- BREBMTECREENEER
AR RRARHFIAAREEERE
PREEEA RIFEENRITR S B
B Bins  ARERSEERBREK
I o

ESEWSE

AEEERNEERREEZESEFN
BERIERETRE  MIER AR
1% At EXEFEERBREER
e S E N ]| R T S N e
e RIEHR  EZEKRFIELEE
P RIE16.9% (20214 : 13.3% ) &
55.7% (20214 : 54.4%) JyFEIL A2 B
BAESEBSAREBRAEBAAES
BEIEARIBRIK ©

AEEYHAERBE - EEBEEN
EPETENEERNE - ZFFHEET
REPBESNBIHRIA 2 L8k M IR
NRHEES - Y EEREFHARER
KB P E P VB IRE A R
Bt - EHREFE R R&ER
HEAHRI0B B - REE—RTUK
MEPHERR o

AEBZBAEREWERRBERREX
ME B EE 5 RINFUANEREE
TERMBEREE -
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 24 BiBEREERSMIAATEE

of Financial Instruments (Continued) (#8)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERMR(E)

The following table provides information about the Group’s TRIEHEAAEEE FEWRFIBRE®

exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: FEHEERE MBS IELNEE

2022
20224
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowances
FEHEEE BREAE EERE
Current (not past due) BUEA (R HR) 0.2% 431,708 (897)
Less than 3 months past due i@ HR A 31E A 0.8% 61,111 (491)
3 to 6 months past due w3 Z=61E A 3.7% 3,981 (146)
6 to 12 months past due wHI6ZE 1218 A 51.6% 1,267 (654)
Over 12 months past due B EAEE 1 218 A 100.0% 3,663 (3.663)
501,730 (5,851)
2021
20214F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowances
TE AR e = IRERE EERE
Current (not past due) BNHA (R ER) 0.3% 291,843 (965)
Less than 3 months past due  ER D FA31E A 1.2% 35,588 (424)
3 to 6 months past due WHEI3E6(E A 5.4% 5,816 (314)
6 to 12 months past due w6 1218 A 12.8% 409 (52)
Over 12 months past due wHEARRE 1218 A 100.0% 2,337 (2,337)
335,993 (4,092)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over TEHEEEDENTAFNEREEL
the recent past years. These rates are adjusted to reflect BT ESH - ZZEHRERABLUARME
differences between economic conditions during the period S EIR I E BEM BN - ZRTARR
over which the historic data has been collected, current B 7R 5= B 3 JE LA 5k T8 B B AR B A AR R
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions MEEEZHHER o

over the expected lives of the receivables.
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 24 BiBEREERSMIAATEE

of Financial Instruments (Continued) (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) RENE SRS
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity REBNKREETHERRBESLEN
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants NEFEERS  BEAEBRHZTHL
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and MRS FHEE AN ETES g EESE
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial BHRNFREREREE  UheHEEL
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short EHREESENK -

and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual TRIRAEEBNIIETESHBERR
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s LHRRI TR S YR EA R AR - ThiR S
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on AHKRERB S RE(BIERITHNER
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest STEMF BT SHEBETE - Bl
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, IRHEHARNEHNERAE) RAER
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) ARERINHBEHREAESEE

and the earliest dates the Group can be required to pay:

2022
2022

Contractual undiscounted cash flow

AHAERRLRE
Within ~ Over 1year  Over2 years
1 year or but within but within Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
15R5 BEF BE2F
RER BHRE BHRSE @zt REfE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARET:R

Trade and bills payables BARNTERENRE 560,730 - - 560,730 560,730
Other payables and accruals REHERATTENE

measured at amortised cost ENZERETER 158,092 - - 158,092 158,092
Lease liabilities HERE 3,646 3,687 3,380 10,713 9,914
Interest-bearing borrowings HEER 1,237,211 526,022 282,874 2,046,107 1,939,056

1,959,679 529,709 286,254 2,775,642 2,667,792
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 24 BiEREERSHBIEATE

of Financial Instruments (Continued) (48)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEL R (E)
2021
20216
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
ROAMRR ST E
Within Over 1 year Over 2 years
1 year or but within but within Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
1R BiRIE feihonkad
BEX BAORE EUES &t REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT ANREFTT ARBTT ARBTL
Trade and bills payables BERNTERERNER 693,313 - - 693313 693,313
Other payables and accruals REFERATEOEMR
measured at amortised cost [ENTERELER 140,032 - - 140,032 140,032
Lease liabilities BERE 997 244 - 1,241 1,203
Interest-bearing borrowings HBER 1,883,212 291,104 410,102 2,584,418 2,467,226

2,717,554 291,348 410,102 3,419,004 3,301,774
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 24 BiEREERSHMIEATE
of Financial Instruments (Continued) (%)

(c) Interest rate risk (o)

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s total borrowings at the end of the
reporting period:

2@k
AEENNXRARERKABER
HOZEN A R R EEH R E OB EAR
SEN AR RENRER KA
BEFRER -

(i) FIEH#R
TRFDANEERNREHRERE
LEEOR RS

2022 2021
2022F 20215
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAI= BRMZ
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
% ARETR % ANREFTT
Fived rate borrowings: TEER:
Bank and other borrowings BITREMAER 3.60% ~ 6.18% 1,802,256 3.60% ~ 7.00% 2,372,226
Variable rate borrowings: FEEH:
Bank borrowings BITER 4.00% ~ 4.36% 136,800 4.51% 95,000
1,939,056 2,467,226
Fixed rate borrowings as EEEFGETABN
a percentage of total borrowings BAK 93% 96%




Annual Report 2022 %43 2 6 ’l

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
of Financial Instruments (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately and RMB1,163,000
(2021: RMB808,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after tax
and retained profits that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The impact is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest exposure of such a change in interest rates.
The sensitivity analysis is performed on the same basis as
2021.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales which give rise to cash, receivables and payables
balances that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they relate.
The currency gives rise to this risk is primarily US$.

24 iR EEREMIAEAYE
(&)
(o) FI=mpx(4E)
(i) HBRESH
H20225F 12 8318  fHEt R
B2 FF TR RK1001EESE - MrA
EMmEEHFTE  BeFlisE
M F 18 FE AR B R FIR A 18 n
#ANEHE1,163,0007T (20214« A
R #808,0007T) °

FSRESTET - BRI XS
BN RERBEETVE ERAREN
FrEASEEMFESHARE SR
EFNERBMNZESREE  HA
EEBBABERRBENEGERX
AR ES) - LR AENEE
BmMEME s FTE - GRED
HAEE2021 FABRI A BB HETT o

(d) E¥ =R
AEETEREEMHREEER - #§
CEELNARERBNESENRER
SN EEEHERR S - BGRIR R &
N EGER - SIBARRNEREERS
XTT e
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 24 BiEREERSHMIEATE
of Financial Instruments (Continued) (%)

(d) E¥EkE (&)

TRFAMAEERHFERARAZIALRSE
FAERNINEERISINEBHENS

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from

recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group's presentation currency are excluded.

HREESREEELNEERAR - B2
FIME - BREABROEBRIIAARED
™ ERARERFEANREERER
8 ApEINBEXRBOMBHRE /LS
EE2NEEMELANEZERSNEBRERE
A o

2022 2021

2022 20214F

us$ us$

e ETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREFTT

Cash and cash equivalents RITRFERS 92,329 32,218
Trade and bills receivables 2 5 WG IA R W R E 418,365 47,407
Other payables and accruals HAbfEFRIA R EETE A (2,978) (4,647)
507,716 74,978

At 31 December 2022, an increase/decrease of 5% in US$
with all other variables held constant would have increased/
decreased the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately RMB21,578,000 (2021: RMB3,187,000).
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
HK$ and US$ would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the US$ against other
currencies.

20224128318 © =T HE8
BE5%mMEMAIBEREZERFTE A&
B & F 18 T R R REF A&,
#IANRHE21,578,0007T (20214 + AR
#53,187,00070) ° gt s » BB
HETHEBER ZMITeREETLE
HEEHEEESMIIENTE -
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24 IEREEREMIAEATRE

24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
of Financial Instruments (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

0]

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows.

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not

available.

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs

Forward exchange contracts are categorised into Level
2 of the fair value hierarchy, and adopt the quoted
price in the active market to determine the fair value.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

(%)

(e) A¥EFE

()

BAFEENETHEERAR

NFEER
TREJREERISFREERE
13| FEFERMAEN=EAF
BES  NEERRREEUEREE
AAENAKESBT AR FE -
RNHEAEENWEMRTIZEGE
AP A A BB A BRI R
BEMETENT

o FIRMEE: AVEEERZS
— MW AHBE
BIEREERE
BRETE A HE
AT SRR
HERE

o F2UPMHE: ATVEEREC
RN S
B ATHAR
—RWAEBRE
AEiE B\ AE
REATAER
WAHBE - TH
BRBABER
R 5 8UR A A]
FAE 8 AR -
o FE3NMEE: EREATAH
RRABETE
VNS =]

EHINES OB ERAFEER
FF2BX - UHRMBEEM ST
HREEETATE -

(ii) WHZRFEIENEBEERE

B A FE

NEB A ARSEHK AT EN S
Bl T B AR EE BE S 102022F &
202112 A3 HW AT ELEE
KB o
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25 Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2022 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

25 AE

R2022F 12 A31 B ARG AP KRR AT
TR 2 RENEARAENT -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREFIT
Commitments in respect of property, BEME - BEX

plant and equipment: S R

— Contracted for —B2EI4 64,481 78,727
26 Material Related Party Transactions 26 EXEBARS

(a) Transactions with a company controlled by the
equity shareholders of the Company

R4

(a) EARABBERFREFHHLDT 2R
2

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREFIT
Borrowings received from B — [R5 A 7]

a related company WER HY R 22,500 33,000
Borrowings repaid to a related company  [A]— R BRE A B1EB{E X = 13,000
Interest expenses on borrowings el NSOl =P

from a related company FEBX 3,152 1,972

The borrowings from a related company are unsecured and
unguaranteed, bear interest at 3.7% per annum and are
repayable after one year.

(b) Balances with a company controlled by the

— R R R E R IR R EER - &
3.7 %HVFEF R B MER —FEREER -

(b) BARQBEHERRIZFNQB 24

equity shareholders of the Company 5
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Borrowings from a related company el NETE SR EN 91,800 69,300
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26 Material Related Party Transactions 26 ERBEBARS (&)
(Continued)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) ETEEE AESEEN
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REBFBEEABNTM(BIERANKN
Group, including amounts paid to the directors of the NalEF (AN EE) M ETAEHR
Company as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the highest SoHiES (Rl E) X NHS
paid employees of the Group as disclosed in Note 9, is as FEEFY T -
follows:
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Short-term employee benefits e HEE B R 26,763 9,092
Contributions to defined contribution  FEEHFERIRETEIH K
retirement plan 281 269
Equity settled share-based payments DA E LAY AR
(Note 20) (Hizt20) 2,875 2,105
29,919 11,466
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note FMABEe I AIBEINAR (R

6(b)). 6(b)) °
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27 Company-level Statement of Financial

27 A F) 8 E B AR R &

Position
2022 2021
20225 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
LiEzs ARBT T ARETTT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries =N £ 12 280,618 352,797
280,618 352,797
Current assets weEzE 0
Other receivables H b FE U GRIE 89 -
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 6,767 157
6,856 157
Current liabilities Oy
Other payables H bR FRIB 362 26
Amounts due to a subsidiary FET— IR BB A R FIE 1,206 1,104
1,568 1,130
Netcurrent assets/(liabilities) %% (Rf)F® 5288  (973)
NET ASSETS EEFE 285,906 351,824
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK#E 23
Share capital % 134,140 134,362
Reserves i 151,766 217,462
TOTAL EQUITY RS 285,906 351,824

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
21 March 2023.

Meng Fanyong
=NE
Chairman
FE

28 Immediate and Ultimate Controlling Party

The directors of the Company consider the immediate holding
company and ultimate controlling parties of the Company at
31 December 2022 to be Rosy Astral Limited, and Mr. Meng
Fanyong and Mr. Meng Yuxiang, respectively. Rosy Astral
Limited does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

R2023F3 821 BEE T2 ERIRET

%

Gan Shuya
Fihs
Director

EF

28 BEERBARESH
AKARESEREANRARR2022F12A31H
NEEERATREEES DR AERES
AR BZNBLEERTEFALE - KE
ARARWEFEAHIARATFERNT
WK o



Annual Report 2022 % 2 6 7

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ISR R M EE ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (SB855) AN EESITR)

29 Possible Impact of Amendments, New 29 EEMEREZE2022F12H31H

Standards and Interpretations Issued But
Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended 31
December 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

IEFEERERZAERT A ~
ARZRRNEELE

HETIHZEUBHREBE - EEREeE8)
BEegpBMETREZE2022F12A31H
IEFEHARER - AR SPERER T ERR
RIFTIER] RAUSETHER o ZZEERTA ~ FTEE
BRI T AT AR B MR E -

Effective for

accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RTH Bz 2%
BRI ST R ER
IFRS 17, Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
BRI S mE LR FENTH - RESA 2023F171H
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2, 1 January 2023
Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies
NGETHERISE SR - 22 IRA R BN R e 2R B IR s 2905 - 1EHEZ I 202351 A1H
Bf - AR RENIERT A
Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors: 1 January 2023
Definition of accounting estimates
RN & aERIESE - @FTHER - St et B ERE - a8 EEANEFT X 2023F1A1H
Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising 1 January 2023
from a single transaction
B @ et ERIE125% - Fiiad - MEIRL GELREER B EFBRFELERBRIEFT A 2023F1A1H
HEET AR
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of liabilities as 1 January 2024
current or non-current
B e ERIEN S - 22/ BHEK - HEEDER R IETENERT A 202451 A1H
Amendments to IAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
NGETHERIZE SR - HWEREL IR E B ERNERT AR 202451 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BRI M S 2ERISE 1655k - ERMLOAIHE B ENIEETAR 2024F1 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined
an investor and its associate or joint venture
BB B 75 S 5 HE B 58 1 05 M BIRR & 512 RIS 285 FE

REFHABE L A% A SR EZ FHEEHE X TAMEETA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

AEBEFHEZFERAR R MR EE
HRERERBRSELNTE - 25/
HEmERNZFERIA  FTERIRBED
RAREHAEBNGREVBERRELEEAT
@,
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FEHFEE

Years ended 31 December

BENAMBLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
2018%F 20194 20204 20214F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
RESULTS E AREBFIT AREFIT AREFTT AREFTT ARETR
Revenue & 3,094,823 2,825,969 2,259,402 3,762,629 4,227,802
Profit/(loss) before taxation  FiETHIE,(E1E) 355,260 409,731 (144,130) 99,755 176,946
Income tax FriS#i (54,062) (72,321) 26,226 (16,816) (25,362)
Profit/(loss) for the year Frmtl,/ (E8) 301,198 337,410  (117,904) 82,939 151,584
Profit/(loss) for the year THATEREFA
attributable to: w=AL(EE)
Equity shareholders of RRRERRR
the Company 301,198 333,729 (116,417) 82,939 151,584
Non-controlling interests IEPE AR S - 3,681 (1,487) - =
301,198 337,410 (117,904) 82,939 151,584
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZEEREE
Total assets REE 3,117,095 4,241,680 3,688,683 4,751,486 4,186,380
Total liabilities FN=E 2,354,553 2,715,701 2,426,102 3,404,947 2,782,080
Net assets BEFE 762,542 1,525,979 1,262,581 1,346,539 1,404,300
Net assets attributable to: LA A TELEE
HE ¢
Equity shareholders of A RIESIRR
the Company 755,145 1,514,901 1,262,581 1,346,539 1,404,300
Non-controlling interests JEVERR S 7,397 11,078 - - =
762,542 1,525,979 1,262,581 1,346,539 1,404,300

The results of assets and liabilities of the Group for 2018 are
extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 28 October 2019.

AEBR2018FNEEUREE BB

BAABIHEA2019F10 A28 B HREIE -
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